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3M COMPANY

FORM 10-Q

For the Quarterly Period Ended June 30, 2016
PART I. Financial Information

Iltem 1. Financial Statements.

3M Company and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Income

(Unaudited)
Three months ended Six months ended
June 30, June 30,

(Millions, except per share amounts) 2016 2015 2016 2015
Net sale $ 7662 $ 7,686 $ 15,071% 15,264
Operating expenses

Cost of sales 3,799 3,858 7,477 7,679

Selling, general and administrative expenses 1,560 1,550 3,063 3,114

Research, development and related expenses 437 438 887 901

Total operating expenses 5,796 5,846 11,417 11,694

Operating income 1,866 1,840 3,654 3,570
Interest expense and income

Interest expense 38 35 85 66

Interest income (7) @) (12 (11

Total interest expense — net 31 28 73 55

Income before income taxes 1,835 1,812 3,581 3,515
Provision for income taxes 542 509 1,010 1,011
Net income including noncontrolling intere $ 1293 $ 1303 $ 2,571% 2,504
Less: Net income attributable to noncontrollingenesst 2 3 5 5
Net income attributable to 3l $ 1291 $ 1,300 $ 2,566% 2,499
Weighted average 3M common shares outstanding € bas 606.9 631.3 607.2 633.8
Earnings per share attributable to 3M common slddehs — basic $ 213 $ 206 $ 423% 3.94
Weighted average 3M common shares outstanding dtedil 620.9 643.0 621.1 646.1
Earnings per share attributable to 3M common slwddens —dilutec $ 2.08 $ 202 $ 4.13% 3.87
Cash dividends paid per 3M common share $ 111 $ 1025 $ 2.22% 2.05

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financatke&tents are an integral part of this statement.



3M Company and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

(Unaudited)
Three months ended Six months ended
June 30, June 30,
(Millions) 2016 2015 2016 2015
Net income including noncontrolling inter $ 1,293 $ 1,303 $ 2571 $ 2,504
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Cumulative translation adjustment 37 23 175 (7o
Defined benefit pension and postretirement plans
adjustment 67 96 136 187
Debt and equity securities, unrealized gain (loss) — — — —
Cash flow hedging instruments, unrealized gainsjlos (27) (32) (137) 38
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 77 87 174 55
Comprehensive income (loss) including noncontrgllin
interest 1,370 1,390 2,745 2,559
Comprehensive (income) loss attributable to nonodlimg
interest (2 (2) 4 (4)
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to 3M $ 1,368 $ 1,388 $ 2,741 $ 2,555

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinancetkeBtents are an integral part of this statement.



3M Company and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheet

(Unaudited)
June 30, December 31,
(Dollars in millions, except per share amount) 2016 2015
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,688 $ 1,798
Marketable securities — current 177 118
Accounts receivable — net 4,667 4,154
Inventories
Finished goods 1,676 1,655
Work in process 1,165 1,008
Raw materials and supplies 772 855
Total inventories 3,613 3,518
Other current assets 1,291 1,398
Total current assets 11,436 10,986
Marketable securities — non-current 14 9
Investments 121 117
Property, plant and equipment 23,793 23,098
Less: Accumulated depreciation (15,189) (14,583)
Property, plant and equipment — net 8,604 8,515
Goodwill 9,356 9,249
Intangible assets — net 2,477 2,601
Prepaid pension benefits 242 188
Other assets 985 1,053
Total assets 33,235 % 32,718
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings and current portion of lorgat debt 2,450 $ 2,044
Accounts payable 1,650 1,694
Accrued payroll 580 644
Accrued income taxes 169 332
Other current liabilities 2,405 2,404
Total current liabilities 7,254 7,118
Long-term debt 9,299 8,753
Pension and postretirement benefits 3,418 3,520
Other liabilities 1,327 1,580
Total liabilities 21,298 $ 20,971
Commitments and contingencies (Note 12)
Equity
3M Company shareholders’ equity:
Common stock par value, $.01 par value, 944,033sb5ées issued 9 $ 9
Additional paid-in capital 4,963 4,791
Retained earnings 37,194 36,575
Treasury stock, at cost: 339,632,765 shares at3un2016; 334,702,932 shares at
December 31, 2015 (24,088) (23,308)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (6,184 (6,359
Total 3M Company shareholders’ equity 11,894 11,708
Noncontrolling intere: 43 39
Total equity 11,937 $ 11,747
Total liabilities and equity 33,235 $ 32,718

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinanciatkeBtents are an integral part of this statement.



3M Company and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(Unaudited)
Six months ended
June 30,
(Millions) 2016 2015
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income including noncontrolling intere 2571 % 2,504
Adjustments to reconcile net income including narioalling interest to net
cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 722 683
Company pension and postretirement contributions 97) (185
Company pension and postretirement expense 118 283
Stock-based compensation expense 193 187
Deferred income taxes (134) 295
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation — (129
Changes in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable (419 (446
Inventories (42) (269)
Accounts payable (57) (34)
Accrued income taxes (current and long-term) (102) (421)
Other — net (208 (50)
Net cash provided by operating activit 2,545 2,418
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (PP&E) (637 (661
Proceeds from sale of PP&E and other assets 18 14
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (4) (153
Purchases of marketable securities and investments (510) (341)
Proceeds from maturities and sale of marketablergEs and investments 449 1,269
Proceeds from sale of businesses 56 19
Other investing (2) 19
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi (630) 166
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Change in short-term debt — net (337 (39)
Repayment of debt (maturities greater than 90 days) — (20)
Proceeds from debt (maturities greater than 90)days 1,112 1,925
Purchases of treasury stock (2,055) (2,581)
Proceeds from issuance of treasury stock pursoasibtk option and benefit
plans 612 450
Dividends paid to shareholders (1,344) (1,298)
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation — 129
Other — net (16) (50)
Net cash used in financing activiti (2,028 (1,474
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casbaénts 3 (24
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis (110 1,086
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,798 1,897
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 1,688 $ 2,983

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financatke&tents are an integral part of this statement.



3M Company and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

NOTE 1. Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

The interim consolidated financial statements au@udited but, in the opinion of management, refidichdjustments
necessary for a fair statement of the Company’salfated financial position, results of operatiansl cash flows for
the periods presented. These adjustments congistrofal, recurring items. The results of operatifamsany interim
period are not necessarily indicative of resultstiie full year. The interim consolidated finangtdtements and notes
are presented as permitted by the requiremen®@darterly Reports on Form 10-Q.

As described in 3M’s Current Report on Form 8-KedlaMay 17, 2016 (which updated 3M’s 2015 Annual &epn
Form 10-K) and 3M’s Quarterly Report on Form 10a@the period ended March 31, 2016, effective anfttst quarter
of 2016, the Company made a product line repotlrange involving two of its business segments. Segm
information presented herein reflects the impachisf change for all periods presented. This Qugrieeport on Form
10-Q should be read in conjunction with the Compangnsolidated financial statements and notesided in its
Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 17, 2016.

Foreign Currency Translation

Local currencies generally are considered the fonat currencies outside the United States. Asmeddiabilities for
operations in local-currency environments are teded at month-end exchange rates of the perioattegh. Income and
expense items are translated at month-end exchategeof each applicable month. Cumulative traimsiadjustments
are recorded as a component of accumulated othegpretiensive income (loss) in shareholders’ equity.

Although local currencies are typically consideasdhe functional currencies outside the UnitedeStainder
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 8B8@reign Currency Matterghe reporting currency of a foreign entity’s
parent is assumed to be that entity’s functionalemcy when the economic environment of a foreigtityis highly
inflationary—generally when its cumulative inflatitss approximately 100 percent or more for thedhrears that
precede the beginning of a reporting period. 3Maasbsidiary in Venezuela with operating incongresenting less
than 1.0 percent of 3M’s consolidated operatingine for 2015. Since January 1, 2010, the finamst&kements of the
Venezuelan subsidiary have been remeasured adufnittional currency were that of its parent.

The Venezuelan government sets official rates oharge and conditions precedent to purchase fooeigency at
these rates with local currency. Such rates anditons have been and continue to be subject togdhan

January 2014, the Venezuelan government annouhagthie National Center for Foreign Commerce (CEREYD had
assumed the role with respect to the continuatiadheexisting official exchange rate, significangixpanded the use of
a second currency auction exchange mechanism ¢hbe@omplementary System for Foreign Currency Aegquent
(or SICAD1), and issued exchange regulations irgigahe SICAD1 rate of exchange would be usegpfyments
related to international investments. In late Ma26ti4, the Venezuelan government launched a tbielgn exchange
mechanism, SICAD2, which it later replaced with e foreign currency exchange platform in Febr20¥5 called
the Marginal System of Foreign Currency (SIMADIhel'SIMADI rate was described as being derived fdaily
private bidders and buyers exchanging offers thnaughorized agents. This rate was approved anlishat by the
Venezuelan Central Bank. In March 2016, the Venlezugovernment effected a replacement of its peefil
CENCOEX rate with Tipo de Cambio Protegido (DIPR@®scribed as available largely for essential irtgpor
eliminated its SICAD exchange mechanism; and regldis SIMADI rate with Tipo de Cambio Complemerdar
(DICOM), published by the Venezuelan Central Bané described as fluctuating in rate based on sugpdydemand.

The financial statements of 3M’s Venezuelan subsydivere remeasured utilizing the official CENCOX its
predecessor) rate into March 2014, the SICAD1 bbatginning in late March 2014, the SICAD2 rate bagig in
June 2014, and the DICOM rate (or its SIMADI presisor) beginning in February 2015. 3M’s uses «féhates were



based upon evaluation of a number of factors inotydout not limited to, the exchange rate the Canys Venezuelan
subsidiary may legally use to convert currencyeétansactions or pay dividends; the probabdityccessing and
obtaining currency by use of a particular rate echanism; and the Company’s intent and abilityse a particular
exchange mechanism. Other factors notwithstandamgeasurement impacts of the changes in use af thehange
rates did not have material impacts on 3M’s consiéd results of operations or financial condition.

The Company continues to monitor circumstancesivel#o its Venezuelan subsidiary. Changes in apple exchange
rates or exchange mechanisms may continue in theefurhese changes could impact the rate of exgghapplicable to
remeasure the Company’s net monetary assets ifiedjildenominated in Venezuelan Bolivars (VEF).cAgune 30,
2016, the Company had a balance of net monetaegsasdenominated in VEF of less than 1.5 billion \édtfd the
DIPRO and DICOM exchange rates were approximately&EF and 625 VEF per U.S. dollar, respectively.

A need to deconsolidate the Company’s Venezuelbsidiary’'s operations may result from a lack ofleaegeability of
VEF-denominated cash coupled with an acute degoadat the ability to make key operational decisaue to
government regulations in Venezuela. 3M monitocsdies such as its ability to access various exchangchanisms;
the impact of government regulations on the Comjsaalyility to manage its Venezuelan subsidiary’git structure,
purchasing, product pricing, and labor relatioms] the current political and economic situationhivitVenezuela.
Based upon such factors as of June 30, 2016, thg&uy continues to consolidate its Venezuelan didrgi As of
June 30, 2016, the balance of intercompany reckeisatue from this subsidiary and its equity balameee not
significant.

Earnings Per Share

The difference in the weighted average 3M sharéstanding for calculating basic and diluted earsipgr share
attributable to 3M common shareholders is a rasfithe dilution associated with the Company’s stbeked
compensation plans. Certain options outstandingutietse stock-based compensation plans weregiatlad in the
computation of diluted earnings per share attribletdo 3M common shareholders because they woultiane had a
dilutive effect (2.9 million average options foetthree months ended June 30, 2016; 5.9 milliore@ecoptions for the
six months ended June 30, 2016; 5.5 million aveoggi®ns for the three months ended June 30, 281db4.5 million
average options for the six months ended June®(})2 The computations for basic and diluted egsimer share
follow:

Earnings Per Share Computations

Three months ended  Six months ended

June 30, June 30,
(Amounts in millions, except per share amounts) 2016 2015 2016 2015
Numerator
Net income attributable to 3M $1,291 $1,300 $2,566 $ 2,499

Denominator:
Denominator for weighted average 3M common shanéstanding — basic  606.9 631.3 607.2 633.8

Dilution associated with the Company’s stock-basatipensation plans 14.0 11.7 13.9 12.3

Denominator for weighted average 3M common shanestanding —dilutec  620.9 643.0 621.1 646.1

Earnings per share attributable to 3M common slwddehs — basic $ 213 $ 206 $ 423 $ 3.94
Earnings per share attributable to 3M common slwddehs — diluted $ 208 $ 202 $ 413 $ 3.87

New Accounting Pronouncements
In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standardsr@q&ASB) issued ASU No. 2014-0Revenue from Contracts

with Customersand in August 2015 issued ASU No. 2015-14, whistended ASU No. 2014-09 as to effective date.
The ASU, as amended, provides a single compreheensbdel to be used in the accounting for revenisingrfrom



contracts with customers and supersedes most tuensmue recognition guidance, including indusipgcific
guidance. The standard’s stated core principleasdn entity should recognize revenue to depéetrdnsfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an antbanreflects the consideration to which thetgrgkpects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or servicesadhieve this core principle the ASU includes Bions within a five
step model that includes identifying the contraithva customer, identifying the performance obligas in the contract,
determining the transaction price, allocating tla@saction price to the performance obligationd, r@eognizing
revenue when (or as) an entity satisfies a perfoo@abligation. The standard also specifies thewting for some
costs to obtain or fulfill a contract with a cus@mand requires expanded disclosures about revecagnition. The
standard provides for either full retrospective @ém or a modified retrospective adoption by whiicls applied only
to the most current period presented. For 3M, tB& Aas amended, is effective January 1, 2018. Timepany is
currently assessing this standard’s impact on 3iissolidated results of operations and financiabdon.

In February 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015A08endments to the Consolidation Analysikich changes
guidance related to both the variable intereste(MIE) and voting interest entity (VOE) consoltda models. With
respect to the VIE model, the standard changeshgmther things, the identification of variableeirdsts associated
with fees paid to a decision maker or service gtenithe VIE characteristics for a limited partoesimilar entity, and
the primary beneficiary determination. With resptecthe VOE model, the ASU eliminates the presuampthat a
general partner controls a limited partnershipimilar entity unless the presumption can otheriiseovercome. Under
the new guidance, a general partner would largetycansolidate a partnership or similar entity urttie VOE model.
The Company adopted this ASU effective Januaryp162Because 3M did not have significant involvetrveith
entities subject to consolidation considerationgdoted by the VIE model changes or with limitedtipanrships
potentially impacted by the VOE model changesahaption did not have a material impact on the Camyis
consolidated results of operations and financiabd@on.

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-@stomer’s Accounting for Fees Paid in a Cloud Agement

which requires a customer to determine whetheoadctomputing arrangement contains a software dicelfi the
arrangement contains a software license, the cestamuld account for fees related to the softwmenise element in a
manner consistent with accounting for the acquisitf other acquired software licenses. If therageament does not
contain a software license, the customer would aatctor the arrangement as a service contract.rfangement would
contain a software license element if both (1)dhstomer has the contractual right to take possesdithe software at
any time during the hosting period without sigrafit penalty and (2) it is feasible for the custoioegither run the
software on its own hardware or contract with aaoarty unrelated to the vendor to host the saftwaM adopted
this ASU prospectively to arrangements entered mtanaterially modified beginning January 1, 20I6e adoption

did not have a material impact on 3M’s consolidaesiilts of operations and financial condition.

In July 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-implifying the Measurement of Inventomhich modifies existing
requirements regarding measuring inventory atahet of cost or market. Under existing standarus,nharket amount
requires consideration of replacement cost, ndizedde value (NRV), and NRV less an approximatatymal profit
margin. The new ASU replaces market with NRV, dafilms estimated selling prices in the ordinary s®wof business,
less reasonably predictable costs of completiapatial and transportation. This eliminates the neeétermine and
consider replacement cost or NRV less an approeiyjabrmal profit margin when measuring inventdfgr 3M, this
standard is effective prospectively beginning Jaynda2017, with early adoption permitted. The Camypis currently
assessing this ASU’s impact on 3M’s consolidatedlte of operations and financial condition.

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016R¥cognition and Measurement of Financial Assetskandncial
Liabilities, which revises the accounting related to (1) tassification and measurement of investments iritgqu
securities and (2) the presentation of certainvaiue changes for financial liabilities measuretha value. The ASU
also amends certain disclosure requirements asedaiath the fair value of financial instrument$i€Tnew guidance
requires the fair value measurement of investmiarggjuity securities and other ownership interastmn entity,
including investments in partnerships, unincorpedgoint ventures and limited liability companiesl{ectively, equity
securities) that do not result in consolidation anel not accounted for under the equity methodti&ntvill need to
measure these investments and recognize changsyalue in net income. Entities will no longeg hble to recognize
unrealized holding gains and losses on equity #ezsithey classify under current guidance as atsel for sale in other
comprehensive income (OCI). They also will no lanige able to use the cost method of accountingdoity securities



that do not have readily determinable fair valllstead, for these types of equity investmentsdbatot otherwise
qualify for the net asset value practical expedientities will be permitted to elect a practicapiexception and
measure the investment at cost less impairmentgslosnus observable price changes (in orderlysiations). The
ASU also establishes an incremental recognitiondisosure requirement related to the presentatidair value
changes of financial liabilities for which the famlue option (FVO) has been elected. Under thidance, an entity
would be required to separately present in OChpthréion of the total fair value change attributatoénstrument-
specific credit risk as opposed to reflecting thére amount in earnings. For derivative liabikti#r which the FVO
has been elected, however, any changes in faieatributable to instrument-specific credit riskudd continue to be
presented in net income, which is consistent witnent guidance. For 3M, this standard is effeckigginning January
1, 2018 via a cumulative-effect adjustment to beigig retained earnings, except for guidance redativequity
securities without readily determinable fair valudsich is applied prospectively. The Company isently assessing
this ASU’s impact on 3M’s consolidated results p&mtions and financial condition.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016L@2asesreplacing existing lease accounting guidance. ridve
standard introduces a lessee model that would neutities to recognize assets and liabilitiesiost leases, but
recognize expenses on their income statementsnanmer similar to current accounting. The ASU dostsmake
fundamental changes to existing lessor accouniogvever, it modifies what qualifies as a sales-tgpd direct
financing lease and related accounting and aligmsnaber of the underlying principles with thoselef new revenue
standard, ASU No. 2014-09, such as evaluating haleatability should be considered and determinitigen profit can
be recognized. The guidance eliminates existingegtate-specific provisions and requires exparnpeditative and
guantitative disclosures. The standard requiresifieddetrospective transition by which it is apgaliat the beginning of
the earliest comparative period presented in tlae geadoption. For 3M, the ASU is effective Jaryuhy2019. The
Company is currently assessing this standard’s é¢inpa 3M’s consolidated results of operations andrfcial
condition.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-06ntingent Put and Call Options in Debt Instrumefisis ASU
clarifies guidance used to determine if debt insents that contain contingent put or call optiomsild require
separation of the embedded put or call feature ttwerdebt instrument and trigger accounting forféaure as a
derivative with changes in fair value recorded tigtoincome. Under the new guidance, fewer put bbogéions
embedded in debt instruments would require dexigadiccounting. For 3M, this ASU is effective Jaguhr2017. The
Company’s outstanding debt with embedded put pimvisdoes not require separate derivative accoginitider
existing guidance. As a result, 3M does not exgestASU to have a material impact on the Compangtssolidated
results of operations and financial condition.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-8implifying the Transition to the Equity MethodAaftounting
which eliminates the existing requirement to aghby equity method of accounting retrospectivelyigiag prior
periods as if the equity method had always beelieaf)pvhen an entity obtains significant influermeer a previously
held investment. The new guidance would requirértestor to apply the equity method prospectivedyn the date
the investment qualifies for the equity method. hestor would add the carrying value of the emgsinvestment to
the cost of any additional investment to deterntirgeinitial cost basis of the equity method investitm For 3M, this
ASU is effective January 1, 2017 on a prospectag&d) with early adoption permitted. 3M would apiiis guidance to
investments that transition to the equity methddrahe adoption date.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-®8ncipal versus Agent Considerations (Reportingdteie Gross
versus Net)which amends ASU No. 2014-0Revenue from Contracts with Customéosclarify principal versus agent
guidance in situations in which a revenue traneadtivolves a third party in providing goods ongegs to a customer.
In such circumstances, an entity must determinettveinghe nature of its promise to the customen jgrovide the
underlying goods or services (i.e., the entityhis principal in the transaction) or to arrangetiar third party to provide
the underlying goods or services (i.e., the ergityre agent in the transaction). To determinentitere of its promise to
the customer, the entity must first identify eaphdfied good or service to be provided to the@ustr and then (before
transferring it) assess whether it controls eaetifipd good or service. The new ASU clarifies hawentity should
identify the unit of accounting (the specified gamdservice) for the principal versus agent evammatand how it should
apply the control principle to certain types ofsamgements, such as service transactions, by eigairhat a principal
controls before the specified good or servicedngferred to the customer. This ASU has the safeetiee date and
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transition requirements as ASU No. 2014-09, as aeeiy ASU No. 2015-14, which for 3M is effectivendiary 1,
2018. The Company is currently assessing this ataglimpact on 3M’s consolidated results of opgera and
financial condition.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016409rovements to Employee Share-Based Payment Aftgun
which modifies certain accounting aspects for stased payments to employees including, among etkarents, the
accounting for income taxes and forfeitures, ad agtlassifications in the statement of cash floWgh respect to
income taxes, under current guidance, when a dyased payment award such as a stock option oicteststock unit
(RSV) is granted to an employee, the fair valuthefaward is generally recognized over the vesigripd. However,
the related deduction from taxes payable is basgti@award’s intrinsic value at the time of exsedffor an option) or
on the fair value upon vesting of the award (fotJ8% which can be either greater (creating an extesbenefit) or
less (creating a tax deficiency) than the compémsabst recognized in the financial statementselSs tax benefits are
recognized in additional paid-in capital (APIC) kit equity, and tax deficiencies are similarly rgized in APIC to
the extent there is a sufficient APIC amount (APKEDI) related to previously recognized excess tmefits. Under the
new guidance, all excess tax benefits/deficiensi@sld be recognized as income tax benefit/expemsiaei statement of
income. The new ASU'’s income tax aspects also imghaccalculation of diluted earnings per sharexgluding
excess tax benefits/deficiencies from the caloohatif assumed proceeds available to repurchasesshader the
treasury stock method. Relative to forfeitures,ritbe/ standard allows an entity-wide accountingqgyodilection either
to continue to estimate the number of awards tlilhbes forfeited or to account for forfeitures dey occur. The new
guidance also impacts classifications within tlaeshent of cash flows by no longer requiring inidonof excess tax
benefits as both a hypothetical cash outflow wittash flows from operating activities and hypottedtcash inflow
within cash flows from financing activities. Instea@xcess tax benefits would be classified in dpegactivities in the
same manner as other cash flows related to incarest Additionally, the new ASU requires cash paysi¢o tax
authorities when an employer uses a net-settlefaahire to withhold shares to meet statutory takhalding
provisions to be presented as financing activitiyni@eating previous diversity in practice). For 3thjs standard is
required effective January 1, 2017, with early aawoppermitted. The Company early adopted ASU Nid.&209 as of
January 1, 2016. Prospectively beginning Janua®p16, excess tax benefits/deficiencies have beftacted as income
tax benefit/expense in the statement of incomeltirgun a $59 million and $140 million tax beneifitthe three and six
months ended June 30, 2016, respectively. 3M tilpieaperiences the largest volume of stock opemarcises and
RSU vestings in the first quarter of its fiscal yeEhe extent of excess tax benefits/deficien@esubject to variation in
3M stock price and timing/extent of RSU vestingd amployee stock option exercises. 3M’s adoptiothisf ASU also
resulted in associated excess tax benefits beasgifled as operating activity in the same mansatlaer cash flows
related to income taxes in the statement of castsflprospectively beginning January 1, 2016. Basethe adoption
methodology applied, the statement of cash flowsdification of prior periods has not been adjudiedddition, 3M
did not change its accounting principles relativelements of this standard and continued itsiegigiractice of
estimating the number of awards that will be fagdi

In April 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-1dentifying Performance Obligations and Licensimgnich amends
ASU No. 2014-09Revenue from Contracts with Customénsterms of identifying performance obligationsa
revenue arrangement, the amendments clarify hoitwesnivould determine whether promised goods orises are
separately identifiable from other promises in atact and, therefore, would be accounted for sgplyr The guidance
would also allow entities to disregard goods ovises that are immaterial in the context of a cacttand provides an
accounting policy election to account for shippargl handling activities as fulfillment costs rattiean as additional
promised services. With regard to the licensing,amendments clarify how an entity would evaluhéertature of its
promise in granting a license of intellectual pndpewhich determines whether the entity recognies&nue over time
or at a point in time. The standard also clarifiegain other aspects relative to licensing. TH&J/has the same
effective date and transition requirements as ASU2014-09, as amended by ASU No. 2015-14, whicl3kb is
effective January 1, 2018. The Company is curreagbessing this standard’s impact on 3M’s cons®itieesults of
operations and financial condition.

In May 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-0arrow-Scope Improvements and Practical Expedjemitéch
amends ASU No. 2014-08evenue from Contracts with Customéosaddress implementation issues relative to
transition (adding a practical expedient for cocttraodifications and clarifying what constitutesanpleted contract
when employing ASU No. 2014-09’s full or modifiegtrospective transition methods), collectabilitynoash
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consideration, and the presentation of sales amet stmilar-type taxes (allowing entities to exaushles-type taxes
collected from transaction price). This ASU hasshme effective date and transition requiremenfsSis No. 2014-
09, as amended by ASU No. 2015-14, which for 3Mifisctive January 1, 2018. The Company is curreasbessing
this standard’s impact on 3M’s consolidated respiltsperations and financial condition.

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016M8asurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruyevhich
revises guidance for the accounting for creditdessn financial instruments within its scope. Tha/standard
introduces an approach, based on expected lossestjiate credit losses on certain types of fiigitstruments and
modifies the impairment model for available-foresdebt securities. The new approach to estimatiedjtdosses
(referred to as the current expected credit lossedel) applies to most financial assets measuracdhattized cost and
certain other instruments, including trade and otheeivables, loans, held-to-maturity debt se@gjtnet investments
in leases and off-balance-sheet credit exposuréh. dspect to available-for-sale (AFS) debt sdims; the ASU
amends the current other-than-temporary impairnmatel. For such securities with unrealized lossesties will still
consider if a portion of any impairment is relatedy to credit losses and therefore recognizedraslaction in income.
However, rather than also reflecting that credislamount as a permanent reduction in cost (aradrtiast) basis of
that AFS debt security, the ASU requires that ¢riedises be reflected as an allowance. As a resugr certain
circumstances, a recovery in value could resyir@vious allowances, or portions thereof, reversiagk into income.
For 3M, this ASU is effective January 1, 2020, watrly adoption permitted. Entities are requiredpply the
standard’s provisions as a cumulative-effect adjestt to retained earnings as of the beginning efitist reporting
period in which the guidance is adopted. The Comsourrently assessing this ASU’s impact on 3bbasolidated
result of operations and financial condition.

NOTE 2. Acquisitions and Divestitures
Acquisitions:

3M makes acquisitions of certain businesses from tio time that are aligned with its strategic mht&ith respect to,
among other factors, growth markets and adjacemymt lines or technologies.

There were no material business combinations tbaed during the six months ended June 30, 201fisfdents in
the first six months of 2016 to the preliminary ghaise price allocations of other acquisitions withie allocation
period were not material. The allocation of purehpsce related to the acquisition of Capital Safétoup S.A.R.L. in
August 2015 is considered preliminary, primarilttwiespect to contingent liabilities and certaix-telated assets and
liabilities. 3M expects to finalize the allocatiohpurchase price within the one year measuremenibg following this
acquisition.

Divestitures:

3M may divest certain businesses from time to firased upon review of the Company’s portfolio coasity, among
other items, factors relative to the extent oftey& and technological alignment and optimizatibcapital

deployment, in addition to considering if sellitptbusinesses results in the greatest value andatithe Company and
for shareholders.

In the first quarter of 2016, 3M (Safety and GragHBusiness) completed the sale of the remaindirecdssets of 3M’s
library systems business to One Equity Partnerst&lafdvisors L.P. (OEP). 3M had previously sole thorth
American business and the majority of the businesside of North America to OEP in the fourth qaadf 2015. The
library systems business delivers circulation managnt solutions to library customers with on-prentiardware and
software, maintenance and service, and an emectpng-based digital lending platform.

In the first quarter of 2016, 3M (Industrial Busiisg sold to Innovative Chemical Products Groupmrf@io company
of Audax Private Equity, the assets of 3M’s preigew polyurethane foam adhesives business (fornkadyn as
Polyfoam). This business is a provider of pressgrigolyurethane foam adhesive formulations andesysinto the
residential roofing, commercial roofing and insidatand industrial foam segments in the UnitedeStatith annual
sales of approximately $20 million.
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The Company recorded a pre-tax gain of $40 milifothe first quarter of 2016 as a result of thesalf these
businesses (recorded in selling, general and adtrative expenses). The aggregate operating incnmese
businesses included in the Company’s operatindtsefu the periods presented and the amounts ¢dmaasets and
liabilities of any associated disposal groups deskas held-for-sale as of the respective balahe=t dates presented
were not material.

Refer to Note 2 in 3M’s Current Report on Form &l#ted May 17, 2016 (which updated 3M’s 2015 AnrRegbort on
Form 10-K) for more information on 3M’s acquisit®and divestitures.
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NOTE 3. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

There were no material acquisitions that closeéhduthe first six months of 2016. The amounts i thranslation and
other” column in the following table primarily rééato changes in foreign currency exchange rates.gbodwill
balances by business segment as of December 33 a@?@lJune 30, 2016, follow:

Goodwill

December 31, 2015 Acquisition Translation June 3@016
(Millions) Balance activity and other Balance
Industrial $ 2573 % 1 % 49 $ 2,623
Safety and Graphics 3,342 2 19 3,363
Health Care 1,624 — 14 1,638
Electronics and Energy 1,510 — 13 1,523
Consumer 200 — 9 209
Total Company $ 9,249 $ 3 $ 104% 9,356

Accounting standards require that goodwill be g$te impairment annually and between annual t@stertain
circumstances such as a change in reporting untteedesting of recoverability of a significansasgroup within a
reporting unit. At 3M, reporting units generallyroespond to a division.

As described in Note 14, effective in the first gaaof 2016, the Company changed its business eegraporting in its
continuing effort to improve the alignment of itsdinesses around markets and customers. For adygirchanges that
resulted in reporting unit changes, the Companyiegphe relative fair value method to determine itthpact on
goodwill of the associated reporting units. Durthg first quarter of 2016, the Company completed#isessment of
any potential goodwill impairment for reporting tsmimpacted by this new structure and determinatirth impairment
existed.

Acquired Intangible Assets

The carrying amount and accumulated amortizaticecqgfiired finite-lived intangible assets, in additto the balance
of non-amortizable intangible assets, as of Jun@@06, and December 31, 2015, follow:

June 30, December 31,

(Millions) 2016 2015
Customer related intangible assets $ 1,974 $ 1,973
Patents 607 616
Other technology-based intangible assets 525 525
Definite-lived tradenames 424 421
Other amortizable intangible assets 214 216
Total gross carrying amount $ 3,744 % 3,751
Accumulated amortization — customer related (737) (668)
Accumulated amortization — patents (489 (481
Accumulated amortization — other technology based (279) (252)
Accumulated amortization — definite-lived tradename (228 (215
Accumulated amortization — other (171) (169)
Total accumulated amortization $ (1,904 $ (1,785

Total finite-lived intangible assets — net $ 1,840 $ 1,966
Non-amortizable intangible assets (primarily tradensime 637 635

Total intangible assets — net $ 2477 $ 2,601
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Certain tradenames acquired by 3M are not amorbeeduse they have been in existence for over &S ykave a
history of leading-market share positions, haventse® are intended to be continuously renewedttendssociated
products of which are expected to generate casisffor 3M for an indefinite period of time.

Amortization expense for acquired intangible astmtthe three and six months ended June 30, 26d&@15 follows:

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30, June 30,
(Millions) 2016 2015 2016 2015
Amortization expense $ 66 $ 50 $ 132 § 103

Expected amortization expense for acquired amdnfzimtangible assets recorded as of June 30, 2016:

Remainder
of After
(Millions) 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 202
Amortization expense $ 125 $ 226 $ 204 $ 192 $ 182 $ 166 $ 745

The preceding expected amortization expense istimate. Actual amounts of amortization expense ditigr from
estimated amounts due to additional intangibletassguisitions, changes in foreign currency excleanages,
impairment of intangible assets, accelerated amaiitin of intangible assets and other events. 3p&eses the costs
incurred to renew or extend the term of intangddeets.

NOTE 4. Restructuring Actions

During the fourth quarter of 2015, management apg@nd committed to undertake certain restruoguaictions
primarily focused on structural overhead, largelytie U.S. and slower-growing markets, with paticemphasis on
Europe, Middle East, and Africa (EMEA) and Latin Arita. This impacted approximately 1,700 positimosldwide
and resulted in a fourth quarter 2015 pre-tax ahafds114 million.

Components of these restructuring actions, inclydissh and non-cash impacts, follow:

Employee- Asset-
(Millions) Related Related Total
Expense incurred $ 98 $ 16 $ 114
Non-cash changes (8) (16) (24)
Cash payments (27, — (27,
Accrued restructuring action balances as of Dece®bg2015 $ 63 $ —  $ 63
Cash payments (35) — (35)
Accrued restructuring action balances as of Jun@G30D6 $ 28 % — $ 28

Non-cash changes include certain pension settlenagmt special termination benefits recorded inusxtpension and
postretirement benefits and accelerated depreniatisulting from the cessation of use of certaiglived assets.
Remaining activities related to the restructuring expected to be completed in 2016.
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NOTE 5. Supplemental Equity and Comprehensive Iname Information

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Three months ended June 30, 2016

3M Company Shareholders

Common Accumulated

Stock and Other

Additional Comprehensive Non-

Paid-in Retained Treasury Income controlling
(Millions) Total Capital Earnings Stock (Loss) Interest
Balance at March 31, 2016 $ 11,774 $ 4,925 $ 36,785 $ (23,716 $ (6,261 $ 41
Net incom 1,293 1,291 2
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Cumulative translation adjustment 37 37 —
Defined benefit pension and post-retirement platjgsstment 67 67 —
Debt and equity securities - unrealized gain (loss) — — —
Cash flow hedging instruments - unrealized gaissjo (27) (27) —
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 77
Dividends declared (672 (672)
Stock-based compensation a7 a7
Reacquired stock (837 (837)
Issuances pursuant to stock option and benefisplan 255 (210 465
Balance at June 30, 2016 $ 11937 $ 4972 $ 37,194 $ (24,088) $ (6,184) $ 43
Six months ended June 30, 2016
3M Company Shareholders

Common Accumulated

Stock and Other

Additional Comprehensive Non-

Paid-in Retained Treasury Income controlling

(Millions) Total Capital Earnings Stock (Loss) Interest
Balance at December 31, 2015 $ 11747 $ 4800 $ 36575 $ (23,308 $ (6,359 $ 39
Net incom: 2,571 2,566 5
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Cumulative translation adjustment 175 176 Q)
Defined benefit pension and post-retirement platjigsstment 136 136 —
Debt and equity securities - unrealized gain (loss) — — —
Cash flow hedging instruments - unrealized gaissjo (137 (137) —
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 174
Dividends declared (1,344 (1,344)
Stock-based compensation 172 172
Reacquired stock (2,000 (2,000)
Issuances pursuant to stock option and benefisplan 617 (603 1,220
Balance at June 30, 2016 $ 11937 $ 4972 $ 37,194 $ (24,088) $ (6,184) $ 43
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Three months ended June 30, 2015

3M Company Shareholders

Common Accumulated

Stock and Other

Additional Comprehensive Non-

Paid-in Retained Treasury Income controlling
(Millions) Total Capital Earnings Stock (Loss) Interest
Balance at March 31, 2015 $ 13952 $ 4,616 $ 35080 $ (19,458 $ (6,321 $ 35
Net incom: 1,303 1,300 3
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Cumulative translation adjustment 23 24 Q)
Defined benefit pension and post-retirement platjgsstment 96 96 —
Debt and equity securities - unrealized gain (loss) — — —
Cash flow hedging instruments - unrealized gaiss)jo (32) (32) —
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 87
Dividends declared (646 (646)
Stock-based compensation, net of tax impacts 78 78
Reacquired stock (1,787 (2,787)
Issuances pursuant to stock option and benefisplan 143 (119 262
Balance at June 30, 2015 $ 13,130 $ 4694 $ 35615 $ (20,983) $ (6,233) $ 37
Six months ended June 30, 2015
3M Company Shareholders

Common Accumulated

Stock and Other

Additional Comprehensive Non-

Paid-in Retained Treasury Income controlling

(Millions) Total Capital Earnings Stock (Loss) Interest
Balance at December 31, 2014 $ 13142 $ 4,388 $ 34317 $ (19,307 $ (6,289 $ 33
Net incom: 2,504 2,499 5
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Cumulative translation adjustment (170 (169 Q)
Defined benefit pension and post-retirement platjgsstment 187 187 —
Debt and equity securities - unrealized gain (loss) — — —
Cash flow hedging instruments - unrealized gaisgjo 38 38 —
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 55
Dividends declared (649 (649)
Stock-based compensation, net of tax impacts 306 306
Reacquired stock (2,683 (2,683)
Issuances pursuant to stock option and benefisplan 455 (552 1,007
Balance at June 30, 2015 $ 13,130 $ 4694 $ 35615 $ (20,983) $ (6,233) $ 37

In December 2014, 3M’s Board of Directors declaaditst quarter 2015 dividend of $1.025 per shaed in
March 2015). This reduced 3M'’s stockholder equitgl ancreased other current liabilities as of Decendd, 2014, by

approximately $0.6 billion.
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Changes in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Incomé_¢ss) Attributable to 3M by Component

Three months ended June 30, 2016

Total
Defined Benefit  Debt and Cash Flow Accumulated
Pension and Equity Hedging Other
Cumulative  Postretirement ~ Securities, Instruments, Comprehensive
Translation Plans Unrealized Unrealized Income
(Millions) Adjustment Adjustment Gain (Loss) Gain (Loss) (Loss)
Balance at March 31, 2016, net of tax: $ (1,540 $ (4,735 $ — 3 14 3 (6,261
Other comprehensive income (loss), before tax:
Amounts before reclassifications 59 — — (15) 44
Amounts reclassified out — 101 — (28) 73
Total other comprehensive income (loss), befor 59 101 — (43) 117
Tax effect (22) (34) — 16 (40)
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net ol 37 67 — (27) 77
Balance at June 30, 2016, net of tax: $ (1,503) $ (4668 $ — $ (13) $  (6,184)
Six months ended June 30, 2016
Total
DefinedBenefit  Debt and Cash Flow Accumulated
Pension and Equity Hedging Other
Cumulative  Postretirement  Securities, Instruments, Comprehensive
Translation Plans Unrealized  Unrealized Income
(Millions) Adjustment Adjustment Gain (Loss) Gain (Loss) (Loss)
Balance at December 31, 2015, net of tax: $ (1679 $ (4804 $ — % 124 $ (6,359
Other comprehensive income (loss), before tax:
Amounts before reclassifications 119 — — (136 a7,
Amounts reclassified out — 204 — (80) 124
Total other comprehensive income (loss), befor 119 204 — (216 107
Tax effect 57 (68) — 79 68
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net ol 176 136 — (137, 175
Balance at June 30, 2016, net of tax: $ (1503) $ (4,668) $ — $ (13) $ (6,184)
Three months ended June 30, 2015
Total
DefinedBenefit  Debt and Cash Flow Accumulated
Pension and Equity Hedging Other
Cumulative Postretirement  Securities, Instruments, Comprehensive
Translation Plans Unrealized  Unrealized Income
(Millions) Adjustment Adjustment Gain (Loss) Gain (Loss) (Loss)
Balance at March 31, 2015, net of tax: $ (1,288 3 (5,202 $ — $ 169 $ (6,321,
Other comprehensive income (loss), before tax:
Amounts before reclassifications (12 — — (16) (28
Amounts reclassified out — 141 — (34) 107
Total other comprehensive income (loss), befor (12 141 — (50) 79
Tax effect 36 (45) — 18 9
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of 24 96 — (32) 88
Balance at June 30, 2015, net of tax: $ (1,264 $ (5106) $ — $ 137 $ (6,233)
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Six months ended June 30, 2015

Total
DefinedBenefit  Debt and Cash Flow Accumulated
Pension and Equity Hedging Other
Cumulative  Postretirement ~ Securities, Instruments, Comprehensive
Translation Plans Unrealized  Unrealized Income
(Millions) Adjustment Adjustment Gain (Loss) Gain (Loss) (Loss)
Balance at December 31, 2014, net of tax: $ (1,095 $ (5,293 $ — $ 9 3 (6,289
Other comprehensive income (loss), before tax:
Amounts before reclassifications (56) 24 — 120 88
Amounts reclassified out — 265 — (61) 204
Total other comprehensive income (loss), befor (56) 289 — 59 292
Tax effect (113) (102) — (21) (236)
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net ol (169 187 — 38 56
Balance at June 30, 2015, net of tax $ (1,264) $ (5106) $ — $ 137 $  (6,233)

Income taxes are not provided for foreign transtatielating to permanent investments in internatisubsidiaries, but
tax effects within cumulative translation does it impacts from items such as net investment hedgeactions.
Reclassification adjustments are made to avoid ldozdunting in comprehensive income items thaidse recorded as
part of net income.

Reclassifications out of Accumulated Other Comprehasive Income Attributable to 3M

Amount Reclassified from

Details about Accumulated Other Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
Comprehensive Income Components Three months ended Jun&0, Six months ended Jun&0, Location on Income
(Millions) 2016 2015 2016 2015 Statement

Gains (losses) associated with, defined benefisipan
and postretirement plans amortization

Transition asset $ 1 $ 1 $ 1 $ 1 See Note 9

Prior service benefit 24 17 47 35 See Note 9

Net actuarial loss (126 (159 (252 (318 See Note 9

Curtailments/Settlements — — — 17 See Note 9
Total before tax (201 (141 (204 (265,

Provision for income

Tax effect 34 45 68 91 taxes
Net of tay $ 67 $ 96, $ (136 $ 174

Debt and equity security gains (losses)
Selling, general and
Sales or impairments of securities $ —  $ — 3 — 3 — administrative expenses
Total before tax — — — —

Provision for income

Tax effect — — — — taxes
Net of tas $ — 8 — % — 3 =
Cash flow hedging instruments gains (losses)
Foreign currency forward/option contracts $ 28 $ 35 $ 81 $ 65 Cost of sales
Commodity price swap contracts — — — (2) Cost of sales
Interest rate swap contracts — (1) (1) (2) Interest expense
Total before tax 28 34 80 61
Provision for income
Tax effect (11) (12) (29) (22) taxes
Net of tay $ 17 $ 22 $ 51 $ 39
Total reclassifications for the period, net of tax $ (50) $ 74) $ (85 $ (135)
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NOTE 6. Income Taxes

The Company files income tax returns in the U.8efal jurisdiction, and various states and forgigisdictions. With
few exceptions, the Company is no longer subjett.& federal, state and local, or non-U.S. inctamxeexaminations
by tax authorities for years before 2005.

The IRS has completed its field examination of@menpany’s U.S. federal income tax returns for tearg 2005
through 2014. The Company protested certain IR8ipos within these tax years and entered intcatthainistrative
appeals process with the IRS. In December 201X tmpany received a statutory notice of deficiefarythe 2006
year. The Company filed a petition in Tax Courtha first quarter of 2013 relating to the 2006 yaar.

Currently, the Company is under examination bylR® for its U.S. federal income tax returns for ylears 2015 and
2016. It is anticipated that the IRS will complégexamination of the Company for 2015 by the ehthe first quarter
of 2017 and for 2016 by the end of the first quanfe2018. As of June 30, 2016, the IRS has noppsed any
significant adjustments to the Company’s tax posgifor which the Company is not adequately reskrve

Payments relating to other proposed assessmesitsgaitiom the 2005 through 2016 examinations maybeanade
until a final agreement is reached between the Gamppnd the IRS on such assessments or upon adswution
resulting from the administrative appeals procegadicial action. In addition to the U.S. fedeeatamination, there is
also audit activity in several U.S. state and fgmgurisdictions.

3M anticipates changes to the Company’s uncersipositions due to the closing and resolutionuafitissues for
various audit years mentioned above and closustatiites. The Company is not currently able toaealsly estimate
the amount by which the liability for unrecogniziast benefits will increase or decrease during #w 62 months as a
result of the ongoing income tax authority examora. The total amounts of unrecognized tax bendit, if
recognized, would affect the effective tax rat®@Bdune 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 are $3&8meind $369
million, respectively.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties ederlated to unrecognized tax benefits in tax rgpeThe
Company recognized in the consolidated statemeintcofne on a gross basis approximately $1 millibexpense and
$4 million of benefit for the three months endedel30, 2016 and June 30, 2015, respectively, apcbaimately $3
million of benefit and $2 million of benefit for ¢hsix months ended June 30, 2016 and June 30, &&kectively. At
June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, accruedshtand penalties in the consolidated balance sireatgross basis
were $39 million and $45 million, respectively. limded in these interest and penalty amounts aeedst and penalties
related to tax positions for which the ultimate detibility is highly certain but for which there isicertainty about the
timing of such deductibility. Because of the impatteferred tax accounting, other than interestganalties, the
disallowance of the shorter deductibility periodulebnot affect the annual effective tax rate butildcaccelerate the
payment of cash to the taxing authority to an eageriod.

The effective tax rate for the second quarter df2@as 29.6 percent, compared to 28.1 percentige¢hond quarter of
2015, an increase of 1.5 percentage points. Prifaatgrs that increased the Company’s effectiversds on a
combined basis by 5.3 percentage points year-onigeladed international taxes that were impactgdhanges to both
the geographic mix of income before taxes and amfdit tax expense related to global cash optimoradictions, plus
remeasurements of 3M’s uncertain tax positionss igrease was partially offset by a 3.8 percenpagjets year-on-
year decrease to the Company'’s effective tax Raieary factors that decreased the effective texireluded the
recognition of excess tax benefits beginning in@MMated to employee share-based payments (regfitim the
adoption of ASU No. 2016-09, as discussed in Npt¢he reinstatement of the R&D tax credit, andeoftems.

The effective tax rate for the first six month26fL6 was 28.2 percent, compared to 28.8 percehgifirst six months
of 2015, a decrease of 0.6 percentage points. Brifaetors that decreased the Company’s effectixadte on a
combined basis by 4.5 percentage points for tisé $ix months of 2016 when compared to the samedgéar 2015
included the recognition of excess tax benefitsrregg in 2016 related to employee share-based patsr(resulting
from the adoption of ASU No. 2016-09, as discuseddote 1), the reinstatement of the R&D tax crealitd other
items. This decrease was partially offset by ap@i@entage point year-on-year increase, which dezltinternational
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taxes that were impacted by changes to both thgrgpbic mix of income before taxes and additioaaléxpense
related to global cash optimization actions, pkmeasurements of 3M’s uncertain tax positions.

The provision for income taxes is determined usirggasset and liability approach. Under this apghnpdeferred
income taxes represent the expected future taxeqoiesices of temporary differences between theingramounts and
tax basis of assets and liabilities. The Compangnds a valuation allowance to reduce its defetagdhssets when
uncertainty regarding their realizability exits. 868June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the Coyripechvaluation
allowances of $39 million and $31 million on itSfeleed tax assets, respectively.

NOTE 7. Marketable Securities
The Company invests in asset-backed securitiesficates of deposit/time deposits, commercial papad other

securities. The following is a summary of amoustsorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheet for radoleesecurities
(current and non-current).

June 30, December 31,

(Millions) 2016 2015
Foreign government agency securities $ 10 $ 10
Corporate debt securities 10 10
Commercial paper 36 12
Certificates of deposit/time deposits 55 26
U.S. municipal securities 4 3
Asset-backed securities:

Automobile loan related 36 26

Credit card related 19 10

Other 7 21
Asset-backed securities total 62 57
Current marketable securities $ 177  $ 118
U.S. municipal securities $ 14 3% 9
Non-current marketable securities $ 14 % 9
Total marketable securities $ 191 $ 127

Classification of marketable securities as curognton-current is based on the nature of the siesiand availability
for use in current operations. At June 30, 2016@edember 31, 2015, gross unrealized gains anakdees (pre-tax)
were not material. Refer to Note 5 for a table firawides the net realized gains (losses) relatesdles or impairments
of debt and equity securities, which includes mtatile securities. The gross amounts of the realtiadés or losses
were not material. Cost of securities sold usditkein, first out (FIFO) method. Since these n&dble securities are
classified as available-for-sale securities, changdair value will flow through other comprehersincome, with
amounts reclassified out of other comprehensiverireinto earnings upon sale or “other-than-tempgdiarpairment.

3M reviews impairments associated with its markietalcurities in accordance with the measuremedaguoe
provided by ASC 320nvestments-Debt and Equity Securitieben determining the classification of the impant as
“temporary” or “other-than-temporary”. A temporamgpairment charge results in an unrealized lossgegcorded in
the other comprehensive income component of shifetsd equity. Such an unrealized loss does naigedhet income
attributable to 3M for the applicable accountingipe because the loss is not viewed as other-teenporary. The
factors evaluated to differentiate between temposad other-than-temporary include the projectédréucash flows,
credit ratings actions, and assessment of thetayadlity of the underlying collateral, as well@ber factors.
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The balances at June 30, 2016 for marketable siesuby contractual maturity are shown below. Attaaturities may
differ from contractual maturities because theésswf the securities may have the right to pregdigations without
prepayment penalties.

(Millions) June 30, 2016

Due in one year or less $ 104
Due after one year through five years 87
Total marketable securities $ 191

3M has a diversified marketable securities pomfdiithin this portfolio, asset-backed securitiesmarily include
interests in automobile loans, credit cards andradisset-backed securities. 3M’s investment paliows investments
in asset-backed securities with minimum credinggiof Aa2 by Moody’s Investors Service or AA byisiard &
Poor’s or Fitch Ratings or DBRS. Asset-backed sgéeamust be rated by at least two of the afordioaad rating
agencies, one of which must be Moody’s Investorsi€e or Standard & Poor’s. At June 30, 2016, sflei-backed
security investments were in compliance with thafiqy. Approximately 78.4 percent of all asset-bedlsecurity
investments were rated AAA or A-1+ by Standard &Poand/or Aaa or P-1 by Moody’s Investors Sendoe/or
AAA or F1+ by Fitch Ratings. Interest rate risk amrddit risk related to the underlying collateradymmpact the value
of investments in asset-backed securities, whdtofa such as general conditions in the overatlitrearket and the
nature of the underlying collateral may affect liljaidity of investments in asset-backed securit&¥d does not
currently expect risk related to its holding inetslsacked securities to materially impact its ficiahcondition or
liquidity.

NOTE 8. Long-Term Debt and Short-Term Borrowings

In May 2016, 3M issued 500 million Euro aggregatagipal amount of 5.75-year fixed rate medium-terotes due
February 2022 with a coupon rate of 0.375% andrBiliibn Euro aggregate principal amount of 15-yieed rate
medium-term notes due 2031 with a coupon rate5§¥%.

In March 2016, 3M amended and restated its exi$hg5 billion five-year revolving credit facilityxpiring in August
2019 to a $3.75 billion five-year revolving crefiitility expiring in March 2021. This credit agreem includes a
provision under which 3M may request an increasgpab $1.25 billion (at lender’s discretion), lging the total
facility up to $5.0 billion. This revolving credicility is undrawn at June 30, 2016. Under ther$dillion credit
agreement, the Company is required to maintaiBBE DA to Interest Ratio as of the end of eachdlguarter at not
less than 3.0 to 1. This is calculated (as defingbe agreement) as the ratio of consolidated EBAT DA for the four
consecutive quarters then ended to a total intesgxtnse on all funded debt for the same perioduAe 30, 2016, this
ratio was approximately 51 to 1. Debt covenantaalaestrict the payment of dividends.
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NOTE 9. Pension and Postretirement Benefit Plans

Net periodic benefit cost is recorded in cost ¢désaselling, general and administrative expereed,research,
development and related expenses. Components pEnetlic benefit cost and other supplemental mfion for the
three and six months ended June 30, 2016 and 20b&/f

Benefit Plan Information

Three months ended June 30,
Qualified and Non-qualified

Pension Benefits Postretirement
United States International Benefits
(Millions) 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Net periodic benefit cost (benefit)
Service cost $ 65 $ 73 $ 34 $40 $ 14 $ 22
Interest cost 144 164 43 55 19 25
Expected return on plan assets (261 (267, (78 (81 (220 (23)
Amortization of transition (asset) obligation — — Q) (1) — —
Amortization of prior service cost (benefit) (6) (6) 4) 3 (@4 (8)
Amortization of net actuarial (gain) loss 88 102 23 38 15 19
Settlements, curtailments, special termination benand other — — — — — —
Net periodic benefit cost (benefit) after settletsenurtailments, speci
termination benefits and other $ 30 $ 66 $ 17 $ 48 $ 12 $ 35

Six months ended June 30,
Qualified and Non-qualified

Pension Benefits Postretirement
United States International Benefits
(Millions) 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Net periodic benefit cost (benefit)
Service cost $ 130 $ 146 $ 67 $ 82 $ 27 $ 43
Interest cost 287 328 86 110 39 50
Expected return on plan assets (521 (534, (156 (162, (45) (45)
Amortization of transition (asset) obligation — — (1) 1) — —
Amortization of prior service cost (benefit) 1z (12 @ (7) (28 (16)
Amortization of net actuarial (gain) loss 176 204 45 76 31 38
Settlements, curtailments, special termination benand other — — — a7 — —
Net periodic benefit cost (benefit) after settletsenurtailments, speci
termination benefits and other $ 60 $132 $ 34 $ 81 $24 $ 70

For the six months ended June 30, 2016, contribsitiotaling $95 million were made to the Company’S. and
international pension plans and $2 million to itsfetirement plans. For total year 2016, the Camgepects to
contribute between approximately $200 million t@@4million of cash to its global defined benefing®n and
postretirement plans. The Company does not haggquared minimum cash pension contribution obligafior its U.S.
plans in 2016. Future contributions will dependnaarket conditions, interest rates and other facfivBs annual
measurement date for pension and postretiremeeitsaasd liabilities is December 31 each year, whidiso the date
used for the related annual measurement assumptions

Beginning in 2016, 3M changed the method usedtimate the service and interest cost componertiseofet periodic
pension and other postretirement benefit costs.nEmemethod measures service cost and interessepatately using
the spot yield curve approach applied to each spmeding obligation. Service costs are determirasgt) on duration-
specific spot rates applied to the service codt flasvs. The interest cost calculation is deterrdibg applying
duration-specific spot rates to the year-by-yeajguted benefit payments. The spot yield curve @gqgr does not affect
the measurement of the total benefit obligationthashange in service and interest costs offsetaractuarial gains
and losses recorded in other comprehensive incbheCompany changed to the new method to providera precise
measure of service and interest costs by improtriagorrelation between the projected benefit iasts and the
discrete spot yield curve rates. The Company adeduior this change as a change in estimate pragplcbeginning
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in the first quarter of 2016. As a result of theaehe to the spot yield curve approach, 2016 ardefaied benefit
pension and postretirement net periodic benefit lsas decreased approximately $180 million.

Using this methodology, the Company determinedadistrates for its plans as follows:

International
Pension uU.S.
U.S. Qualified (weighted Postretirement
Pension average) Medical

December 31, 2015 Liability:

Benefit obligation 4.47% 3.12% 4.32%
2016 Net Periodic Benefit Cost Components:

Service cost 4.72% 2.84% 4.60%

Interest cost 3.77% 2.72% 3.44%

The Company also sponsors employee savings plates @ection 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Codeélismissed in
Note 11 in 3M’s Current Report on Form 8-K datedyMa, 2016 (which updated 3M’s 2015 Annual ReporfForm
10-K). Beginning on January 1, 2016, for U.S. ergpls, the Company reduced its match on employegk@01
contributions. For eligible employees hired priodanuary 1, 2009, employee 401(k) contributiongpofo 5% of
eligible compensation are matched in cash at Htd5% or 60%, depending on the plan in which tmpleyee
participates. Employees hired on or after Janua®0Q9, receive a cash match of 100% for emplogdgid
contributions of up to 5% of eligible compensatamd also continue to receive an employer retirenmsoime account
cash contribution of 3% of the participant’s tatlifible compensation.

In August 2015, 3M modified the 3M Retiree Welf&@enefit Plan postretirement medical benefit redgehe future
benefit for participants not retired as of Januar2016. Current retirees and employees who retiredr before
January 1, 2016, were not impacted by these chafmpesRetiree Medical Savings Account (RMSA) islorager
credited with interest, and the indexation on bbthRMSA and the Medicare Health Reimbursementrigeanent was
reduced from 3 percent to 1.5 percent per yeattlifase employees who are eligible for these acspuatso effective
January 1, 2016, 3M no longer offered 3M RetirealttieCare Accounts to new hires. Due to these atmtite plan
was re-measured in the third quarter of 2015, tieguin a decrease to the projected benefit ohibgdtability of
approximately $233 million, and a related incre@msshareholders’ equity, specifically accumulatéueo
comprehensive income.

In March 2015, 3M Japan modified the Japan Limibedined Benefit Corporate Pension Plan (DBCPP).i38gg

July 1, 2015, eligible employees receive a compganyided contribution match of 6.12% of their diilgi salary to their
defined contribution plan. Employees no longer eatditional service towards their defined benedihgion plans after
July 1, 2015, except for eligible salaries abowedtatutory defined contribution limits. As a reésflthis plan
modification, the Company re-measured the DBCPR;twiesulted in a $17 million pre-tax curtailmemirgfor the six
months ended June 30, 2015.

3M was informed during the first quarter of 200®attthe general partners of WG Trading Companwhicth 3M’s
benefit plans hold limited partnership interests, the subject of a criminal investigation as vaslicivil proceedings by
the SEC and CFTC (Commodity Futures Trading Comiomsin March 2011, over the objections of 3M aixother
limited partners of WG Trading Company, the distdourt judge ruled in favor of the court appointedeiver’s
proposed distribution plan (and in April 2013, theited States Court of Appeals for the Second @iaffirmed the
district court’s ruling). The benefit plan trusteeldings of WG Trading Company interests were adjliso reflect the
decreased estimated fair market value, inclusivestimated insurance proceeds, as of the annuaurezaent dates.
The Company has insurance that it believes, basedhat is currently known, will result in the prdida recovery of a
portion of the decrease in original asset valughénfirst quarter of 2014, 3M and certain 3M bénghns filed a
lawsuit in the U.S. District Court for the Distriof Minnesota against five insurers seeking insceatoverage for the
WG Trading Company claim. In September 2015, thetawled in favor of the defendant insurance coniggon a
motion for summary judgment and dismissed the la@wsuOctober 2015, 3M and the 3M benefit plaredia notice of
appeal to the United States Court of Appeals ferlghth Circuit. As of the 2015 measurement dhiese holdings
represented less than one half of one percent ¢ &M value of total plan assets. 3M currentljidees that the
resolution of these events will not have a matexihlerse effect on the consolidated financial pmsivf the Company.
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NOTE 10. Derivatives

The Company uses interest rate swaps, currencysswammodity price swaps, and forward and optiartre@ts to
manage risks generally associated with foreign amgh rate, interest rate and commodity price fatidns. The
information that follows explains the various typdslerivatives and financial instruments used bl Bow and why
3M uses such instruments, how such instrumentaareunted for, and how such instruments impact Jiiancial
position and performance.

Additional information with respect to the impaots other comprehensive income of nonderivative megdgnd
derivative instruments is included in Note 5. Adxtial information with respect to the fair valuedafrivative
instruments is included in Note 11. Referencesfarmation regarding derivatives and/or hedgingrimaents
associated with the Company’s long-term debt &e adade in Note 10 in 3M’s Current Report on Fori @ated May
17, 2016 (which updated 3M’s 2015 Annual ReporEorm 10-K).

Types of Derivatives/Hedging Instruments and Inolugn Income/Other Comprehensive Income

Cash Flow Hedges:

For derivative instruments that are designatedopradify as cash flow hedges, the effective portbthe gain or loss
on the derivative is reported as a component afratbmprehensive income and reclassified into agsiin the same
period during which the hedged transaction affearmings. Gains and losses on the derivative reptieg either hedge
ineffectiveness or hedge components excluded frmnassessment of effectiveness are recognizedrnent@arnings.

Cash Flow Hedging - Foreign Currency Forward andtiop Contracts:The Company enters into foreign exchange
forward and option contracts to hedge against tleeteof exchange rate fluctuations on cash flo@saiminated in
foreign currencies. These transactions are desidras cash flow hedges. The settlement or extensithese
derivatives will result in reclassifications (freaecumulated other comprehensive income) to earminte period
during which the hedged transactions affect eamiflyl may dedesignate these cash flow hedge ne#tips in
advance of the occurrence of the forecasted tréinsad he portion of gains or losses on the deneainstrument
previously accumulated in other comprehensive ireéon dedesignated hedges remains in accumulated ot
comprehensive income until the forecasted transaciccurs. Changes in the value of derivative imsénts after
dedesignation are recorded in earnings and anedadlin the Derivatives Not Designated as Hedgistyliments
section below. Beginning in the second quarterddf4 3M began extending the maximum length of tower which it
hedges its exposure to the variability in futurshcfiows of the forecasted transactions from aiptessterm of 12
months to a longer term of 24 months, with certairrencies being extended further to 36 monthsistain the first
quarter of 2015.

Cash Flow Hedging - Commodity Price Managem&ihie Company manages commodity price risks throagjotiated
supply contracts, price protection agreements antldrd contracts. 3M discontinued the use of conityqutice swaps
as cash flow hedges of forecasted commodity trdiasecin the first quarter of 2015. The Companydusemmodity
price swaps as cash flow hedges of forecasted calityrtoansactions to manage price volatility. Th&ated mark-to-
market gain or loss on qualifying hedges was inetlish other comprehensive income to the extentefie, and
reclassified into cost of sales in the period dymvhich the hedged transaction affected earnings.

Cash Flow Hedging — Interest Rate Contradtee Company may use forward starting interestcatgracts to hedge
exposure to variability in cash flows from fore@abstiebt issuances. The amortization of gains asskfoon forward
starting interest rate swaps is included in théetabelow as part of the gain/(loss) recognizeiddnme on the effective
portion of derivatives as a result of reclassifimatfrom accumulated other comprehensive incomelitiahal
information regarding previously issued and ter@danterest rate contracts can be found in Note BM’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated May 17, 2016 (which upd&te!'s 2015 Annual Report on Form 10-K).
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In the first six months of 2016, the Company erdanto forward starting interest rate swaps exgiiimDecember 2016
with an aggregate notional amount of $300 millisraghedge against interest rate volatility assediatith a forecasted

issuance of fixed rate debt.

As of June 30, 2016, the Company had a balanc&®f$llion associated with the after-tax net uniz=d loss
associated with cash flow hedging instruments @@@in accumulated other comprehensive income.ifbigdes a
remaining balance of $5 million (after tax losdpted to the forward starting interest rate swagsch will be
amortized over the respective lives of the debsdBleon exchange rates as of June 30, 2016, 3M tsxpeeclassify
approximately $20 million of the after-tax net ualieed foreign exchange cash flow hedging gaireaimings over the
remainder of 2016, approximately $12 million of #feer-tax net unrealized foreign exchange cash fledging losses
to earnings in 2017, and approximately $21 millidithe after-tax net unrealized foreign exchangéhdbow hedging
losses to earnings after 2017 (with the impactedffy earnings/losses from underlying hedged iteBid)expects to
reclassify approximately $12 million of the aftexxtnet unrealized foreign exchange cash flow heylgains to

earnings over the next 12 months.

The location in the consolidated statements ofime@nd comprehensive income and amounts of gathkases
related to derivative instruments designated als ltas/ hedges are provided in the following table.

Three months ended June 30, 2016

Derivatives in Cash Flow Hedging Relationships

Pretax Gain (Loss)
Recognized in Other
Comprehensive
Income on Effective
Pdion of Derivative

Pretax Gain (Loss) Recognized in

Income on Effective Portion of
Derivative as a Result of
Reclassification from
Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income

Ineffective Portim of Gain

(Loss) on Derivative ah
Amount Exclded from
Effectiveness Testing
Recognizeith Income

(Millions) Amount Location Amount Location Amount

Foreign currency forward/option contracts $ (11) Cost of sales $ 28 Cost of sales $ =

Interest rate swap contracts (4) Interest expense — Interest expense —
Total $ (15) $ 28 $ —

Six months ended June 30, 2016

Derivatives in Cash Flow Hedging Relationships

Pretax Gain (Loss)
Recognized in Other
Comprehensive
Income on Effective
Pdon of Derivative

Pretax Gain (Loss) Recognized in

Income on Effective Portion of
Derivative as a Result of
Reclassification from
Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income

Ineffective Portim of Gain

(Loss) on Derivative ah
Amount Exclded from
Effectiveness Testing
Recognizeit Income

(Millions) Amount Location Amount Location Amount

Foreign currency forward/option contracts $ (131, Costofsales $ 81 Costofsales $ —

Interest rate swap contracts (5) Interest expense (1) Interest expense —
Total $ 136, $ 80 $ —

Three months ended June 30, 2015

Derivatives in Cash Flow Hedging Relationships

Pretax Gain (Loss)
Recognized in Other
Comprehensive
Income on Effective
Pdon of Derivative

Pretax Gain (Loss) Recognized in

Income on Effective Portion of
Derivative as a Result of
Reclassification from
Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income

Ineffective Portim of Gain

(Loss) on Derivative ah
Amount Exclded from
Effectiveness Testing
Recognizeit Income

(Millions) Amount Location Amount Location Amount

Foreign currency forward/option contracts $ (16) Cost of sales $ 35 Cost of sales $ =

Interest rate swap contracts — Interest expense (1) Interest expense —
Total $ (16) $ 34 $ —
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Six months ended June 30, 2015

Derivatives in Cash Flow Hedging Relationships

Pretax Gain (Loss) Recognized in

Income on Effective Portion of
Derivative as a Result of
Reclassification from
Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income

Pretax Gain (Loss)
Recognized in Other
Comprehensive
Income on Effective
Pdion of Derivative

Ineffective Portio of Gain

(Loss) on Derivative ah
Amount Exclded from
Effectiveness Testing
Recognizeit Income

(Millions) Amount Location Amount Location Amount
Foreign currency forward/option contracts $ 120 Costofsales $ 65 Costofsales $ —
Commodity price swap contracts — Cost of sales (2) Cost of sales —
Interest rate swap contracts — Interest expens (2) Interest expens —
Total $ 120 $ 61 $ —

Fair Value Hedges:

For derivative instruments that are designatedopradify as fair value hedges, the gain or losshenderivatives as well
as the offsetting loss or gain on the hedged iteribatable to the hedged risk are recognized imexut earnings.

Fair Value Hedging - Interest Rate Swajp$ie Company manages interest expense using afriiked and floating
rate debt. To help manage borrowing costs, the @asnmay enter into interest rate swaps. Under tags@gements,
the Company agrees to exchange, at specified aighe difference between fixed and floatingriese amounts
calculated by reference to an agreed-upon notjpmatipal amount. The mark-to-market of these Yaiue hedges is
recorded as gains or losses in interest expensis afidet by the gain or loss of the underlyingptdastrument, which
also is recorded in interest expense. These faiev@edges are highly effective and, thus, thermisnpact on earnings
due to hedge ineffectiveness. Additional informatiegarding designated interest rate swaps caourglfin Note 12 in
3M'’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 17, 2QdBich updated 3M’s 2015 Annual Report on Form 1)0-K

The location in the consolidated statements ofrime@nd amounts of gains and losses related toati@gvinstruments
designated as fair value hedges and similar infaomaelative to the hedged items are as follows:

Three months ended June 30, 2016

Derivatives in Fair Value Hedging Relationships

Gain (Loss) on Derivative
Reognized in Income

Gain (Loss) on Hedged Item
Recognized in Income

(Millions) Location Amount Location Amount
Interest rate swap contracts Interest expens  $ 5 Interest expens $ (5)
Total $ 5 $ (5)

Six months ended June 30, 2016

Derivatives in Fair Value Hedging Relationships

Gain (Loss) on Derivative
Reognized in Income

Gain (Loss) on Hedged Item
Recognized in Income

(Millions) Location Amount Location Amount
Interest rate swap contracts Interest expens  $ 34 Interest expens $ (34
Total $ 34 $ (34)

Three months ended June 30, 2015

Derivatives in Fair Value Hedging Relationships

Gain (Loss) on Derivative
Reognized in Income

Gain (Loss) on Hedged Item
Recognized in Income

(Millions) Location Amount Location Amount
Interest rate swap contracts Interest expens  $ (11, Interest expens $ 11
Total $ (11) 11
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Six months ended June 30, 2015

Gain (Loss) on Derivative Gain (Loss) on Hedged Item
Derivatives in Fair Value Hedging Relationships Reognized in Income Recognized in Income
(Millions) Location Amount Location Amount
Interest rate swap contracts Interest expens  $ (5) Interest expens $ 5
Total $ (5) $ 5

Net Investment Hedges:

The Company may use non-derivative (foreign culyatenominated debt) and derivative (foreign exclediogward
contracts) instruments to hedge portions of the @amyg’'s investment in foreign subsidiaries and marfageign
exchange risk. For instruments that are desigremtddjualify as hedges of net investments in forejgerations and
that meet the effectiveness requirements, theaies@r losses attributable to changes in spotamgdhrates are
recorded in cumulative translation within other goehensive income. The remainder of the changalurevof such
instruments is recorded in earnings. Recognitiomaimings of amounts previously recorded in cunugdtanslation is
limited to circumstances such as complete or snbatly complete liquidation of the net investmémthe hedged
foreign operation. To the extent foreign currenepaminated debt is not designated in or is dedatggfrom a net
investment hedge relationship, changes in valubaifportion of foreign currency denominated dal# tb exchange
rate changes are recorded in earnings throughniegirity date.

3M'’s use of foreign exchange forward contracts giesiied in hedges of the Company’s net investmefaraign
subsidiaries can vary by time period depending bamwforeign currency denominated debt balancegulatsd in such
relationships are dedesignated, matured, or aré/nesued and designated. Additionally, variati@m©ccur in
connection with the extent of the Company’s desfoedign exchange risk coverage.

At June 30, 2016, the total notional amount of ifgmeexchange forward contracts designated in netstment hedges
was approximately 150 million Euros and approxinya2@8 billion South Korean Won, along with a piijmel amount
of long-term debt instruments designated in ne¢stment hedges totaling 4.4 billion Euros. The migtdates of these
derivative and nonderivative instruments designatatkt investment hedges range from 2016 to 2031.

The location in the consolidated statements ofrime@nd comprehensive income and amounts of gathbases
related to derivative and nonderivative instrumelgsignated as net investment hedges are as folldwse were no
reclassifications of the effective portion of netéstment hedges out of accumulated other compseleeimcome into
income for the periods presented in the table below

Three months ended June 30, 2016

Pretax Gain (Loss)
Recognized as
Cumulative Translation

within Other Ineffective Portion of Gain (Loss) on
Comprehensive Income Instrument and Amount Excluded
Derivative and Nonderivative Instruments in Net Investment Hedging on Effective Portion of from Effectiveness Testing
Relationships Instrument Recognized in Income
(Millions) Amount Location Amount
Foreign currency denominated debt $ 94 N/A $ =
Foreign currency forward contracts 16 Cost of sales 3
Total $ 110 $ 3
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Six months ended June 30, 2016

Derivative and Nonderivative Instruments in Net Innestment Hedging

Pretax Gain (Loss)
Recognized as
Cumulative Translation
within Other Ineffective Portion of Gain (Loss) on
Comprehensive Income Instrument and Amount Excluded
on Effective Portion of from Effectiveness Testing

Relationships Instrument Recognized in Income
(Millions) Amount Location Amount
Foreign currency denominated debt $ (50) N/A $ =
Foreign currency forward contracts (27) Cost of sales 1
Total $ (77) $ 1

Three months ended June 30, 2015

Derivative and Nonderivative Instruments in Net Investment Hedging

Pretax Gain (Loss)
Recognized as
Cumulative Translation
within Other Ineffective Portion of Gain (Loss) on
Comprehensive Income Instrument and Amount Excluded
on Effective Portion of from Effectiveness Testing

Relationships Instrument Recognized in Income
(Millions) Amount Location Amount
Foreign currency denominated debt $ (55) N/A $ —
Foreign currency forward contracts (5%)ost of sales 4
Total $ (110 $ 4

Six months ended June 30, 2015

Derivative and Nonderivative Instruments in Net Innestment Hedging

Pretax Gain (Loss)
Recognized as
Cumulative Translation
within Other Ineffective Portion of Gain (Loss) on
Comprehensive Income Instrument and Amount Excluded
on Effective Portion of from Effectiveness Testing

Relationships Instrument Recognized in Income
(Millions) Amount Location Amount
Foreign currency denominated debt $ 185 N/A $ =
Foreign currency forward contracts 10Zost of sales 4
Total $ 287 $ 4

Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments:

3M enters into foreign exchange forward contralets ire not designated in hedge relationshipsfsenfin part, the
impacts of certain intercompany transactions arfdrtber mitigate short-term currency impacts. didiéion, the
Company enters into commodity price swaps to affsgbart, fluctuations in costs associated with tise of certain
precious metals. These derivative instruments arel@signated in hedging relationships; thereffaie value gains and
losses on these contracts are recorded in earfihgsCompany does not hold or issue derivativenfira instruments

for trading purposes.
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The location in the consolidated statements ofriime@nd amounts of gains and losses related toafi@gvinstruments
not designated as hedging instruments are as fellow

Three months ended June 30, 2016 Six months ended June 30, 2016
Gain (Loss) on Derivative Recognized in Gain (Loss) on Derivative Recognized in
Derivatives Not Designhated as Hedging Instruments Income Income
(Millions) Location Amount Location Amount
Foreign currency forward/option contracts Cost of sales $ (1) Cost of sales $ (6)
Foreign currency forward contracts Interest expe 49 Interest expense 42
Total 48 $ 36
Three months ended June 30, 2015 Six months ended June 30, 2015
Gain (Loss) on Derivative Recognized in Gain (Loss) on Derivative Recognized in
Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments Income Income
(Millions) Location Amount Location Amount
Foreign currency forward/option contracts Cost of sales $ 1 Cost of sales $ 5
Foreign currency forward contracts Interest espe (61) Interest expense 28
Commodity price swap contracts Cost of sales — Cost of sales (4)
Total $ (60) $ 29
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Location and Fair Value Amount of Derivative Instrents

The following tables summarize the fair value of’8Merivative instruments, excluding nonderivatinstruments used
as hedging instruments, and their location in thesolidated balance sheet. Notional amounts betewpresented at
period end foreign exchange rates, except inteadstswaps, which are presented using the coniregption date’s
foreign exchange rate. Additional information widspect to the fair value of derivative instrumastisicluded in Note
11.

Gross Assets Liabilities
June 30, 2016 Notional Fair Fair
(Millions) Amount Location Value Amount Location Value Amount
Derivatives designated as
hedging instruments
Foreign currency forward/option contrac  $ 2,371 Other current asset:  $ 56 Other current liabilitie $ 54
Foreign currency forward/option contracts 1,187 Other assets 35 Other liabilities 35
Interest rate swap contracts 2,053 Other assets 58 Other current liabilitie 5
Total derivatives designated as hedgir
instruments $ 149 $ 94
Derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments
Foreign currency forward/option contracts $ 5,365 Other current assets $ 94  Other current liabilities $ 97
Total derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments $ 94 $ 97
Total derivative instruments $ 243 $ 191
Gross Assets Liabilities
December 31, 2015 Notional Fair Fair
(Millions) Amount Location Value Amount Location Value Amount
Derivatives designated as
hedging instruments
Foreign currency forward/option contrac $ 2,815 Other current asset:  $ 148 Other current liabilitie  $ 14
Foreign currency forward/option contracts 1,24@®ther assets 61 Other liabilities 3
Interest rate swap contracts 1,753 Other assets 24  Other liabilities 1
Total derivatives designated as hedgir
instruments $ 233 $ 18
Derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments
Foreign currency forward/option contracts $ 5,359 Other current assets $ 63  Other current liabilities $ 51
Total derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments $ 63 $ 51
Total derivative instruments $ 296 $ 69

Credit Risk and Offsetting of Assets and Liab#itié Derivative Instruments

The Company is exposed to credit loss in the esEnbnperformance by counterparties in interest sataps, currency
swaps, commodity price swaps, and forward and pmtamtracts. However, the Company’s risk is limitedhe fair
value of the instruments. The Company actively rnowsiits exposure to credit risk through the useretlit approvals
and credit limits, and by selecting major interoaél banks and financial institutions as countaipgr3M enters into
master netting arrangements with counterpartieswgessible to mitigate credit risk in derivativarisactions. A master
netting arrangement may allow each counterpartetcsettle amounts owed between a 3M entity anddbaterparty
as a result of multiple, separate derivative tratisas. As of June 30, 2016, 3M has Internationedy$ and Derivatives
Association (ISDA) agreements with 16 applicablaksaand financial institutions which contain negtiprovisions. In
addition to a master agreement with 3M supported pyimary counterparty’s parent guarantee, 3M hésoassociated
credit support agreements in place with 15 ofitary derivative counterparties which, among othérgs, provide
the circumstances under which either party is meguio post eligible collateral (when the markdtigaof transactions
covered by these agreements exceeds specifieddtssor if a counterparty’s credit rating has bdewngraded to a
predetermined rating). The Company does not asmtieiponperformance by any of these counterparties.
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3M has elected to present the fair value of dekreadissets and liabilities within the Company’s saidated balance
sheet on a gross basis even when derivative tramsa@re subject to master netting arrangememtsray otherwise
qualify for net presentation. However, the follogitables provide information as if the Company &ksttted to offset
the asset and liability balances of derivativerunsients, netted in accordance with various critieriiie event of default
or termination as stipulated by the terms of ngtirrangements with each of the counterpartiese&on counterparty,
if netted, the Company would offset the asset &tiility balances of all derivatives at the endla# reporting period
based on the 3M entity that is a party to the &atisns. Derivatives not subject to master netiiggeements are not
eligible for net presentation. As of the applicafbéees presented below, no collateral had beeivester pledged
related to these derivative instruments.

Offsetting of Financial Assets under Master NettingAgreements with Derivative Counterparties

June 30, 2016

Gross Amount of

Derivative Assets

Presented in the
Consolidated

Gross Amounts not Offset in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet that are Subject
to Master Netting Agreements
Gross Amount of
Eligible Offsetting
Recognized

Cash Collateral Net Aot of

(Millions) Balance Sheet Derivative Liabilities Received Derivative Assets
Derivatives subject to master netting
agreements $ 243 % 74 % — % 169
Derivatives not subject to master netting
agreements — —
Total $ 243 $ 169

December 31, 2015

Gross Amount of

Derivative Assets

Presented in the
Consolidated

Gross Amounts not Offset in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet that are Subject
to Master Netting Agreements
Gross Amount of
Eligible Offsetting
Recognized

Cash Collateral Net Aot of

(Millions) Balance Sheet Derivative Liabilities Received Derivative Assets
Derivatives subject to master netting
agreements $ 296 $ 37 % — % 259
Derivatives not subject to master netting
agreements — —
Total $ 296 $ 259

Offsetting of Financial Liabilities under Master Netting Agreements with Derivative Counterparties

June 30, 2016

Gross Amount of
Derivative Liabilities
Presented in the
Consolidated

Gross Amounts not Offset in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet that are Subject
to Master Netting Agreements
Gross Amount of
Eligible Offsetting
Recognized

Cash Collateral Net Aot of

(Millions) Balance Sheet Derivative Assets Pledd Derivative Liabilities
Derivatives subject to master netting
agreements $ 180 $ 74 0% — % 106
Derivatives not subject to master netting
agreements 11 11
Total $ 191 $ 117
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December 31, 2015 Gross Amounts not Offset in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet that are Subject

Gross Amount of to Master Netting Agreements
Derivative Liabilities Gross Amount of
Presented in the Eligible Offsetting
Consolidated Recognized Cash Collateral Net Amat of
(Millions) Balance Sheet Derivative Assets Pledd Derivative Liabilities
Derivatives subject to master netting
agreements $ 64 $ 37 % — 3% 27
Derivatives not subject to master netting
agreements 5 5
Total $ 69 $ 32

Currency Effects

3M estimates that year-on-year foreign currencysaations effects, including hedging impacts, desed pre-tax
income by approximately $10 million for the threemths ended June 30, 2016, which resulted in anmailnimpact for
the six months ended June 30, 2016. These estiinatade transaction gains and losses, includiniydéve
instruments designed to reduce foreign currenchaxge rate risks and any impacts from swapping Xszian
bolivars into U.S. dollars.

NOTE 11. Fair Value Measurements

3M follows ASC 820Fair Value Measurements and Disclosyredth respect to assets and liabilities that aeasured
at fair value on a recurring basis and nonrecurpiagjs. Under the standard, fair value is defireetha exit price, or the
amount that would be received to sell an asseair o transfer a liability in an orderly transactibetween market
participants as of the measurement date. The sthadko establishes a hierarchy for inputs useddasuring fair value
that maximizes the use of observable inputs andhmies the use of unobservable inputs by requitliag the most
observable inputs be used when available. Obserwapiits are inputs market participants would nseiuing the
asset or liability developed based on market dbtaiwed from sources independent of the Compangbbkrvable
inputs are inputs that reflect the Company’s asdiomp about the factors market participants wowld i valuing the
asset or liability developed based upon the béstrimation available in the circumstances. The mmais broken
down into three levels. Level 1 inputs are quotedgs (unadjusted) in active markets for identasdets or liabilities.
Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similasets or liabilities in active markets, quoted psitar identical or
similar assets or liabilities in markets that ao¢ active, and inputs (other than quoted pricea &ine observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectlyevel 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for thetamskability.
Categorization within the valuation hierarchy iséd upon the lowest level of input that is sigmifitto the fair value
measurement.

Assets and Liabilities that are Measured at Faifi¢aon a Recurring Basis:

For 3M, assets and liabilities that are measurddiavalue on a recurring basis primarily relaieavailable-for-sale
marketable securities, available-for-sale investséncluded as part of investments in the Constdid Balance Sheet)
and certain derivative instruments. Derivativesude cash flow hedges, interest rate swaps anshviestment hedges.
The information in the following paragraphs andéeatprimarily addresses matters relative to themm€ial assets and
liabilities. Separately, there were no material f@lue measurements with respect to nonfinansiss or liabilities
that are recognized or disclosed at fair valusnén@ompany’s financial statements on a recurrirgistfar the three and
six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015.
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3M uses various valuation techniques, which anmgrily based upon the market and income approachtsrespect
to financial assets and liabilities. Following isl@scription of the valuation methodologies usedHe respective
financial assets and liabilities measured at falus.

Available-for-sale marketable securities — excegtain U.S. municipal securities:

Marketable securities, except certain U.S. munl@paurities, are valued utilizing multiple sourcAsveighted average
market price is used for these securities. Markieep are obtained for these securities from aetsanf industry
standard data providers, security master files fiamge financial institutions, and other third-gasburces. These
multiple prices are used as inputs into a distitniturve-based algorithm to determine the daily\falue to be used.
3M classifies U.S. treasury securities as leveltiile all other marketable securities (excludinga&i@ U.S. municipal
securities) are classified as level 2. Marketablausties are discussed further in Note 7.

Available-for-sale marketable securities — certdis. municipal securities only:

In the fourth quarter of 2014 and first quarte261.6, 3M obtained municipal bonds from the CityNefvada, Missouri,
which represent 3M’s only U.S. municipal securitieéding as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2DAé& to the
nature of this security, the valuation method zeitl will include the financial health of the Citl/evada, any recent
municipal bond issuances by Nevada, and macroedorammsiderations related to the direction of iegtrates and the
health of the overall municipal bond market, andwish has been classified as a level 3 security.

Available-for-sale investments:

Investments include equity securities that areelaid an active market. Closing stock prices aaglitg available from
active markets and are used as being representdtfag value. 3M classifies these securitiesea®l 1.

Derivative instruments:

The Company’s derivative assets and liabilitieimithe scope of ASC 81Berivatives and Hedgingre required to
be recorded at fair value. The Company’s derivatiteat are recorded at fair value include foreigmency forward and
option contracts, commodity price swaps, interatt swaps, and net investment hedges where théngadgtrument is
recorded at fair value. Net investment hedgesubatforeign currency denominated debt to hedge 3itsnvestment
are not impacted by the fair value measurementiatanunder ASC 820, as the debt used as the hebfgitngment is
marked to a value with respect to changes in spetdn currency exchange rates and not with redpeather factors
that may impact fair value.

3M has determined that foreign currency forwardsnmodity price swaps, currency swaps, foreign cuyeptions,
interest rate swaps and cross-currency swaps &itomsidered level 2 measurements. 3M uses inghes than quoted
prices that are observable for the asset. Thesgspclude foreign currency exchange rates, \litlas, and interest
rates. Derivative positions are primarily valuethgsstandard calculations/models that use as fais readily
observable market parameters. Industry standaedpfaviders are 3M’s primary source for forward apdt rate
information for both interest rates and currendgsawith resulting valuations periodically validdtthrough third-party
or counterparty quotes and a net present valuamstod cash flows model.
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The following tables provide information by levekfassets and liabilities that are measured av#&ire on a recurring
basis.

Fair Value Measurements

Description Fair Value at Using Inputs Considered as
(Millions) June 30, 2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets:

Available-for-sale:
Marketable securities:

Foreign government agency securities $ 10 $ — 3 10 $ —
Corporate debt securities 10 — 10 —
Commercial paper 36 — 36 —
Certificates of deposit/time deposits 55 — 55 —
Asset-backed securities:
Automobile loan related 36 — 36 —
Credit card related 19 — 19 —
Other 7 — 7 —
U.S. municipal securities 18 — — 18
Derivative instruments — assets:
Foreign currency forward/option contracts 185 — 185 —
Interest rate swap contracts 58 — 58 —
Liabilities:
Derivative instruments — liabilities:
Foreign currency forward/option contracts 186 — 186 —
Interest rate swap contracts 5 — 5 —

Fair Value Measurements

Description Fair Value at Using Inputs Considered as
(Millions) December3l, 201! Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets:

Available-for-sale:
Marketable securities:

Foreign government agency securities $ 10 $ — 3 10 $ —
Corporate debt securities 10 — 10 —
Commercial paper 12 — 12 —
Certificates of deposit/time deposits 26 — 26 —
Asset-backed securities:
Automobile loan related 26 — 26 —
Credit card related 10 — 10 —
Other 21 — 21 —
U.S. municipal securities 12 — — 12
Derivative instruments — assets:
Foreign currency forward/option contracts 272 — 272 —
Interest rate swap contracts 24 — 24 —
Liabilities:
Derivative instruments — liabilities:
Foreign currency forward/option contracts 68 — 68 —
Interest rate swap contracts 1 — 1 —
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The following table provides a reconciliation oétheginning and ending balances of items measutifadt aalue on a
recurring basis in the table above that used saamif unobservable inputs (Level 3).

Three months ended Six months ended
Marketable securities — certain U.S. municipal seatties only June 30, June 30,
(Millions) 2016 2015 2016 2015
Beginning balance $ 18 $ 15 $ 12 $ 15

Total gains or losses:
Included in earnings — — — —
Included in other comprehensive income — — — —
Purchases and issuances — — 6 —
Sales and settlements — — — —
Transfers in and/or out of level 3 — — — —
Ending balance $ 18 $ 15 % 18 $ 15

Change in unrealized gains or losses for the péniciddec
in earnings for securities held at the end of gporting
period — — — —

In addition, the plan assets of 3M’s pension anstnetirement benefit plans are measured at fairevah a recurring
basis (at least annually). Refer to Note 11 in 3@Iisrent Report on Form 8-K dated May 17, 2016 ¢ivhipdated
3M’s 2015 Annual Report on Form 10-K).

Assets and Liabilities that are Measured at Faifdéaon a Nonrecurring Basis:

Disclosures are required for certain assets abditias that are measured at fair value, but ammgnized and disclosed
at fair value on a nonrecurring basis in periodsseguent to initial recognition. For 3M, such meaments of fair
value relate primarily to long-lived asset impaintge There were no material long-lived asset immpaitts for the three
and six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments:

The Company'’s financial instruments include cash@ash equivalents, marketable securities, accoaoéivable,
certain investments, accounts payable, borrowiaigd,derivative contracts. The fair values of cagh@ash
equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payabteshort-term borrowings and current portioroofg-term debt
approximated carrying values because of the skamt-hature of these instruments. Available-for-gsadeketable
securities and investments, in addition to certigrivative instruments, are recorded at fair vahe@dicated in the
preceding disclosures. For its long-term debt,Gbenpany utilized third-party quotes to estimate ¥ailues (classified
as level 2). Information with respect to the cargyamounts and estimated fair values of these diadimstruments
follow:

June 30, 2016 December 31, 2015
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
(Millions) Value Value Value Value
Long-term debt, excluding current portion $ 9,299 $ 10,115 $ 8,753 $ 9,101

The fair values reflected above consider the terhtke related debt absent the impacts of derietirdging activity.
The carrying amount of long-term debt referenceavabs impacted by certain fixed-to-floating intsetreate swaps that
are designated as fair value hedges and by thgrdg&in of fixed rate Eurobond securities issuetheyCompany as
hedging instruments of the Company’s net investrireits European subsidiaries. Many of 3M'’s fixeder bonds were
trading at a premium at June 30, 2016 and DeceBhe2015 due to the low interest rates and tightgof 3M’s credit
spreads.
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NOTE 12. Commitments and Contingencies
Legal Proceedings:

The Company and some of its subsidiaries are imegbim numerous claims and lawsuits, principallyhi@ United
States, and regulatory proceedings worldwide. Thedede various products liability (involving procts that the
Company now or formerly manufactured and soldgliettual property, and commercial claims and latgsincluding
those brought under the antitrust laws, and enwiertal proceedings. Unless otherwise stated, timep@ay is
vigorously defending all such litigation. Additidriaformation about the Company’s process for disafe and
recording of liabilities and insurance receivabigated to legal proceedings can be found in Ndt&Cbmmitments
and Contingencies” in the Company’s Annual ReparForm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 201pdated
by the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K datex/ MI7, 2016.

The following sections first describe the signifitéegal proceedings in which the Company is inedlvand then
describe the liabilities and associated insuraaceivables the Company has accrued relating tigtsficant legal
proceedings.

Respirator Mask/Asbestos Litigation

As of June 30, 2016, the Company is a named defikndéh multiple co-defendants, in numerous lawssin various
courts that purport to represent approximately 2 jBaividual claimants, compared to approximately3® individual
claimants with actions pending at December 31, 2015

The vast majority of the lawsuits and claims reedlby and currently pending against the Compamgeallse of some
of the Company’s mask and respirator products arf damages from the Company and other defendarasiéged
personal injury from workplace exposures to asleestitica, coal mine dust or other occupationakslésund in
products manufactured by other defendants or giypérahe workplace. A minority of the lawsuits éuelaims resolved
by and currently pending against the Company gdélgexidege personal injury from occupational exp@sto asbestos
from products previously manufactured by the Comparhich are often unspecified, as well as produzasiufactured
by other defendants, or occasionally at Compangnjses.

The Company’s current volume of new and pendingemais substantially lower than it experiencethatpeak of
filings in 2003. The Company expects that filingctdims by unimpaired claimants in the future waintinue to be at
much lower levels than in the past. Accordinglg ttumber of claims alleging more serious injuriesluding
mesothelioma and other malignancies, will repreaagrieater percentage of total claims than in #s. @he Company
has prevailed in all ten cases taken to trialudiclg eight of the nine cases tried to verdict iisuials occurred in 1999,
2000, 2001, 2003, 2004, 2007, and 2015), and aellappreversal in 2005 of the 2001 jury verdictede to the
Company. The remaining case, tried in 2009, wamidised by the court at the close of plaintiff'sdmrice, based on the
court’s legal finding that the plaintiff had notgzented sufficient evidence to support a jury \erdihe plaintiff in the
2015 trial filed an appeal to the Missouri CourtAgipeals for the Eastern District. In June 2016, Ntissouri Court of
Appeals affirmed the trial court’'s judgment andyjuerdict in favor of 3M, a decision that is fired the Plaintiff did not
file an appeal to the Missouri Supreme Court.

The Company has demonstrated in these past toaépdings that its respiratory protection prodactseffective as
claimed when used in the intended manner and imteaded circumstances. Consequently the Compeligves that
claimants are unable to establish that their médmaditions, even if significant, are attributaldethe Company’s
respiratory protection products. Nonetheless the@y'’s litigation experience indicates that clamhgersons with
malignant conditions are costlier to resolve tHandlaims of unimpaired persons, and it therefeleebes the average
cost of resolving pending and future claims on ragt&@m basis will continue to be higher than ipexienced in prior
periods when the vast majority of claims were d@esdoy medically unimpaired claimants.

As previously reported, the State of West Virgitlapugh its Attorney General, filed a complain®03 against the

Company and two other manufacturers of respirgtooyection products in the Circuit Court of Lincddounty, West
Virginia and amended its complaint in 2005. The adesl complaint seeks substantial, but unspecifiechpensatory
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damages primarily for reimbursement of the codegally incurred by the State for worker’'s compéinsaand
healthcare benefits provided to all workers witkggational pneumoconiosis and unspecified pundemmages. The
case was inactive from the fourth quarter of 200 late 2013, other than a case management camferin

March 2011. In November 2013, the State filed aiomato bifurcate the lawsuit into separate liapikind damages
proceedings. At the hearing on the motion, the todeclined to bifurcate the lawsuit. No liabilitpébeen recorded for
this matter because the Company believes thatitialsi not probable and estimable at this timeatidition, the
Company is not able to estimate a possible losarage of loss given the lack of any meaningful aveey responses by
the State of West Virginia, the otherwise minimetivdty in this case and the fact that the comglaisserts claims
against two other manufacturers where a defendahéige of liability may turn on the law of jointdareveral liability
and by the amount of fault, if any, a jury mighbahte to each defendant if the case is ultimatéedg.

Respirator Mask/Asbestos Liabilities and InsuraReeeivablesThe Company estimates its respirator mask/asbestos
liabilities, including the cost to resolve the ofai and defense costs, by examining: (i) the Conipaxperience in
resolving claims, (ii) apparent trends, (iii) thparent quality of claimse(g.,whether the claim has been asserted on
behalf of asymptomatic claimants), (iv) changethianature and mix of claims.@.,the proportion of claims asserting
usage of the Company’s mask or respirator procaratisalleging exposure to each of asbestos, silaz,or other
occupational dusts, and claims pleading use ofséggeontaining products allegedly manufacturetheyCompany),

(v) the number of current claims and a projectibthe number of future asbestos and other claimsrttay be filed
against the Company, (vi) the cost to resolve régeettled claims, and (vii) an estimate of thetdo resolve and
defend against current and future claims.

Developments may occur that could affect the Comisagstimate of its liabilities. These developmentdude, but are
not limited to, significant changes in (i) the nuenlof future claims, (ii) the average cost of resa claims, (iii) the
legal costs of defending these claims and in miima trial readiness, (iv) changes in the mix aature of claims
received, (v) trial and appellate outcomes, (varajes in the law and procedure applicable to tblesms, and (vii) the
financial viability of other co-defendants and irems.

As a result of the Company'’s cost of resolvingrasiof persons who claim more serious injuries Uditig
mesothelioma and other malignancies, the Compamgased its accruals in the first six months ofé2fat respirator
mask/asbestos liabilities by $29 million, $18 moitliof which occurred in the second quarter of 20d.8he first six
months of 2016, the Company made payments for fegaland settlements of $26 million related tordspirator
mask/asbestos litigation, $12 million of which oced in the second quarter of 2016. As of June2B@g, the
Company had accruals for respirator mask/asbeistutitles of $147 million (excluding Aearo accraal This accrual
represents the low end in a range of loss.

The Company cannot estimate the amount or uppeoftid range of amounts by which the liability neiceed the
accrual the Company has established because (j thherent difficulty in projecting the number ofaims that have
not yet been asserted or the time period in whittré claims may be asserted, (ii) the complaietxly always assert
claims against multiple defendants where the damatieged are typically not attributed to indivitldafendants so
that a defendant’s share of liability may turn ba taw of joint and several liability, which canrydy state, (iii) the
multiple factors described above that the Compamsiders in estimating its liabilities, and (ivetkeveral possible
developments described above that may occur théd edfect the Company’s estimate of liabilities.

As of June 30, 2016, the Company’s receivablerfeuiance recoveries related to the respirator rmsiskstos litigation
was $4 million. The Company estimates insuranceivables based on an analysis of its policiesutiolg their
exclusions, pertinent case law interpreting coniglarpolicies, its experience with similar claimadan assessment of
the nature of each claim and remaining coverage.ddmpany then records an amount it has conclugikely to be
recovered. Various factors could affect the timamgl amount of recovery of this receivable, inclgd(i) delays in or
avoidance of payment by insurers; (ii) the extenwhich insurers may become insolvent in the fytaral (iii) the
outcome of negotiations with insurers and legatpealings with respect to respirator mask/asbeistoidity insurance
coverage.

As a result of a final arbitration decision in J@@.6 regarding insurance coverage under two esli@M reversed its
receivable for insurance recoveries related toirasp mask/asbestos litigation by $35 million. T®empany is seeking
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coverage under the policies of certain insolvestirars. Once those claims for coverage are resalvedCompany will
have collected substantially all of its remainingurance coverage for respirator mask/asbestaaslai

Respirator Mask/Asbestos Litigation — Aearo Tecla@s

On April 1, 2008, a subsidiary of the Company passd the stock of Aearo Holding Corp., the paréataro
Technologies (“Aearo”). Aearo manufactured and s@dous products, including personal protectionipment, such
as eye, ear, head, face, fall and certain respyrgtotection products.

As of June 30, 2016, Aearo and/or other compahigispreviously owned and operated Aearo’s respitaisiness
(American Optical Corporation, Warner-Lambert LLAD) Corp. and Cabot Corporation (“Cabot”)) are named
defendants, with multiple co-defendants, includimg Company, in numerous lawsuits in various caurtghich
plaintiffs allege use of mask and respirator présland seek damages from Aearo and other defenfitaratbeged
personal injury from workplace exposures to aslsesitica-related, or other occupational dusts ébumproducts
manufactured by other defendants or generallyenitbrkplace.

As of June 30, 2016, the Company, through its Aesalisidiary, had accruals of $20 million for prodiimbilities and
defense costs related to current and future Aegleded asbestos and silica-related claims. Redpibitysfor legal costs,
as well as for settlements and judgments, is ctiyehared in an informal arrangement among Ae@semot, American
Optical Corporation and a subsidiary of Warner Lanhland their respective insurers (the “Payor Gipugability is
allocated among the parties based on the numbearawé each company sold respiratory products uhéenO

Safety” brand and/or owned the AO Safety Divisidimerican Optical Corporation and the alleged gearexposure
of the individual plaintiff. Aearo’s share of thertingent liability is further limited by an agreent entered into
between Aearo and Cabot on July 11, 1995. Thiseageet provides that, so long as Aearo pays to Cabogarterly fee
of $100,000, Cabot will retain responsibility amability for, and indemnify Aearo against, any puoatlliability claims
involving exposure to asbestos, silica, or sificaducts for respirators sold prior to July 11, 39Because of the
difficulty in determining how long a particular mgator remains in the stream of commerce aftemdebld, Aearo and
Cabot have applied the agreement to claims armingf the alleged use of respirators involving@syre to asbestos,
silica or silica products prior to January 1, 199/th these arrangements in place, Aearo’s poteliiaility is limited

to exposures alleged to have arisen from the usespirators involving exposure to asbestos, siticailica products
on or after January 1, 1997. To date, Aearo hatezldo pay the quarterly fee. Aearo could potdgtize exposed to
additional claims for some part of the pre-July 1995 period covered by its agreement with CabAe#ro elects to
discontinue its participation in this arrangementif Cabot is no longer able to meet its obligatian these matters.

In March 2012, Cabot CSC Corporation and Cabot Qatjon filed a lawsuit against Aearo in the Supe@ourt of
Suffolk County, Massachusetts seeking declaratligfras to the scope of Cabot’s indemnity obligasi under the
July 11, 1995 agreement, including whether Cabstratined liability for coal workers’ pneumocongslaims, and
seeking damages for breach of contract. In 204cturt granted Aearo’s motion for summary judgnuntwo
claims, but declined to rule on two issues: thejdiability for certain known coal mine dustiasuits; and Cabot's
claim for allocation of liability between injuriedlegedly caused by exposure to coal mine dusirgades allegedly
caused by exposure to silica dust. Following addil discovery, the parties filed new motions famsnary judgment.
In February 2016, the court ruled in favor of Aearothese two remaining issues, and ordered thadtCand not
Aearo, is solely responsible for all liability fidre coal mine dust lawsuits under the 1995 agreer@Gaot has
appealed.

Developments may occur that could affect the esérofAearo’s liabilities. These developments ini@ubut are not
limited to: (i) significant changes in the numbéifuture claims, (ii) significant changes in theeaage cost of resolving
claims, (iii) significant changes in the legal sosf defending these claims, (iv) significant chesign the mix and
nature of claims received, (v) trial and appel@mtécomes, (vi) significant changes in the law aratpdure applicable
to these claims, (vii) significant changes in tadility allocation among the co-defendants, (Miig financial viability
of members of the Payor Group including exhaustioavailable insurance coverage limits, and/or &xjetermination
that the interpretation of the contractual obligas on which Aearo has estimated its share oflitipis inaccurate. The
Company cannot determine the impact of these gatelgvelopments on its current estimate of Aeast'are of
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liability for these existing and future claimsalfiy of the developments described above were torpttee actual
amount of these liabilities for existing and futataeims could be significantly larger than the amioaccrued.

Because of the inherent difficulty in projecting thumber of claims that have not yet been assahed,omplexity of
allocating responsibility for future claims amotng tPayor Group, and the several possible develojsnigat may occur
that could affect the estimate of Aearo’s liab#litj the Company cannot estimate the amount or @rg@ounts by
which Aearo’s liability may exceed the accrual @@mpany has established.

Environmental Matters and Litigation

The Company’s operations are subject to environatdgnvs and regulations including those pertairingir emissions,
wastewater discharges, toxic substances, and tiihg and disposal of solid and hazardous wastés@able by
national, state, and local authorities around thddy and private parties in the United States@mwad. These laws
and regulations provide, under certain circumstanadoasis for the remediation of contaminationydstoration of or
compensation for damages to natural resourcedpamersonal injury and property damage claims. Thenpany has
incurred, and will continue to incur, costs andid@xpenditures in complying with these laws asgulations,
defending personal injury and property damage daand modifying its business operations in light
environmental responsibilities. In its effort tdisty its environmental responsibilities and compligh environmental
laws and regulations, the Company has establighetiperiodically updates, policies relating to emwimental
standards of performance for its operations wordigwi

Under certain environmental laws, including thetgdiStates Comprehensive Environmental Responsap€tsation
and Liability Act of 1980 and similar state lawlsetCompany may be jointly and severally liablejdgfty with other
companies, for the costs of remediation of envirental contamination at current or former faciliteesd at off-site
locations. The Company has identified numeroustions, most of which are in the United States, kictvit may have
some liability. Please refer to the section erditiEnvironmental Liabilities and Insurance Receivabldsat follows for
information on the amount of the accrual.

Environmental Matters

As previously reported, the Company has been vatilptcooperating with ongoing reviews by locahtst, federal
(primarily the U.S. Environmental Protection Ager{&PA)), and international agencies of possibleéremmental and
health effects of various perfluorinated compoufieéCs”), including perfluorooctanyl compounds swash
perfluorooctanoate (“PFOA”) and perfluorooctandamudite (“PFOS”). As a result of its phase-out decisn

May 2000, the Company no longer manufactures padluctanyl compounds. The company ceased manuifagtand
using the vast majority of these compounds witlgpraximately two years of the phase-out announcénaed ceased
all manufacturing and the last significant usehig themistry by the end of 2008. Through its ongdife cycle
management and its raw material composition idieatibn processes associated with the Companyisipsicovering
the use of all persistent and bio-accumulative riete the Company has on occasion identified tlesgnce of
precursor chemicals in materials received from Bepgpthat may ultimately degrade to PFOA, PFOSsimilar
compounds. Upon such identification, the Compangk&/to find alternatives for such materials.

Regulatory activities concerning PFOA and/or PFOftiaue in the United States, Europe and elsewlagiek before
certain international bodies. These activitiesudel gathering of exposure and use information,agsgdessment, and
consideration of regulatory approaches. As theldesta of studies of both chemicals has expanded;Ritehas
developed human health effects documents summaitizanavailable data from these studies. In Fegr2at4, the
EPA initiated external peer review of its draft ramhealth effects documents for PFOA and PFOS pEke review
panel met in August 2014. In May 2016, the EPA amoed lifetime health advisory levels for PFOA &1€0S at 70
parts per trillion (superseding the provisionakisvestablished by the EPA in 2009 of 400 partgnikon for PFOA
and 200 parts per trillion for PFOS). Where PFOA BFOS are found together, EPA recommends that the
concentrations be added together, and the lifetiesdth advisory for PFOA and PFOS combined is @&parts per
trillion. Lifetime health advisories, while not emteable, serve as guidance and are benchmarlstieEnmining if
concentrations of chemicals in tap water from pubtilities are safe for public consumption. Ineffort to collect
exposure information under the Safe Drinking Wétet, the EPA published on May 2, 2012 a list ofegulated
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substances, including six PFCs, required to be toied during the period 2013-2015 by public watestesm suppliers
to determine the extent of their occurrence. Th& EReporting results from this exercise on ainglibasis that will
continue in 2016. Through April 2016, the EPA hegarted results for 4,864 public water suppliesonatide. Based
on the 2016 lifetime health advisory, 13 public evegtupplies exceed the level for PFOA, 46 exceedetvel for PFOS,
and 72 exceed the combined level for PFOA and PH®&se results are based on one or more samplested|during
the period 2012-2015 and do not necessarily refleaent conditions of these public water supplieRA reporting
does not identify the sources of the PFOA and PIFQSe public water supplies.

The Company is continuing to make progress in askwunder the supervision of state regulatorgddress its historic
disposal of PFC-containing waste associated withufeeturing operations at the Decatur, Alabamataget Grove,
Minnesota, and Cordova, lllinois plants.

As previously reported, the Company entered intolantary remedial action agreement with the Alabddepartment
of Environmental Management (ADEM) to address ttesence of PFCs in the soil at the Company’s matwfiag
facility in Decatur, Alabama. Pursuant to a perissued by ADEM, for approximately twenty years, @@mpany
incorporated its wastewater treatment plant sluggeaining PFCs in fields at its Decatur facilifter a review of the
available options to address the presence of Pir@®isoil, ADEM agreed that the preferred reméatiabption is to
use a multilayer cap over the former sludge incafon areas on the manufacturing site with subsetjgroundwater
migration controls and treatment. Implementatiothet plan continues and is expected to be congpiat2018.

The Company continues to work with the Minnesotlufion Control Agency (MPCA) pursuant to the terofghe
previously disclosed May 2007 Settlement Agreenmagidt Consent Order to address the presence ofrc@fls in the
soil and groundwater at former disposal sites irskifegton County, Minnesota (Oakdale and Woodbung) & the
Company’s manufacturing facility at Cottage GroMnnesota. Under this agreement, the Company’'jpat
obligations include (i) evaluating releases of@@rPFCs from these sites and proposing respotisssic(ii) providing
treatment or alternative drinking water upon idging any level exceeding a Health Based Value (\WBor Health
Risk Limit (“HRL") (i.e., the amount of a chemica drinking water determined by the Minnesota Dépant of
Health (MDH) to be safe for human consumption avéfetime) for certain PFCs for which a HBV andMRL exists
as a result of contamination from these siteg; r@imediating identified sources of other PFCHas¢ sites that are not
controlled by actions to remediate PFOA and PF@8;(&) sharing information with the MPCA about tzén
perfluorinated compounds. During 2008, the MPCAiggssformal decisions adopting remedial optionglierformer
disposal sites in Washington County, Minnesota @@#ékand Woodbury). In August 2009, the MPCA issadarmal
decision adopting remedial options for the Compaiottage Grove manufacturing facility. During #p¥ing and
summer of 2010, 3M began implementing the agreee upmedial options at the Cottage Grove and Wogdsites.
3M commenced the remedial option at the Oakdadeisitate 2010. At each location the remedial oxgtiorere
recommended by the Company and approved by the MIRE/kediation work has been completed at the Oalatad
Woodbury sites, and they are in an operational teaance mode. Remediation will continue at theag@ttGrove site
during 2016.

In August 2014, the Illinois EPA approved a requssthe Company to establish a groundwater manageroae at its
manufacturing facility in Cordova, lllinois, whidhcludes ongoing pumping of impacted site grounéwajroundwater
monitoring, and routine reporting of results.

The Company cannot predict what additional regueéetions arising from the foregoing proceedingg activities, if
any, may be taken regarding such compounds orathgegjuences of any such actions.

Environmental Litigation

As previously reported, a former employee filedugported class action lawsuit in 2002 in the Cir€ourt of Morgan
County, Alabama (the St. John case), seeking wtstiimages and alleging that the plaintiffs suffdéear, increased
risk, subclinical injuries, and property damagerirexposure to certain perfluorochemicals at or teaCompany’s
Decatur, Alabama, manufacturing facility. The canr005 granted the Company’s motion to dismissntamed
plaintiff's personal injury-related claims on thadis that such claims are barred by the exclusprityisions of the
state’s Workers Compensation Act. The plaintifisunsel filed an amended complaint in November 2061ing the
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case to property damage claims on behalf of a ptegalass of residents and property owners irvitiaity of the
Decatur plant. In June 2015, the plaintiffs filedaanended complaint adding additional defendantsding BFI
Waste Management Systems of Alabama, LLC; BFI Wisksteagement of North America, LLC; the City of Daga
Alabama; Morgan County, Alabama; Municipal Utilgi@oard of Decatur; and Morgan County, Alabamaljadliecatur
Utilities. In September 2015, the court issuedleedaling order staying discovery pending mediatitnich occurred in
January 2016, but did not resolve the case angdttees continue their negotiations. A hearing lais< certification is
scheduled for November 2016.

In 2005, the judge in a second purported classmadiwsuit filed by three residents of Morgan Couitiabama,
seeking unstated compensatory and punitive damagelsing alleged damage to their property from ssions of
certain perfluorochemical compounds from the ComgfsaDecatur, Alabama, manufacturing facility thatrherly
manufactured those compounds (the Chandler caaelegl the Company’s motion to abate the case,teffde putting
the case on hold pending the resolution of clagffication issues in the St. John case. Despitesthy, plaintiffs filed
an amended complaint seeking damages for allegsdna injuries and property damage on behalf efthmed
plaintiffs and the members of a purported classfuiher action in the case is expected unlesuatitithe stay is
lifted.

In February 2009, a resident of Franklin Countyal¥ima, filed a purported class action lawsuit enGlircuit Court of
Franklin County (the Stover case) seeking compengatamages and injunctive relief based on theiegibn by the
Decatur utility’s wastewater treatment plant of teagater treatment sludge to farmland and grasslariihe state that
allegedly contain PFOA, PFOS and other perfluoratbals. The named plaintiff seeks to representaascdf all
persons within the State of Alabama who have had&RPFOS, and other perfluorochemicals releasatéposited on
their property. In March 2010, the Alabama Supr&oert ordered the case transferred from Franklinr®pto
Morgan County. In May 2010, consistent with its dilimg of the other matters, the Morgan County Gir@ourt abated
this case, putting it on hold pending the resohuttbthe class certification issues in the St. Jodse.

In October 2015, West Morgan-East Lawrence Wat&ever Authority (Water Authority) filed an individl
complaint against 3M Company, Dyneon, L.L.C, andkiaAmerica, Inc., in the U.S. District Court ftme Northern
District of Alabama. The complaint also includepresentative plaintiffs who brought the complaintehalf of
themselves, and a class of all owners and possestproperty who use water provided by the Watetharity and five
local water works to which the Water Authority slipp water (collectively, the “Water Utilities”).Fle complaint seeks
compensatory and punitive damages and injunctiief lzased on allegations that the defendants’ ¢bais) including
PFOA and PFOS from their manufacturing process&etatur, have contaminated the water in the Tese@eRiver at
the water intake, and that the chemicals cannotim®ved by the water treatment processes utiligetid Water
Authority. 3M has moved to dismiss the case onllggaunds. That motion is pending.

In June 2016, the Tennessee Riverkeeper, Inc. (&eper), a non-profit corporation, filed a lawsnithe U.S. District
Court for the Northern District of Alabama agai@st; BFI Waste Systems of Alabama; the City of Daca#labama;
and the Municipal Utilities Board of Decatur, Morg@&ounty, Alabama. The complaint alleges that #fertdants
violated the Resource Conservation and RecoverynAmbnnection with the disposal of certain PFGstilgh their
ownership and operation of their respective sifBlse complaint further alleges such practices nraggnt an imminent
and substantial endangerment to health and/onmtieomment and that Riverkeeper has suffered aficcemtinue to
suffer irreparable harm caused by defendants’'rila abate the endangerment unless the courtsgitatequested
relief, including declaratory and injunctive reliethe Company believes that the complaint lackgtme

In December 2010, the State of Minnesota, by iterAty General Lori Swanson, acting in its capaagtyrustee of the
natural resources of the State of Minnesota, fléawsuit in Hennepin County District Court agaiBBst to recover
damages (including unspecified assessment costeeasdnable attorney’s fees) for alleged injurydstruction of, and
loss of use of certain of the State’s natural resssiunder the Minnesota Environmental Responsé.iaibdity Act
(MERLA) and the Minnesota Water Pollution ContratAMWPCA), as well as statutory nuisance and comfaa/
claims of trespass, nuisance, and negligence w#pect to the presence of PFCs in the groundveatdgce water, fish
or other aquatic life, and sediments (the “NRD LaitV. The State also seeks declarations under MERiat 3M is
responsible for all damages the State may sufferdarfuture for injuries to natural resources fraleases of PFCs into
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the environment, and under MWPCA that 3M is resfim@dor compensation for future loss or destructid fish,
aquatic life, and other damages.

In November 2011, the Metropolitan Council filedhation to intervene and a complaint in the NRD Laitvseeking
compensatory damages and other legal, declaratorgquitable relief, including reasonable attorhéess, for costs
and fees that the Metropolitan Council allegesilitlve required to assess at some time in the éuifuthe MPCA
imposes restrictions on Metropolitan Council’'s PFi&harges to the Mississippi River, including itgtallation and
maintenance of a water treatment system. The Melitap Council’s intervention motion was based ewesal theories,
including common law negligence, and statutorymtaunder MERLA for response costs, and under thenbfota
Environmental Rights Act (MERA) for declaratory aequitable relief against 3M for PFOS and other PB{lution of
the waters and sediments of the Mississippi Ri®#®r.did not object to the motion to intervene. Imdary 2012, 3M
answered the Metropolitan Council’'s complaint aifebfa counterclaim alleging that the Metropolitaouncil
discharges PFCs to the Mississippi River and digsaPFC-containing sludge and bio solids fromammore of its
wastewater treatment plants onto agricultural lanttlocal area landfills. Accordingly, 3M’s comipibagainst the
Metropolitan Council asks that if the court finthsit the State is entitled to any of the damagesaks, 3M be awarded
contribution and apportionment from the Metropalitaouncil, including attorneys’ fees, under MERLakhd
contribution from and liability for the MetropolitaCouncil’s proportional share of damages awarddti¢ State under
the MWPCA, as well as under statutory nuisancecamimon law theories of trespass, nuisance, andgeage. 3M
also seeks declaratory relief under MERA.

In April 2012, 3M filed a motion to disqualify tH&tate of Minnesota’s counsel, Covington & BurlihgP (Covington).
In October 2012, the court granted 3M’s motionitmgdalify Covington as counsel to the State andta¢e and
Covington appealed the court’s disqualificatiottte Minnesota Court of Appeals. In July 2013, thieMésota Court of
Appeals affirmed the district court’s disqualificat order. In October 2013, the Minnesota Supremeryranted both
the State’s and Covington’s petition for reviewtlod decision of the Minnesota Court of AppealsApmil 2014, the
Minnesota Supreme Court affirmed in part, reveiaguhrt, and remanded the case to the districttdoufurther
proceedings. The district court took evidence @ndisqualification issues at a hearing in Octolfdr52 In February
2016, the district court ruled that Covington vielhthe professional ethics rule against represgimaticlient (here the
State of Minnesota) in the same or substantialbted matter where that person’s interests arermaliyeadverse to the
interests of a former client (3M). The district epinowever, denied 3M’s motion to disqualify Cogian because it
further found that 3M impliedly waived by delayitmassert the conflict. Other activity in the cashich had been
stayed pending the outcome of the disqualificaissne, has resumed. A trial date has not yet beteinsa separate but
related action, the Company filed suit against @gton for breach of its fiduciary duties to the Gmamy and for breach
of contract arising out of Covington’s represematof the State of Minnesota in the NRD Lawsuit.

For environmental litigation matters describedhiis section for which a liability, if any, has bemtorded, the
Company believes the amount recorded, as welleapdhsible loss or range of loss in excess of stablished accrual
is not material to the Company’s consolidated rtssafl operations or financial condition. For thasatters for which a
liability has not been recorded, the Company bekeany such liability is not probable and estimaivid the Company
is not able to estimate a possible loss or randessfat this time.

Environmental Liabilities and Insurance Receivables

As of June 30, 2016, the Company had recordeditiabiof $47 million for estimated “environmentamediation”
costs based upon an evaluation of currently aveildzts with respect to each individual site alsth aecorded related
insurance receivables of $11 million. The Compaopords liabilities for remediation costs on an sndunted basis
when they are probable and reasonably estimabterghty no later than the completion of feasibibtydies or the
Company’s commitment to a plan of action. Liakel#ifor estimated costs of environmental remediatiepending on
the site, are based primarily upon internal omdtfgarty environmental studies, and estimates #staumber,
participation level and financial viability of amgher potentially responsible parties, the extéithe contamination and
the nature of required remedial actions. The Compaljusts recorded liabilities as further inforratdevelops or
circumstances change. The Company expects thdt gay the amounts recorded over the periods wfediation for
the applicable sites, currently ranging up to 28rge
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As of June 30, 2016, the Company had recordeditiabiof $33 million for “other environmental lidibies” based
upon an evaluation of currently available factiniplement the Settlement Agreement and ConsentrQvitle the
MPCA, the remedial action agreement with ADEM, émdddress trace amounts of perfluorinated comp®imd
drinking water sources in the City of Oakdale, Mirata, as well as presence in the soil and grouedwaathe
Company’s manufacturing facilities in Decatur, Adafia, and Cottage Grove, Minnesota, and at two fodisposal
sites in Washington County, Minnesota (Oakdale\Awebdbury). The Company expects that most of thadipg will
occur over the next four years. As of June 30, 2€i®Company’s receivable for insurance recovesgksed to “other
environmental liabilities” was $15 million.

It is difficult to estimate the cost of environmahtompliance and remediation given the uncergsmtegarding the
interpretation and enforcement of applicable emrnental laws and regulations, the extent of envirental
contamination and the existence of alternativentipanethods. Developments may occur that coula e
Company’s current assessment, including, but natdd to: (i) changes in the information availat#garding the
environmental impact of the Company’s operatiorss groducts; (i) changes in environmental regutaicchanges in
permissible levels of specific compounds in drimgkimater sources, or changes in enforcement theanigépolicies,
including efforts to recover natural resource da@sagiii) new and evolving analytical and remediattechniques;
(iv) success in allocating liability to other potiafly responsible parties; and (v) the financiehility of other
potentially responsible parties and third-partyeimhitors. For sites included in both “environmemngahediation
liabilities” and “other environmental liabilitiesdt which remediation activity is largely compleied remaining activity
relates primarily to operation and maintenancénefremedy, including required post-remediation rwoirig, the
Company believes the exposure to loss in excegeaimount accrued would not be material to the gzmy's
consolidated results of operations or financialditbon. However, for locations at which remediataxctivity is largely
ongoing, the Company cannot estimate a possibtedosange of loss in excess of the associateblesttad accruals
for the reasons described above.

Other Matters
Commercial Litigation

3M sued TransWeb Corporation in Minnesota in 2@#Qrffringement of several 3M patents covering fination and
hydrocharging of filter media used in 3M’s respiratand furnace filters. TransWeb filed a declagapadgment action
in and successfully moved the litigation to the \D&trict Court for the District of New Jerseygeg&ing a declaration of
invalidity and non-infringement of 3M’s patentsdafiurther alleging that 3M waited too long to em®its rights.
TransWeb also alleged 3M obtained the patents ¢irinequitable conduct and that 3M’s attempt toerd the patents
constituted a violation of the antitrust laws. Iowémber 2012, a jury returned a verdict in favolT idnsWeb on all but
one count, including findings that 3M’s patents evawvalid and not infringed, and that 3M had conteditan antitrust
violation by seeking to enforce a patent it hadaotstd fraudulently. The jury also recommended thatcourt find 3M
had committed inequitable conduct in obtaininggh&ents, and that the patents were therefore uremable. Since the
vast majority of TransWeb’s claim for treble antgt damages was in the form of its attorneys’ teebexpenses in
connection with the defense of the patent casepdiies agreed that the measure of damages wotlgbrto the jury,
but rather would be submitted to a special madter the trial. In April, 2014, the court issued @er denying 3M’s
motions to set aside the jury’s verdict. In additithe court found two 3M patents unenforceabletdurequitable
conduct. The court accepted the special masteztammendation as to the amount of attorneys’ feéetawarded as
damages, and entered judgment against 3M in theiainod approximately $26 million. In July 2014, 3Med a notice
of appeal of the judgment to the U.S. Court of Agdpdor the Federal Circuit. In February, 2016, th&. Court of
Appeals for the Federal Circuit issued its decigiffirming the lower court’s judgment. In March Z)BM paid
TransWeb $27 million in full satisfaction of thedgment.

Andover Healthcare filed an infringement suit agaBM in May 2013 in the U.S. District Court foetbistrict of
Delaware. Andover also filed a related infringemaction against 3M and 3M Deutschland GmbH in Ddmem2013 in
Mannheim, Germany. In both cases, Andover allelgatsdertain of 3M’s self-adherent wraps, includ@agpan™ Latex
Free and Nexcare™ No Hurt Latex Free wraps, infiAgdover’s U.S. and German patents. 3M deniedtthatinges
Andover’s patents, asserts that the patents aedidiiand claims that Andover should be precludechfany recovery,
in part because of its long delay in bringing thision. 3M and Andover have each filed motionssiammary
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judgment. A hearing on the motions is schedulefiugust 2016. Trial in the U.S. matter is schedd@dNovember
2016. A hearing in the German infringement caseiged in September 2014. In November 2014, the Gertmial
court issued a decision ordering the appointmeanagxpert to assist with analysis of whether 3pftsducts infringe
Andover’'s German patent. Separately, 3M filed dityudction in Germany, challenging the validity Ahdover’'s
German patent. At a hearing in July 2015, the Garpaent court revoked Andover’'s German patentsloAar has
appealed that decision and, in April 2016, the Garnial court stayed the infringement proceedihgsng the
pendency of Andover’s appeal. No liability has bestorded in the Andover litigation, as the Comphaljeves that
any such liability is not probable and estimable.

Product Liability Litigation

Electricité de France (EDF) filed a lawsuit agai®st France in the French courts in 2006 claiminmoeercial loss and
property damage after experiencing electrical ndtfailures which EDF claims were caused by alldgeeafective 3M
transition splices. The French Court of Appealgetsailles affirmed the commercial trial court’scagon that the
transition splices conformed to contract speciiara and that EDF thoroughly analyzed and testedphices before
purchase and installation. The Court of Appealsyéwer, ordered a court-appointed expert to studyptioblem and
issue a technical opinion on the cause of the mitfedlures. The court-appointed expert submittedraport to the
commercial court in May 2014. The expert found ptigg defects in 3M’s product and found that EDEurred
damages in excess of 100 million euros. The expepinion was not dispositive of liability or danesgand subject to
numerous factual and legal challenges that couldised with the court. In June 2016, the paréesihed an agreement
to resolve this dispute; the agreement include§idemntial terms that, when taking into account 3fisurance
coverage, were not material to the Company’s cadfesi@d results of operations or financial condition

One customer obtained an order in the French cageist 3M Purification SAS (a French subsidianypctober 2011
appointing an expert to determine the amount ofroengial loss and property damage allegedly caugedidgedly
defective 3M filters used in the customer’s mantifeing process. An Austrian subsidiary of this saoustomer also
filed a claim against 3M Austria GmbH (an Austreubsidiary) and 3M Purification SAS in the Austrizourts

in September 2012 seeking damages for the sane iBBase two cases are still pending. Another costdiled a
lawsuit against 3M Deutschland GmbH (a German slidosi) in the German courts in March 2012 seekimgmercial
loss and property damage allegedly caused by the 8M filters used in that customer’s manufactupngcess; the
Company has resolved the claims in the Germaratitg. The Company has also settled without litagathe claims of
two other customers arising out of the same isBhe.amounts paid are not material to the Compasorsolidated
results of operations or financial condition.

As of June 30, 2016, the Company is a named def¢mlapproximately 437 lawsuits (compared to agpnately 122
lawsuits at December 31, 2015), most of which &mdpg in federal or state court in Minnesota, hrick the plaintiffs
claim they underwent various joint arthroplastyrdiavascular, and other surgeries and later deeelsprrgical site
infections due to the use of the Bair Hugger™ paitiearming system. The complaints seek damagested relief
based on theories of strict liability, negligenbegach of express and implied warranties, failarevarn, design and
manufacturing defect, fraudulent and/or negligeisrapresentation/concealment, unjust enrichmeit vésiations of
various state consumer fraud, deceptive or unlatedale practices and/or false advertising acts. €ase, from the U.S.
District Court for the Western District of Tennesse a putative nationwide class action. The UuSlicial Panel on
Multidistrict Litigation (MDL) granted the plainti§’ motion to transfer and consolidate all casexdp®y in federal
courts to the U.S. District Court for the DistraftMinnesota to be managed in a multi-district geaing during the
pre-trial phase of the litigation. In June 201& @ompany was served with a putative class acilied ih the Ontario
Superior Court of Justice for all Canadian residevito underwent various joint arthroplasty, cardsnular, and other
surgeries and later developed surgical site irdastdue to the use of the Bair Hugger™ patient wagraystem. The
representative plaintiff seeks relief (includinghiive damages) under Canadian law based on treesinglar to those
asserted in the MDL The Bair Hugger™ product liresvecquired by 3M as part of the 2010 acquisitiofsrizant,

Inc., a leading manufacturer of patient warmingisohs designed to prevent hypothermia and maimaimal body
temperature in surgical settings. No liability feen recorded for this matter because the Compealigvbs that any
such liability is not probable and estimable as titine.
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In September 2011, 3M Oral Care launched Lava @iEnCAD/CAM dental restorative material. The praduas
originally indicated for inlay, onlay, veneer, atrdwn applications. In June 2015, 3M Oral Care rntduly removed
crown applications from the product’s instructidosuse, following reports from dentists of pat&Ertrowns
debonding, requiring additional treatment. The pidemains on the market for other applicatiohd.cemmunicated
with the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, as vealregulators outside the United States. 3M alffsorned
customers and distributors of its action, offere@dcept return of unused materials and providends. In the second
quarter of 2016 and in July, six complaints weledfin the U.S. District Court for the District bfinnesota and one
complaint was filed in the U.S. District Court filne Southern District of Florida each seeking Gedtion of a class
action of dentists in the United States and itsttetes related to the Lava Ultimate dental crowfise complaints
allege 3M marketed and sold defective Lava Ulting#etal crowns to dentists throughout the countiy;, ander
various theories, seek monetary damages (replatcarosts and business reputation loss), disgorgeofgnbfits,
injunction from marketing and selling Lava Ultimdite use in dental crowns, statutory penalties, atarneys’ fees.
The plaintiffs in one of the cases filed in the tbit of Minnesota have moved the MDL to transfed @onsolidate all
pending cases to the District of Minnesota to beagad in an MDL proceeding during the pre-trialgghaf the
litigation. 3M opposed that motion and filed a foaotinstead to transfer the one case pending iisthehern District of
Florida to the District of Minnesota where it casdpnsolidated with the other six pending casebdtin pretrial and
trial. Oral argument on the MDL motion occurredlirly 2016. No liability has been recorded for thigtter because the
Company believes that any such liability is notgaiole and estimable at this time.

For product liability litigation matters describadthis section for which a liability has been reted, the Company
believes the amount recorded is not material tdCbmpany’s consolidated results of operationsrarftial condition.
In addition, the Company is not able to estimap@ssible loss or range of loss in excess of thabéshed accruals at
this time.
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NOTE 13. Stock-Based Compensation

The 3M 2008 Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP), asxdissed in 3M’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated May2016
(which updated 3M’s 2015 Annual Report on Form 1)Q4€ovides for the issuance or delivery of up @ nillion
shares of 3M common stock (including additionalrehalder approvals subsequent to 2008) pursuaw#sds granted
under the plan. In May 2016, shareholders apprave@016 LTIP, providing an additional 23,965,06ares,
increasing the number of approved shares to 123)06%hares. The 2016 LTIP succeeds the 3M 200B.LAwards
may be issued in the form of incentive stock omjaronqualified stock options, progressive stodiomg, stock
appreciation rights, restricted stock, restrictieatls units, other stock awards, and performances amd performance
sharesAwards denominated in shares of common stock dttzer options and Stock Appreciation Rights, cogatirast
the 123,965,000 million share limit as 3.38 shéwegvery one share covered by such award (fovallie awards with
grant dates prior to May 11, 2010), as 2.87 sharesvery one share covered by such award (fonvallie awards with
grant dates on or after May 11, 2010 and prior &y, 2012), as 3.50 shares for every one shamred\by such
award (for full value awards with grant dates orafber of May 8, 2012 and prior to May 10, 2016)ae 2.50 shares for
every one share covered by such award (for fulleawards with grant dates of May 10, 2016 or Jafdre remaining
total shares available for grant under the LTIPgPam are 35,753,024 as of June 30, 2016.

The Company’s annual stock option and restrictedkstinit grant is made in February to provide arggrand
immediate link between the performance of individuwduring the preceding year and the size of teftual stock
compensation grants. The grant to eligible emplsyeses the closing stock price on the grant dateodnting rules
require recognition of expense under a non-subigtamésting period approach, requiring compensagixpense
recognition when an employee is eligible to retiEmployees are considered eligible to retire atsgand after having
completed ten years of service. This retiree-diiggmpulation represents 35 percent of the 2016argrant stock-
based compensation award expense dollars; theydifigheer stock-based compensation expense is reagaim the
first quarter.

In addition to the annual grants, the Company makiesr minor grants of stock options, restrictextktunits and other
stock-based grants. The Company issues cash segsigitted stock units and stock appreciationtsigh certain
countries. These grants do not result in the issaiaficommon stock and are considered immaterigth&yCompany.

Amounts recognized in the financial statements wagpect to stock-based compensation programshviiitude stock
options, restricted stock, restricted stock umitsformance shares and the General Employees’ $toabhase Plan
(GESPP), are provided in the following table. Calpied stock-based compensation amounts were rnetiala

During the first quarter of 2016, the Company addpASU No. 2016-09mprovements to Employee Share-Based
Payment Accountingrhe adoption is required to be implemented prospaly and resulted in income tax benefits of
$59 million and $140 million in the second quasded first six months of 2016, respectively. SeeeNbfor additional
information regarding ASU No. 2016-09.
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Stock-Based Compensation Expense

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30, June 30,
(Millions) 2016 2015 2016 2015
Cost of sales $ 8 $ 8 9 31 $ 31
Selling, general and administrative expenses 34 35 130 123
Research, development and related expenses 7 6 32 33
Stock-based compensation expenses $ 49 $ 49 $ 193 $ 187
Income tax benefits $ (72) $ (14) $ (199 $ (61)
Stock-based compensation expenses (benefits)f et o $ (23) $ 35 $ 6) $ 126

Stock Option Program

The following table summarizes stock option acgivdtring the six months ended June 30, 2016:

Weighted
Weighted Remaining Aggregate
Number of Average Contractual Intrinsic Value
Options Exercise Price Life (months)  (millions)
Under option —
January 1 38,552,44t $ 102.01
Granted:
Annual 5,591,727 147.99
Exercised (6,201,880) 86.81
Canceled (136,887 147.97
June 30 37,805,405 $ 111.14 74 $ 2,419
Options exercisable
June 30 26,739,297 $ 95.14 61 $ 2,139

Stock options vest over a period from one yeahted years with the expiration date at 10 yeans flate of grant. As
of June 30, 2016, there was $105 million of comp&ar expense that has yet to be recognized retatedn-vested
stock option based awards. This expense is expéxteel recognized over the remaining weighted-ayereesting
period of 24 months. The total intrinsic valuestafck options exercised were $469 million and $3f6on during the
six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, resplyctvash received from options exercised was $5@8{bmand
$376 million for the June 30, 2016 and 2015, repely. The Company’s actual tax benefits realifedthe tax
deductions related to the exercise of employeeksiptions were $173 million and $136 million foetkix months
ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

For the primary 2016 annual stock option grantvieéghted average fair value at the date of graagt walculated using
the Black-Scholes option-pricing model and the aggtions that follow.
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Stock Option Assumptions

Annual
2016
Exercise price $ 147.87
Risk-free interest rate 1.5%
Dividend yield 2.5%
Expected volatility 20.8%
Expected life (months) 77
Black-Scholes fair value $ 22.47

Expected volatility is a statistical measure of éimount by which a stock price is expected to €flat# during a period.
For the 2016 annual grant date, the Company esithe expected volatility based upon the averdgfgeamost recent
one year volatility, the median of the term of wpected life rolling volatility, the median of theost recent term of
the expected life volatility of 3M stock, and theglied volatility on the grant date. The expecteaht assumption is
based on the weighted average of historical grants.

Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units

The following table summarizes restricted stock eegdricted stock unit activity during the six mesiended June 30,
2016:

Weighted
Average
Number of Grant Date
Awards Fair Value
Nonvested balanc—
As of January 1 2,441,086 $ 127.47
Granted
Annual 749,068 148.20
Other 7,278 167.80
Vested (882,421 102.20
Forfeited (30,014) 142.64
As of June 30 2,284,99¢ $ 143.95

As of June 30, 2016, there was $120 million of cemgation expense that has yet to be recognize®delanon-vested
restricted stock units and restricted stock. Thjzease is expected to be recognized over the rémgaiveighted-
average vesting period of 26 months. The totalMalue of restricted stock units and restrictedlsthat vested during
the six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 was$illBon and $157 million, respectively. The Comgs actual
tax benefits realized for the tax deductions relatethe vesting of restricted stock units andrietstd stock was $51
million and $58 million for the six months ended@B0, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Restricted stock units granted generally vest tigezgs following the grant date assuming continemegloyment.
Dividend equivalents equal to the dividends payall¢he same number of shares of 3M common stakia®n these
restricted stock units during the vesting peridthaugh no dividend equivalents are paid on anthe$e restricted stock
units that are forfeited prior to the vesting d@@idends are paid out in cash at the vest dateesimicted stock units.
Since the rights to dividends are forfeitable, ¢hisrno impact on basic earnings per share caicokatWeighted
average restricted stock unit shares outstandmgnatuded in the computation of diluted earnings ghare.

Performance Shares
Instead of restricted stock units, the Company makaual grants of performance shares to membésefecutive

management. The 2016 performance criteria for thes®rmance shares (organic volume growth, retarmvested
capital, free cash flow conversion, and earninggbare growth) were selected because the Compédirydxethat they
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are important drivers of long-term stockholder eallihe number of shares of 3M common stock thaldcactually be
delivered at the end of the three-year performamec®d may be anywhere from 0% to 200% of eachopesdince share
granted, depending on the performance of the Coyngaring such performance period. Non-substantegting
requires that expense for the performance sharescognized over one or three years depending @mwhch
individual became a 3M executive. Prior to the 2p&6formance share grant, performance shares tiaceoue
dividends during the performance period. Thereftire grant date fair value was determined by redpttie closing
stock price on the date of grant by the net pregaine of dividends during the performance peritite 2016
performance share grant accrues dividends, theréffiergrant date fair value is equal to the closiogk price on the
date of grant. Since the rights to dividends aréeitable, there is no impact on basic earningsspare calculations.
Weighted average performance shares whose perfempariod is complete are included in computatiodilated
earnings per share.

The following table summarizes performance shatieigcduring the six months ended June 30, 2016:

Weighted
Average
Number of Grant Date
Awards Fair Value
Undistributed balance —

As of January 1 871,192 $ 120.89
Granted 211,021 159.50
Distributed (367,428 99.06
Performance change (69,743) 161.40
Forfeited (17,488 146.65

As of June 30 627,554 $ 14144

As of June 30, 2016, there was $27 million of conga¢ion expense that has yet to be recognizecdelat
performance shares. This expense is expectedrecbgnized over the remaining weighted-averageimgsmperiod of
10 months. The total fair values of performanceahthat were distributed were $54 million for btite six months
ended June 30, 2016 and 2015. The Company’s datubknefits realized for the tax deductions relatethe
distribution of performance shares were $15 millonboth the six months ended June 30, 2016 atd.20

NOTE 14. Business Segments

3M'’s businesses are organized, managed and inegraliped into segments based on differences kets
products, technologies and services. 3M managepémtions in five business segments: Industsafety and
Graphics; Health Care; Electronics and Energy;@adsumer. 3M’s five business segments bring togettiemon or
related 3M technologies, enhancing the developmginnovative products and services and providmgefficient
sharing of business resources. Transactions anepugtable segments are recorded at cost. 3M istegrated
enterprise characterized by substantial intersegomperation, cost allocations and inventory tfarss Therefore,
management does not represent that these segifiepe;ated independently, would report the opagaihcome
information shown. The difference between operaitiegme and pre-tax income relates to interestrimecand interest
expense, which are not allocated to business seégmen

Effective in the first quarter of 2016, 3M maderaguct line reporting change involving two of itsdiness segments in
its continuing effort to improve the alignment tf businesses around markets and customers.

The change between business segments was as follows
» Elements of the electronic bonding product linesengeviously separately reflected in the Elecireni
Materials Solutions Division (Electronics and Enebyisiness segment) and the Industrial Adhesivds an
Tapes Division (Industrial business segment). Hiffedn the first quarter of 2016, certain saled aperating
income results for these electronic bonding protines in aggregate were equally divided between th
Electronics and Energy business segment and Inalustisiness segment. This change resulted in iedse in
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net sales and operating income for total year 20883 million and $7 million, respectively, in thedustrial
business segment offset by a corresponding inciedbe Electronics and Energy business segment.

The financial information presented herein reflebtsimpact of the preceding product line reportthgnge between
business segments for all periods presented.

Business Segment Information

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30, June 30,

(Millions) 2016 2015 2016 2015
Net Sales
Industrial $ 2631 $ 2632 $ 5207 $ 5,288
Safety and Graphics 1,499 1,432 2,911 2,804
Health Care 1,404 1,364 2,787 2,693
Electronics and Energy 1,181 1,312 2,325 2,636
Consumer 1,130 1,111 2,179 2,159
Corporate and Unallocated 4 4 5 (2)
Elimination of Dual Credit (187 (161 (343 (314
Total Company $ 7662 $ 7,686 $ 15,071 $ 15,264
Operating Income
Industrial $ 615 $ 608 $ 1,232 $ 1,204
Safety and Graphics 411 364 756 699
Health Care 460 440 915 848
Electronics and Energy 229 278 437 563
Consumer 281 259 519 499
Corporate and Unallocated (88) (74) (129) (174)
Elimination of Dual Credit (42 (35) (76 (69
Total Company $ 1866 $ 1,840 $ 3654 $ 3,570

Corporate and unallocated operating income incladesriety of miscellaneous items, such as corpansestment
gains and losses, certain derivative gains ané$s®rtain insurance-related gains and lossdsjreditigation and
environmental expenses, corporate restructuringgelsaand certain under- or over-absorbed costsgergion, stock-
based compensation) that the Company may chooge aibcate directly to its business segmentsaBse this
category includes a variety of miscellaneous itdtris,subject to fluctuation on a quarterly anchaal basis.

3M business segment reporting measures includecdedit to business segments for certain U.S. saldgelated
operating income. Management evaluates each fitétdusiness segments based on net sales andiogenzome
performance, including dual credit U.S. reportiadurther incentivize U.S. sales growth. As a re2M provides
additional (“dual”) credit to those business segmeaelling products in the U.S. to an external @usr when that
segment is not the primary seller of the produot.éxample, certain respirators are primarily $ntdhe Personal
Safety Division within the Safety and Graphics bess segment; however, the Industrial businessesggaiso sells
this product to certain customers in its U.S. mexkia this example, the non-primary selling segngerdustrial) would
also receive credit for the associated net salegtidted and the related approximate operatingine. The assigned
operating income related to dual credit activityymdéfer from operating income that would resutirit actual costs
associated with such sales. The offset to the chealit business segment reporting is reflectedras@nciling item
entitled “Elimination of Dual Credit,” such thatlea and operating income for the U.S. in totalarehanged.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM*

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of 3M Conypa

We have reviewed the accompanying consolidatechbalaheevf 3M Company and its subsidiarias of June 30,
2016, and the related consolidated statementscofrie and comprehensive income for the three-mamdtsix-month
periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 and the detsal statements of cash flows for the six-momttiquls ended
June 30, 2016 and 2015. These interim financia¢stants are the responsibility of the Company’s agament.

We conducted our review in accordance with thedsteds of the Public Company Accounting OversighamglaUnited
States). A review of interim financial informaticonsists principally of applying analytical proceels and making
inquiries of persons responsible for financial andounting matters. It is substantially less ipgcthan an audit
conducted in accordance with the standards of tiic®Company Accounting Oversight Board (Unitedt8s), the
objective of which is the expression of an opiniegarding the financial statements taken as a whateordingly, we
do not express such an opinion.

Based on our review, we are not aware of any naterodifications that should be made to the accawyipg
consolidated interim financial statements for therbe in conformity with accounting principles geally accepted in
the United States of America.

We previously audited, in accordance with the saadisl of the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8q&nited
States), the consolidatbadlance sheet as of December 31, 2015, and thedalansolidated statements of income,
comprehensive income, changes in equity, and d¢awsis for the year then ended (not presented herein)iraadr
report dated February 11, 2016, except with resjpeatir opinion on the consolidated financial stagats insofar as it
relates to the business segment reporting changessded in Notes 3 and 16 as to which the daigis17, 2016,
which included a paragraph that described the ahamthe manner of accounting for marketable stéearand deferred
tax assets and liabilities, we expressed an urfggeabpinion on those consolidated financial staata. In our opinion,
the information set forth in the accompanying cdidsted balance sheet information as of DecembeR@15, is fairly
stated in all material respects in relation todbasolidated balance sheet from which it has beenet.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Minneapolis, Minnesota
August 2, 2016

* Pursuant to Rule 436(c) of the Securities Act @3.9'Act”) this should not be considered a “repasithin the
meaning of Sections 7 and 11 of the Act and thepreddent registered public accounting firm liapilinder
Section 11 does not extend to it.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of kancial Condition and Results of Operations.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financ@hdition and Results of Operations (MD&A) is desdrto
provide a reader of 3M’s financial statements waitharrative from the perspective of managements3WD&A is
presented in the following sections:

*  Overview

* Results of Operations

» Performance by Business Segment

» Financial Condition and Liquidity

e Cautionary Note Concerning Factors That May Affegture Results

Forward-looking statements in Part |, ltem 2 mayolie risks and uncertainties that could causeltesudiffer
materially from those projected (refer to the sattntitled “Cautionary Note Concerning FactorstTay Affect
Future Results” in Part I, Item 2 and the risk dastprovided in Part Il, Item 1A for discussiontlése risks and
uncertainties).

OVERVIEW

3M is a diversified global manufacturer, technolagyovator and marketer of a wide variety of praduand services.
3M manages its operations in five operating busisegments: Industrial; Safety and Graphics; Hezéite;
Electronics and Energy; and Consumer. From a gebargerspective, any references to EMEA referdmpe,
Middle East and Africa on a combined basis. Angrefices to “Membrana” refer to the former Sepanatidedia
business acquired by 3M from Polypore in 2015.

As described in 3M’s Quarterly Report on Form 1@e@Qthe period ended March 31, 2016, and also irs38rrent
Report on Form 8-K dated May 17, 2016 (which upd&te!’s 2015 Annual Report on Form 10-K), effectimghe first
quarter of 2016, 3M made a product line reportingnge involving two of its business segments. Segimérmation
presented herein reflects the impact of these adwafag all periods presented. Refer to Note 14figtitional detail.

This quarterly report on Form 10-Q should be reacbinjunction with the Company’s consolidated steets and notes
included in its Current Report on Form 8-K datedyM&, 2016.

The stronger U.S. dollar negatively impacted salebearnings in the second quarter and first simthsoof 2016 versus
the same periods last year, while global economievth was mixed. Despite these challenges, 3M luasitipe organic
local-currency growth in three of its five busineggments and in all major geographic areas, eXxsptPacific. 3M
also expanded operating income margins by 0.5 p&ge points. Fourth quarter 2015 restructuringast as
discussed in Note 4, impacted approximately 1, 7¥itipns worldwide, contributing to an estimated-pax savings of
approximately $130 million for total year 2016.

Additional discussion of second quarter and finsthsonths results follows.
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Earnings per share attributable to 3M common shaxdters — diluted:

The following table provides the increase (decreasdiluted earnings per share for the three-meuthd six-months
ended June 30, 2016 compared to 2015.

Three months ended Six months ended
(Earnings per diluted share) June 30, 2016 June 30, 2016
Same period last year $ 202 $ 3.87
Increase/(decrease) in earnings per share - djldtezito:

Operational benefits 0.04 0.08

Acquisitions and divestitures 0.03 0.10

Foreign exchange impacts (0.04 (0.09

Net interest expense — (0.02)

Income tax rate (0.04 0.03

Shares of common stock outstanding 0.07 0.16
Current period $ 208 $ 4.13

Net income attributable to 3M increased 6 centsZhdents per diluted share in the second quantefiest six months
of 2016, respectively, when compared to the samedg®elast year. Operational benefits increasediegs, helped by
lower defined benefit pension and postretiremepeases. Operational benefits also included the omatibn of higher
selling prices and lower raw material costs, initholal to productivity benefits related to the fduduarter 2015
restructuring. These operational benefits werdalbrioffset by the impact of organic sales voludexlines and lower
asset utilization.

Acquisition and divestiture impacts, which are nuzad for the first twelve months post-transacti@fated to the 2015
acquisitions of Membrana and Capital Safety, phesfirst quarter 2016 divestiture of Polyfoam, therth quarter
2015/first quarter 2016 divestiture of the libragstems business, and the fourth quarter 201 5tdiwesof the license
plate converting business in France. On a combasds, these acquisition/divestiture year-on-yegraicts increased
earnings by 3 cents and 10 cents per diluted shahe second quarter and first six months of 20é&8pectively, driven
by solid performances from 2015 acquisitions amegtiture gains.

Foreign currency impacts (net of hedging) decreasedax earnings by approximately $40 million &8 million
year-on-year in the second quarter and first sinttmoof 2016, respectively, excluding the impadioo€ign currency
changes on tax rates. This is equivalent to a gaayear decrease of 4 cents and 9 cents per dishi@e for the second
quarter and first six months of 2016, respectively.

Over the past few years, 3M has taken actionstterbeptimize its capital structure and reducedst of capital by
adding debt. These actions have led to an inciedagerest expense year-on-year in the first spoths of 2016,
largely due to higher average debt balances.

The income tax rate was 29.6 percent in the seqaader, up 1.5 percentage points versus lastysacond quarter,
while the first six months 2016 tax rate of 28.2qeat declined 0.6 percentage points from the gaenied last year.
The second quarter and first six months 2016 chantgex rate was driven by a number of factorsedsrenced in Note
6, including the first quarter 2016 adoption of Aaating Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-09 (disedisis Note 1).

Weighted-average diluted shares outstanding is¢lcend quarter and first six months of 2016 dedlB& percent and
3.9 percent year-on-year, respectively, which bige@Earnings per share. The benefits from sharmercbases, net of
issuances, were partially offset by the adoptioA®U No. 2016-09, which increased the number aftdd shares.
Sales and operating income by business segment:

The following tables contain sales and operatingine results by business segment for the threehs@mtd six

months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015. In addititimetdiscussion below, refer to the section euwtitRerformance by
Business Segment” later in MD&A for a more detaitéscussion of the sales and operating incometsestithe
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Company and its respective business segments dingilCorporate and Unallocated). Refer to Notedrafiditional
information on business segments, including Eliriamaof Dual Credit.

Three months ended June 30,

2016 2015 % change

Net Oper. Net Oper. Net Oper.
(Dollars in millions) Sales Income Sales Income Sales Income
Business Segments
Industrial $ 2631 $ 615 $ 2,632 $ 608 (0.1% 1.2%
Safety and Graphics 1,499 411 1,432 364 47% 12.8%
Health Care 1,404 460 1,364 440 3.0% 4.3%
Electronics and Energy 1,181 229 1,312 278 (10.00% (18.1%
Consumer 1,130 281 1,111 259 1.7% 8.8%
Corporate and Unallocated 4 (88) 4 (74) — —
Elimination of Dual Credit (187 (42 (161 (35) — —
Total Company $ 7662 $ 1866 $ 7,686 $ 1,840 (0.3)% 1.4%

Three months ended June 30, 2016
Organic

Worldwide local- Total
Sales Change Analysis currency sales
By Business Segment sales Acquisitions Divestids Translation change
Industrial (1.4% 2.8% (0.2% (1.3% (0.1%
Safety and Graphics 298 6.9% (2.3)% (2.2)% 4.7%
Health Care 4.9% — % — % (1.9% 3.0%
Electronics and Energy (9.1)% % —% (0.9)9% (10.0)%
Consumer 2.7% — % — % (1.0% 1.7%
Total Company (0.2)% 1% (0.5)% (1.5)% (0.3)%

Sales in U.S. dollars in the second quarter of 2iH@eased 0.3 percent, substantially impactedi@ygn currency
translation, which reduced sales by 1.5 percertaltmmpany organic local-currency sales (whicludes organic
volume impacts plus selling price impacts) decréds@ percent, with growth in Health Care, Consyraed Safety and
Graphics more than offset by declines in Industeat Electronics and Energy. Four of 3M’s fiveihass segments
achieved operating income margins in excess ofe28qmt. Worldwide operating income margins forgheond quarter
of 2016 were 24.4 percent, compared to 23.9 pefoettie second quarter of 2015.

3M continued to invest for long-term success thtotesearch and development, commercialization aqdisitions.
Acquisitions increased second quarter sales growth9 percent, which related to acquisitions aloige2015. In
August 2015, 3M (Safety and Graphics Business)iaed(Capital Safety, a leading global provideralf protection
equipment. In August 2015, 3M (Industrial Busineasp acquired Membrana, a leading provider of ogiorous
membranes and modules for filtration in life sciemandustrial and specialty segments. For additidatail, refer to
Note 2 in the Consolidated Financial Statemen&Mrs Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 17, 2Qd/Bich
updated 3M’s 2015 Annual Report on Form 10-K).

Divestitures reduced second quarter sales growthbpercent. As part of its portfolio managemewotcpss, in the
fourth quarter of 2015, 3M (Safety and GraphicsiBess) divested the license plate converting bssiire France and
substantially all of the library systems busindsghe first quarter of 2016, 3M completed the s#Hléhe remaining
portions of its library systems business. Alsathia first quarter of 2016, 3M (Industrial Busin€x®up) divested the
assets of 3M’s pressurized polyurethane foam adégsiusiness (formerly known as Polyfoam). Thidrimss is a
provider of pressurized polyurethane foam adhefiraulations and systems into the residential rgfcommercial
roofing and insulation and industrial foam segmémthe United States with annual sales of appraxaty $20 million.
The Company recorded a pre-tax gain of $40 milifothe first quarter of 2016 as a result of the sHlPolyfoam and
the remaining portion of the library systems bustmdrefer to Note 2 in the Consolidated Finandiate®nents for
additional detail.
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Six months ended June 30,

2016 2015 % change

Net Oper. Net Oper. Net Oper.
(Dollars in millions) Sales Income Sales Income Sales Income
Business Segments
Industrial $ 5207 $ 1,232 $ 5,288 $ 1,204 (1.5% 2.4%
Safety and Graphics 2,911 756 2,804 699 3.8% 8.2%
Health Care 2,787 915 2,693 848 3.5% 7.8%
Electronics and Energy 2,325 437 2,636 563 (11.8)% (22.5%
Consumer 2,179 519 2,159 499 0.9% 4.0%
Corporate and Unallocated 5 (129) (2) (174) — —
Elimination of Dual Credit (343 (76) (314 (69) — —
Total Company $15,071 $ 3,654 $15,264 $ 3,570 (1.3)% 2.3%

Six months ended June 30, 2016
Organic

Worldwide local- Total
Sales Change Analysis currency sales
By Business Segment sales Acquisitions Divestids Translation change
Industrial (1.6% 2.4% (0.2% (2.1% (1.5%
Safety and Graphics 294 6.9% (2.4)% (3.1)% 3.8%
Health Care 5.6% 0.4% — % (2.5% 3.5%
Electronics and Energy (10.4)% %- —% (1.4)% (11.8)%
Consumer 2.7% — % — % (1.8% 0.9%
Total Company (0.6)% 2% (0.5)% (2.2)% (1.3)%

Sales in U.S. dollars in the first six months ol@@lecreased 1.3 percent, substantially impactddrbign currency
translation, which reduced sales by 2.2 percertalTtmmpany organic local-currency sales (whicludes organic
volume impacts plus selling price impacts) decréds6 percent, with growth in Health Care, Consyraed Safety and
Graphics more than offset by declines in Industaat Electronics and Energy. Four of 3M’s fiveibhass segments
achieved operating income margins in excess ofe28gmt. Worldwide operating income margins forfiret six

months of 2016 were 24.2 percent, compared to @&dent for the first six months of 2015.

In March 2015, 3M (Health Care Business) acquikedld Medical Corp., a manufacturer of health caoelpcts that
disinfect and protect devices used for accessarmatient’s bloodstream. Additional acquisition aliekstiture impacts

that impacted six months ended June 30, 2016 sesdtprovided in the second quarter discussioneabo

Sales by geographic area:

Percent change information compares the secondeqard first six months of 2016 with the samequisilast year,
unless otherwise indicated. From a geographic pets@, any references to EMEA refer to Europe,dWicEast and

Africa on a combined basis.
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Three months ended June 30, 2016

Europe, Latin

United Asia Middle East  America/ Other

States Pacific & Africa Canada Unallocated Worldwide
Net salesmillions) $3112 $2,144 $ 1665 $ 739 $ 2 $ 7,662

% of worldwide sales 40.6% 28.0% 21.7% 9.7% — 100.0%

Components of net sales change:
Volume — organic 0.1% (5.3)% 15% (2.4)% — (1.3)%
Price 0.3 (0.2 1.5 7.2 — 1.1
Organic local-currency sales 0.4 (5.4) 3.0 4.8 — (0.2)
Acquisitions 2.1 1.0 2.7 2.3 — 1.9
Divestitures (0.6) (0.2) (0.7) (0.3) — (0.5)
Translation — (0.2 1.7 (10.5 — (1.5
Total sales change 1.9% (4.8)% 3.3% (3.7)% — (0.3)%

Sales in U.S. dollars increased 3.3 percent in EMB@ 1.9 percent in the United States, while sédetined 3.7
percent in Latin America/Canada and 4.8 perceAisia Pacific. Currency impacts reduced second quaQ16
worldwide sales growth by 1.5 percent.

Worldwide selling prices rose 1.1 percent in theosel quarter of 2016. 3M has been raising sellimgep in a number
of developing countries to help offset the impdaturrency devaluations. 3M also continues to gateepositive selling
price changes across most of its businesses, liblogteorld-class innovation and strong new prodieet, both of
which are important elements of the 3M businessehod

Foreign currency translation reduced year-on-yakessin all major geographies, driven by a 10.&@ertranslation
impact in Latin America/Canada, as the BraziliamlRecakened versus the U.S. dollar compared tonskegoarter
2015 by 11 percent. The Euro and Yen strengtheaesuis the U.S. dollar compared to second quartEs B9 2
percent and 14 percent, respectively.

In Latin America/Canada, organic local-currencyesajrew 4.8 percent, led by Health Care at 8 perbsdustrial at 6
percent, and Safety and Graphics at 5 percent.m@rgizcal-currency sales were flat in Consumer, Blattronics and
Energy. Organic local-currency sales grew 5 periteltexico and declined 2 percent in Brazil.

In EMEA, organic local-currency sales increasedpfent, as West Europe was up 3 percent andal/&atst Europe
and Middle East/Africa grew 2 percent. Organic lemarency sales growth in EMEA was led by both lte&are and
Industrial at 4 percent, while both Electronics &mérgy, and Safety and Graphics grew 2 percegaide local-
currency sales declined 2 percent in Consumer.

In the United States, organic local-currency sghesvth was 0.4 percent, with growth of 5 percerbafety and
Graphics, 4 percent in Health Care, and 3 perce@Gbnsumer. Organic local-currency growth wasifidlectronics
and Energy, and declined 5 percent in Industriahil8r to the first quarter, U.S manufacturing ait$i remained soft in
the second quarter, which impacted portions of 3Ikdistrial business.

In Asia Pacific, organic local-currency sales deeti 5.4 percent. Organic local-currency sales dravets led by Health
Care at 7 percent, and Consumer at 6 percent, Bhilety and Graphics declined 3 percent, and Induseclined 4
percent. Electronics and Energy declined 15 peyesn8M continues to experience soft end-marketagenand
channel inventory adjustments in consumer eleatsoi@®rganic local-currency sales declined 1 pericedépan and 7
percent in China/Hong Kong. Excluding electronmgjanic local-currency sales in Japan increasegt@pt and
China/Hong Kong declined 2 percent.
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Six months ended June 30, 2016

Europe, Latin

United Asia Middle East America/ Other

States Pacific & Africa Canada  Unallocated Worldwide
Net salesmillions) $6,038 $4,357 $ 3,244 $1432 $ — $15,071

% of worldwide sales 40.1% 28.9% 21.5% 9.5% — 100.0%

Components of net sales change:
Volume — organic 0.2% (5.3% 1.1% (2.5)% — (1.6)%
Price 0.1 (0.2 1.3 7.0 — 1.0
Organic local-currency sales 0.3 (5.5) 2.4 4.5 — (0.6)
Acquisitions 2.4 1.0 2.7 2.3 — 2.0
Divestitures (0.6) (0.2) (0.7) (0.3) — (0.5)
Translation — (1.4 (2.3 (13.1 — (2.2
Total sales change 21% (6.1%0 2.1% (6.6)% — (1.3)%

Sales in U.S. dollars increased 2.1 percent in thathUnited States and EMEA, while sales declinddp@rcent in Asia
Pacific, and 6.6 percent in Latin America/Canadarréncy impacts reduced first six months 2016 weid@ sales
growth by 2.2 percent. Worldwide selling priceserdsO percent in the first six months of 2016.

In Latin America/Canada, organic local-currencyesajrew 4.5 percent, led by Health Care at 8 pgraed Industrial
at 7 percent, and Safety and Graphics at 3 per@eganic local-currency sales were flat in bothcElenics and Energy,
and Consumer. Organic local-currency sales greer8emt in Mexico and was flat in Brazil.

In EMEA, organic local-currency sales increasedp&rcent. Central/East Europe and Middle East/Afgrew 4
percent, and West Europe was up 2 percent. Ord¢satcurrency sales growth in EMEA was led by Hed&lare at 5
percent, and Industrial at 3 percent, while Sadéety Graphics grew 2 percent, and Electronics amddgyrgrew 1
percent. Organic local-currency sales declinedr8egue in Consumer.

In the United States, organic local-currency sghesv 0.3 percent, with growth of 4 percent in bidgelth Care, and
Safety and Graphics, and growth in Consumer ofr8gg, largely offset by declines in Electronicsl &nergy of 1
percent and Industrial of 5 percent. U.S manufaofuactivity was soft in the first half of 2016, igh impacted
portions of 3M’s Industrial business.

In Asia Pacific, organic local-currency sales deedi 5.5 percent. Organic local-currency sales dravets led by Health
Care at 9 percent, and Consumer at 6 percent, Bhilety and Graphics was flat, and Industrial dedi4 percent.
Electronics and Energy declined 16 percent, as 8Miues to experience soft end-market demand badne|
inventory adjustments in consumer electronics. @igcal-currency sales declined 5 percent in daal 6 percent in
China/Hong Kong. Excluding electronics, organicalecurrency sales in Japan increased 1 percenthimi/Hong
Kong decreased 1 percent.

Managing currency risks:

As discussed above, the stronger U.S. dollar negjgtimpacted sales and earnings in the secondeguard first six
months of 2016 compared to the same period last $&&utilizes a number of tools to hedge currerisl related to
earnings. 3M uses natural hedges such as pricinduptivity, hard currency and hard currency-indekélings, and
localizing source of supply. 3M also uses finanbidlges to mitigate currency risk. In the case afentiquid
currencies, 3M hedges a portion of its aggreggp@sxre, using a 12, 24 or 36 month horizon, demgnain the
currency in question. In the second quarter of 2@8Mlbegan extending its hedging tenor for certa@jor currencies,
most notably the Euro and Yen, from a previous tefrh2 months to a term of 24 months, and in thst fuarter of
2015 extended this to 36 months. For less liquidericies, financial hedging is frequently more axgdee with more
limitations on tenor. Thus this risk is largely naged via local operational actions using naturdbieg tools as
discussed above. In either case, 3M’s hedging agpris designed to mitigate a portion of foreigrrency risk and
reduce volatility, ultimately allowing time for 3id’businesses to respond to changes in the margetpla
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Financial condition:

3M generated $2.545 billion of operating cash flamvehe first six months of 2016, an increase @& nillion when
compared to the first six months of 2015. Refdh®section entitled “Financial Condition and Lidjty” later in
MD&A for a discussion of items impacting cash flows

In February 2016, 3M’s Board of Directors authodizbe repurchase of up to $10 billion of 3M’s oatsting common
stock, with no pre-established end date. In thet §ix months of 2016, the Company purchased $20k&n of its own
stock, compared to $2.581 bhillion of stock purclsasethe first six months of 2015. As of June 301 &, approximately
$8.7 billion remained available under the Febri2$6 authorization. The Company expects to purctiddallion to
$6 billion of its own stock in 2016. In Februaryl®) 3M’s Board of Directors declared a first qua@16 dividend of
$1.11 per share, an increase of 8 percent. Thikadahe 58th consecutive year of dividend incre&se3M. In May
2016, 3M’s Board of Directors declared a secondtgu2016 dividend of $1.11 per share.

3M'’s debt to total capital ratio (total capital ohefd as debt plus equity) was 50 percent at Jun2Q@IB, and 48 percent
at December 31, 2015. 3M currently has an AA- ¢reding with a stable outlook from Standard & Ps@nd has an
Al credit rating with a stable outlook from Moodyis/estors Service. The Company generates signifisagoing cash
flow and has proven access to capital markets figntliroughout business cycles.

3M expects to contribute approximately $200 milltors400 million of cash to its global defined bfingension and
postretirement plans in 2016. The Company doesian¢ a required minimum cash pension contributigigation for
its U.S. plans in 2016.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Net Sales:

Refer to the preceding sections entitled “Salesap@tating income by business segment” and “Sald®perating
income by geographic area” for discussion of selfesge.

Operating Expenses:

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30, June 30,
(Percent of net sales) 2016 2015 Change 2016 012 Change
Cost of sales 49.5% 50.2% (0.7% 49.6% 50.3% (0.7%
Selling, general and administrative expenses 20.4 20.2 0.2 20.3 20.4 (0.1)
Research, development and related expense: 5.7 5.7 — 5.9 5.9 —
Operating income 24.4% 23.9% 0.5% 24.2% 23.4% 0.8%

3M expects global defined benefit pension and ptistment expense in 2016 (before settlementsqitments, special
termination benefits and other) to decrease bya@mately $320 million pre-tax when compared to 20dhich
impacts cost of sales; selling, general and adinatige expenses (SG&A); and research, developreuedtelated
expenses (R&D). Refer to 3M’s Current Report omir8rK dated May 17, 2016 (MD&A section entitled t@xal
Accounting Estimates — Pension and Postretireméfig&tions and Note 11, Pension and PostretirefBenefit
Plans) for background concerning the change tejlo¢ yield curve approach and other factors, whidhresult in
decreased expenses in 2016. The year-on-year dedredefined benefit pension and postretiremepéese for the
second quarter and first six months of 2016 wasr#8®n and $165 million, respectively. The fig months of 2015
includes the impact of a first quarter 2015 Japamsjon curtailment gain of $17 million.

The Company is investing in an initiative calledsimess transformation, with these investments itipgcost of sales,
SG&A, and R&D. Business transformation encompa#se®ngoing multi-year phased implementation oéaterprise
resource planning (ERP) system on a worldwide basisvell as changes in processes and internaiextservice
delivery across 3M.
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Cost of Sales:
Cost of sales includes manufacturing, engineerimyfeeight costs.

Cost of sales as a percent of net sales improvéd/yercentage points in both the second quantkfiest six months
of 2016 when compared to the same periods last @emt of sales, measured as a percent of salegaded due to
selling price increases and raw material cost dsa® Selling prices increased net sales year-amnbyel.1 percent and
1.0 percent in the second quarter and first sixthmrrespectively, while raw material cost deflatin both the second
quarter and first six months was favorable by apipnately 3.5 percent year-on-year. In addition tadsales
decreased due to lower defined benefit pensiorpasttetirement expense (of which a portion impaott of sales).

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses:

SG&A increased 0.6 percent in the second quart206 and declined 2.0 percent in the first six themf 2016, when
compared to the same periods last year, with yedate results benefiting from first quarter 20h&sdtiture gains (as
discussed in Note 2), foreign currency translatéond productivity benefits related to the fourtladgar 2015
restructuring. In addition, lower defined benefingion and postretirement expense benefited SG&& A measured
as a percent of sales, was 20.3 percent of satee ffirst six months of 2016 compared to 20.4 eetin the first six
months of 2015.

Research, Development and Related Expenses:

R&D, measured as a percent of sales, was 5.7 pgesteales for both the three months ended Jun2C@I§ and 2015,
and was 5.9 percent of sales for both the six n@etided June 30, 2016 and 2015. R&D in dollars fletré the
second quarter of 2016 and decreased $14 millidharfirst six months of 2016 compared to the sper@ds last year,
benefitting from foreign currency translation anavér defined benefit pension and postretiremeneegp. 3M
continued to invest in its key growth initiativéis¢luding more R&D aimed at disruptive innovatiomgrams with the
potential to create entirely new markets and disexgsting markets.

Operating Income:
3M uses operating income as one of its primaryriass segment performance measurement tools. Refer table

below for a reconciliation of operating income masgfor the three months and six months ended 30n2016 versus
the same periods last year.

Three months ended  Six months ended

(Percent of net sales) June 30, 2016 June 30, 2016
Same period last year 23.9% 23.4%
Increase/(decrease) in operating income marginiaue

Selling price and raw material impact 1.3 1.2
Pension and postretirement benefit costs 1.1 1.0
Productivity from restructuring 0.4 0.4
Strategic investments (0.3) (0.2)
Foreign exchange impacts (0.3 (0.2
Acquisitions — (0.2)
Organic volume and utilization (1.1 (0.9
Legal and other (0.6) (0.4)

Current period 24.4% 24.2%

Operating income margins were 24.4 percent in ¢igersd quarter of 2016, compared to 23.9 percethieiisecond
quarter of 2015, an improvement of 0.5 percentajet® The first six months of 2016 improved by peBcentage
points. 3M continues to benefit from the combinatid higher selling prices and lower raw materits, plus lower
year-on-year defined benefit pension and postratré expense, in addition to productivity benaftated to the fourth
quarter 2015 restructuring. Items that reducedatper income margins included strategic investmeag<8M took
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actions to better optimize its manufacturing footpand accelerated growth investments acrossigmbsses, in
addition to foreign currency impacts (net of hedgas). Acquisitions had a minimal impact on opiegaincome
margins due to solid performances from both Cafitdbty and Membrana. Organic volume declines aladed
utilization impacts included the impact of lowesesutilization, particularly in electronics, amda lesser extent, in the
industrial businesses. The legal and other peiraltye preceding table, largely related to a seapratter 2016
unfavorable arbitration ruling on an insurancerol@discussed in Note 12). In the first six month2@l6, legal and
other impacts were partially offset by first quar2816 divestiture gains.

Interest Expense and Income:

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30, June 30,
(Millions) 2016 2015 2016 2015
Interest expense $ 38 $ 35 $ 85 $ 66
Interest income (@) () (12) (11)
Total $ 31 $ 28 $ 73 $ 55

Interest expense was higher in the second quartefist six months of 2016 compared to the samiogs last year,
largely due to higher average debt balances, whizhpartially offset by favorable foreign exchamgeacts on inter-
company financing activities.

Provision for Income Taxes:

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30, June 30,
(Percent of pre-tax income) 2016 2015 2016 2015
Effective tax rate 29.6% 28.1% 28.2% 28.8%

The effective tax rate for the second quarter dfe2@as 29.6 percent, compared to 28.1 percentise¢hond quarter of
2015, an increase of 1.5 percentage points. Tleetefé tax rate for the first six months of 2016w#8.2 percent,
compared to 28.8 percent in the first six month2@if5, a decrease of 0.6 percentage points. Thegeha tax rates
was driven by a number of factors as referencédbite 6, including the 2016 adoption of ASU No. 2@%5(discussed
in Note 1). The company updated its tax rate guiddor total year 2016 to 29.0 to 29.5 perceninff2f.5 to 30.5
percent), as a result of additional net benefasfthe 2016 adoption of ASU No. 2016-09. Refer tae\b for
additional discussion.

The effective tax rate can vary from quarter tortpradue to discrete items, such as the settleofantome tax audits,
changes in tax laws and employee share-based pageeunting; as well as recurring factors, sucthagyeographic
mix of income before taxes.

Net Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest:

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30, June 30,
(Millions) 2016 2015 2016 2015
Net income attributable to noncontrolling inter $ 2 9 3 $ 5 § 5

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interesresents the elimination of the income or log#hatable to non-3M
ownership interests in 3M consolidated entitiese phimary noncontrolling interest relates to 3Miintdimited, of
which 3M’s effective ownership is 75 percent.

Currency Effects:

3M estimates that year-on-year currency effectduding hedging impacts, decreased pre-tax incoyrepproximately
$40 million for the three months ended June 3062@hd decreased pre-tax income by approximatedyn§iflion for
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the six months ended June 30, 2016. This estimatedes the effect of translating profits from Ibcarrencies into

U.S. dollars; the impact of currency fluctuatiomstbe transfer of goods between 3M operationserlthited States and
abroad; and transaction gains and losses, inclutkngative instruments designed to reduce foreigmency exchange
rate risks and any impacts from swapping Venezuetdimars into U.S. dollars. 3M estimates that yearyear
derivative and other transaction gains and lossesedsed pre-tax income by approximately $10 millar the three
months ended June 30, 2016, which resulted in amalrimpact for the six months ended June 30, 2016.

Significant Accounting Policies:
Information regarding new accounting standardadfuded in Note 1 to the Consolidated FinanciateStents.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016408provements to Employee Share-Based Payment Adogun
which modifies certain accounting aspects for steased payments to employees including, among etherents, the
accounting for income taxes and forfeitures, as agtlassifications in the statement of cash floWws Company early
adopted ASU No. 2016-09 as of January 1, 2016 peatvely beginning January 1, 2016, excess tax
benefits/deficiencies have been reflected as indambenefit/expense in the statement of incomeltiag in a $59
million tax benefit in the quarter ended June 3I.& and $140 million benefit for the six monthsled June 30, 2016.
3M typically experiences the largest volume of ktoption exercises and restricted stock unit vestin the first
quarter of its fiscal year. Refer to Note 1 for itiddal detail.
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PERFORMANCE BY BUSINESS SEGMENT

Disclosures related to 3M’s business segmentsrargded in Note 14. The reportable segments aredtnil; Safety
and Graphics; Health Care; Electronics and Eneaggl; Consumer.

Corporate and Unallocated:

In addition to these five operating business sedgs@&M assigns certain costs to “Corporate and [doated”, which is
presented separately in the preceding businessesggtable and in Note 14. Corporate and Unallaciaigludes a
variety of miscellaneous items, such as corporatestment gains and losses, certain derivativesgaid losses, certain
insurance-related gains and losses, certain litigand environmental expenses, corporate restingtaharges and
certain under- or over-absorbed costs (e.g. pensiook-based compensation) that the Company magsehnot to
allocate directly to its business segments. Becthuse&ategory includes a variety of miscellaneiterss, it is subject to
fluctuation on a quarterly and annual basis.

Corporate and Unallocated operating income in goesd quarter and first six months of 2016 whengamed to the
same periods last year decreased by $14 millioriraptbved by $45 million, respectively. 3M’s defthbenefit
pension and postretirement expense allocation tpdaate and Unallocated decreased by $63 milliah$r26 million,
respectively, in the second quarter and first sixths of 2016 when compared to the same periotigdas. In the
second quarter and first six months of 2016, thresjp® and postretirement benefit was partiallyetffsy an
unfavorable second quarter 2016 arbitration ru{digcussed in Note 12).

Operating Business Segments:

Information related to 3M’s business segmentsHerdgecond quarter and first six months of both 20462015 is
presented in the tables that follow. Organic lanaFency sales include both organic volume imppkts selling price
impacts. Acquisition impacts, if any, are measugeplarately for the first twelve months post-tratisac The
divestiture impacts, if any, foreign currency triatisn impacts and total sales change are alsagedvor each
business segment. Any references to EMEA relakutope, Middle East and Africa on a combined basis.
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Industrial Business:

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30, June 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015
Sales (millions) $ 2631 $ 2632 $ 5207 $ 5,288
Sales change analysis:
Organic local currency (1.4% 1.4% (1.6% 2.0%
Acquisitions 2.8 — 2.4 —
Divestitures (0.2 — (0.2 —
Translation (1.3 (7.9) (2.1) (7.4)
Total sales change (0.1% (6.5% (1.5% (5.4%
Operating income (millions) $ 615 $ 608 $ 1232 $ 1,204
Percent change 1.2% (1.2)% 2.4% (2.3)%
Percent of sales 23.4% 23.1% 23.7% 22.8%

The Industrial segment serves a broad range ofetgr&uch as automotive original equipment manufac{OEM)

and automotive aftermarket (auto body shops aradl)etlectronics, appliance, paper and printiragkaging, food and
beverage, and construction. Industrial productldetapes, a wide variety of coated, non-woventzontied abrasives,
adhesives, advanced ceramics, sealants, specialéyiais, 3M purification (filtration products),odure systems for
personal hygiene products, acoustic systems predaicti components and products that are used mahefacture,
repair and maintenance of automotive, marine, @irend specialty vehicles. 3M is also a leadirapgl supplier of
precision grinding technology serving customerthmarea of hard-to-grind precision applicationmaustrial,
automotive, aircraft and cutting tools. 3M develapsl produces advanced technical ceramics for ddin@n
applications in the automotive, oil and gas, satatustrial, electronics and defense industries.

Second Quarter 2016 results:

Sales in Industrial totaled $2.6 billion, down @drcent in U.S. dollars. Organic local-currencesalecreased 1.4
percent, acquisitions added 2.8 percent, divesttoeduced sales by 0.2 percent, and foreign ayteanslation
reduced sales by 1.3 percent. The organic locaknay sales decline reflected the continued econchmllenges in the
global industrial sector. Manufacturing activitythre U.S. remained soft in the second quarter, hvimpacted portions
of 3M’s Industrial business.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
» Sales grew in automotive OEM, automotive aftermgried abrasives, which was offset by declinesszctioe
rest of the portfolio.
» Sales declined in 3M purification, industrial adkies and tapes, and aerospace commercial transporta
» Sales also declined in advanced materials, prigndtie to ongoing weakness in the oil and gas enttetsa
» Geographically, sales increased 6 percent in Latierica/Canada and 4 percent in EMEA, while Asiaifka
declined 4 percent and the United States declingeréent.

Acquisitions and divestitures:
» Acquisition sales growth related to the August 2@t§uisition of Membrana, a leading provider of
microporous membranes and modules for filtratiothinlife sciences, industrial, and specialty segme
* 3M completed its sale of the assets of 3M’s préssdrpolyurethane foam adhesives business (fornkadyvn
as Polyfoam) in January 2016 as discussed in Note 2

Operating income:

* Operating income margins increased by 0.3 percergamts to 23.4 percent, helped by fourth qua@drs
restructuring actions, and lower raw material costs
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First Six Months 2016 results:

Sales in Industrial totaled $5.2 billion, down pércent in U.S. dollars. Organic local-currencesalecreased 1.6
percent, acquisitions added 2.4 percent, divesttueduced sales by 0.2 percent, and foreign ayrteanslation
reduced sales by 2.1 percent. The organic locaknay decline reflected the continued economiclehgks in the
global industrial sector.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
» Sales grew in automotive OEM, and automotive afteket.
» Sales declined in abrasives, 3M purification, iridakadhesives and tapes, and aerospace commercial
transportation.
» Sales also declined in advanced materials, prigndtie to ongoing weakness in the oil and gas entteta
e Geographically, sales increased 7 percent in Latierica/Canada and 3 percent in EMEA, while Asiaiffa
declined 4 percent and the United States declinger&ent.

Acquisitions and divestitures:
* Acquisition sales growth related to the August 2@tguisition of Membrana, a leading provider of
microporous membranes and modules for filtratiothinlife sciences, industrial, and specialty segme
* 3M completed its sale of the assets of 3M’s préssdrpolyurethane foam adhesives business (fornkadyvn
as Polyfoam) in January 2016 as discussed in Note 2

Operating income:
e Operating income margins increased by 0.9 percemamts to 23.7 percent, helped by fourth quatsis
restructuring actions, and lower raw material costs
« In addition, the gain on sale of the Polyfoam bestwas patrtially offset by acquisition impactsiolth
resulted in a net operating income margin benéfX 5 percentage points.

Safety and Graphics Business:

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30, June 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015
Sales (millions) $ 1499 $ 1432 $ 2911 $ 2,804
Sales change analysis:
Organic local currency 2.3% 4.9% 2.4% 4.4%
Acquisitions 6.9 — 6.9 —
Divestitures (2.3 — (2.4 =
Translation (2.2 (9.0 (3.1) (8.3)
Total sales change 4.7% (4.1% 3.8% (3.9%
Operating income (millions) $ 411 % 364 $ 756 % 699
Percent change 12.8% 3.1% 8.2% 4.1%
Percent of sales 27.4% 25.4% 26.0% 24.9%

The Safety and Graphics segment serves a broad cdmgarkets that increase the safety, securitypaoductivity of
people, facilities and systems. Major product dffgs include personal protection products, sucteggiratory, hearing,
eye and fall protection equipment; traffic safetyl @ecurity products, including border and cividiggty solutions;
commercial solutions, including commercial graplsheeting and systems, architectural design sokifior surfaces,
and cleaning and protection products for commers#dblishments; and roofing granules for asplhéigtes.
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Second Quarter 2016 results:

Sales in Safety and Graphics totaled $1.5 billanincrease of 4.7 percent in U.S. dollars. Orgkraal-currency sales
increased 2.3 percent, and foreign currency trioslaeduced sales by 2.2 percent. Acquisitionseddsl9 percent,
while divestitures reduced sales by 2.3 percent.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
» Sales growth was led by roofing granules, as derirardased in the replacement shingle market, gnd b
commercial solutions.
» Sales grew slightly in personal safety, while saleslined slightly in traffic safety and security.
e Sales increased 5 percent in both Latin Americaa@arand the United States, and 2 percent in EMB&SS
declined 3 percent in Asia Pacific.

Acquisitions and divestitures:
* Acquisition sales growth reflects the acquisitigrCapital Safety in August 2015. Capital Safetg ieading
global provider of fall protection equipment.
* Inthe fourth quarter of 2015, 3M divested its fise plate converting business in France and sutzdtpiall of
its library systems business. In the first quanfe2016, 3M divested the remainder of the libraygtesms
business as discussed in Note 2.

Operating income:
»  Operating income totaled $411 million, up 12.8 petc
e Operating income margins were 27.4 percent of satgapared to 25.4 percent in the same quarteyéast
benefiting from higher selling prices and lower raaterial costs, plus fourth quarter 2015 restmirctu
actions.

First Six Months 2016 results:

Sales in Safety and Graphics totaled $2.9 billamincrease of 3.8 percent in U.S. dollars. Orgkrual-currency sales
increased 2.4 percent, and foreign currency trioslaeduced sales by 3.1 percent. Acquisitionseddsi9 percent,
while divestitures reduced sales by 2.4 percent.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
» Sales growth was led by roofing granules, commésalutions, and personal safety, while sales dedlin
traffic safety and security.
» Sales increased 4 percent in the United Statesrc@pt in Latin America/Canada, and 2 percent irEAM
while sales in Asia Pacific were flat.

Acquisitions and divestitures:
* Acquisition sales growth reflects the acquisitigrCapital Safety in August 2015. Capital Safetg ieading
global provider of fall protection equipment.
* Inthe fourth quarter of 2015, 3M divested its fise plate converting business in France and sutzdtpiall of
its library systems business. In the first quaofe2016, 3M divested the remainder of the librargtems
business as discussed in Note 2.

Operating income:
*  Operating income totaled $756 million, up 8.2 patce
» Operating income margins were 26.0 percent of sa@apared to 24.9 percent in the same periody/ésst
benefiting from higher selling prices and lower nanaterial costs, plus fourth quarter 2015 restmiatu
actions.
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Health Care Business:

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30, June 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015
Sales (millions) $ 1404 $ 1364 $ 2787 $ 2,693
Sales change analysis:
Organic local currency 4.9% 3.4% 5.6% 3.2%
Acquisitions — 0.7 0.4 0.7
Translation (1.9 (7.8 (2.5 (7.4
Total sales change 3.0% (3.7% 3.5% (3.5%
Operating income (millions) $ 460 $ 440 $ 915 $ 848
Percent change 4.3% 1.3% 7.8% (1.5%
Percent of sales 32.7% 32.3% 32.8% 31.5%

The Health Care segment serves markets that inchadical clinics and hospitals, pharmaceuticalataleand
orthodontic practitioners, health information sysse and food manufacturing and testing. Produaissanvices
provided to these and other markets include meditdlsurgical supplies, skin health and infectimvention products,
inhalation and transdermal drug delivery systeme, @are solutions (dental and orthodontic produttsalth
information systems, and food safety products. dffe in the third quarter of 2015, the Companyrfed the Oral Care
Solutions Division, which combined the former 3MEESand 3M Unitek divisions.

Second Quarter 2016 results:

Health Care sales totaled $1.4 billion, an increds20 percent in U.S. dollars. Organic local-eay sales increased
4.9 percent, and foreign currency translation redwsales by 1.9 percent.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
» Sales growth was broad-based across the Healthp@afelio, led by food safety, health informatieystems,
and medical consumables (which includes critical elronic care solutions, and infection prevention)
« On a geographic basis, sales increased 8 perceatimAmerica/Canada, 7 percent in Asia Pacifit] 4
percent in both EMEA and the United States.
» In developing markets, Health Care organic locatency sales grew 8 percent, with particular sttiery
China/Hong Kong, Taiwan, and Mexico.

Operating income:
» Operating income increased 4.3 percent to $46Gomill
* Operating income margins were 32.7 percent, condp@ar82.3 percent in the same period last yeavedrby
the combination of higher selling prices and lovax material costs, plus organic volume increases.

First Six Months 2016 results:

Health Care sales totaled $2.8 billion, an increds®5 percent in U.S. dollars. Organic local-emey sales increased
5.6 percent, acquisitions added 0.4 percent, amdgio currency translation reduced sales by 2.6quar

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
» Sales growth was broad-based across the Healthp@arfelio, led by food safety, and health inforiat
systems.
» On a geographic basis, sales increased 9 percésiarPacific, 8 percent in Latin America/Canadpgbcent
in EMEA, and 4 percent in the United States.
» In developing markets, Health Care organic locatency sales grew 10 percent.
« 3M continues to increase investments across thedsses to drive efficient growth into the future.
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Acquisitions:
» Acquisition sales growth related to the March 2@lEchase of lvera Medical Corp. Ivera is a manufartof
health care products that disinfect and protecicgswised for access into a patient’s bloodstream.

Operating income:
» Operating income increased 7.8 percent to $915omill
* Operating income margins were 32.8 percent, condp@ar81.5 percent in the same period last yeavedrby
the combination of higher selling prices and lovaax material costs, plus organic volume increases.
» Acquisitions had a minimal impact on operating imgomargins.

In September 2015, 3M announced that it would expdtrategic alternatives for its Health Informat®ystems
Division (HIS), which included spinning-off, sellinor retaining the business. In February 2016pfohg an in-depth
exploration of strategic alternatives, the Compangounced its intent to retain and further invegtis.

Electronics and Energy Business:

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30, June 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015
Sales (millions) $ 1,181 $ 1,312 $ 2325 $ 2,636
Sales change analysis:
Organic local currency (9.1% (2.9% (10.4% 1.4%
Divestitures — (0.7) — (0.8)
Translation (0.9 4.2 (1.4 (4.1
Total sales change (10.0)% (7.8)% (11.8)% (3.5)%
Operating income (millions) $ 229 % 278  $ 437  $ 563
Percent change (18.1% (5.3% (22.5% 7.7%
Percent of sales 19.3% 21.3% 18.8% 21.4%

The Electronics and Energy segment includes saolstibat improve the dependability, cost-effectivwsnand
performance of electronic devices; electrical paiduincluding infrastructure protection; telecommuations networks;
and power generation and distribution. This segteehéctronics solutions include optical film satuts for the
electronic display industry; high-performance flumhd abrasives; high-temperature and display tépaible circuits,
which use electronic packaging and interconnedtgohnology; and touch systems products. This setjisnemergy
solutions include pressure sensitive tapes andggslectrical insulation; infrastructure produttat provide both
protection and detection solutions; a wide arraffludr-optic and copper-based telecommunicatiossesys; and
renewable energy component solutions for the soildrwind power industries.

Second Quarter 2016 results:

Electronics and Energy sales totaled $1.2 billaown 10.0 percent in U.S. dollars. Organic locakency sales
declined 9.1 percent, and foreign currency traimslaeduced sales by 0.9 percent.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:

» Sales decreased 14 percent in 3M'’s electronicsegtlausinesses, with declines in both electroniaterrals
solutions and display materials and systems. 3Miwoes to be impacted by weak end market demarassacr
most consumer electronic applications. In addit@rannel inventory remains high, and 3M expectsahe
challenges to persist into the second half of 2016.

» Sales decreased 2 percent in 3M’s energy-relatsihésses, as declines in electrical markets arelvanie
energy were partially offset by growth in telecommimations.

» On a geographic basis, sales were up 2 perce¥ B and were flat in both Latin America/Canadad dne
United States. Sales declined 15 percent in AsiifiPavhere 3M’s electronics business is concertta
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Divestitures:
» 3M completed the sale of its static control bussneslanuary 2015.

Operating income:

» Operating income decreased 18.1 percent to $22@mil

* Operating income margins were 19.3 percent compard.3 percent in the same period last yeaQwer
organic volume and foreign currency effects wery partially offset by lower raw material costs.

* In addition, as announced in late April 2016, 3Mk@ctions within Electronics and Energy in theoset
quarter to better position the business going fodywaith the majority of these actions impacting th
electronics side of the business. These actiongcegtisecond quarter 2016 operating income margins b
approximately 0.8 percentage points.

First Six Months 2016 results:

Electronics and Energy sales totaled $2.3 billdmwn 11.8 percent in U.S. dollars. Organic locakency sales
declined 10.4 percent, and foreign currency traiosiaeduced sales by 1.4 percent.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:

» Sales decreased 16 percent in 3M’s electronicsecklausinesses, with declines in both electronaterals
solutions and display materials and systems. 3Miwoes to be impacted by weak end market demarassacr
most consumer electronic applications. In addit@dr@nnel inventory remains high, and 3M expectsehe
challenges to persist into the second half of 2016.

» Sales decreased approximately 1 percent in 3M'gggrelated businesses, with declines in electricatkets,
telecommunications, and renewable energy.

» On a geographic basis, sales increased 1 perceMEA, were flat in Latin America/Canada, and deetl 1
percent in the United States. Sales declined 1€epein Asia Pacific, where 3M’s electronics busies
concentrated.

Divestitures:
» 3M completed the sale of its static control bussneslanuary 2015.

Operating income:
e Operating income decreased 22.5 percent to $43ipmil
e Operating income margins were 18.8 percent comparéd.4 percent in the same period last yeapwasr
organic volume and foreign currency effects werng partially offset by lower raw material costs.
» In addition, as discussed in second quarter resdtions taken to better position the businessgyfirward
reduced operating income margins.

Consumer Business:

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30, June 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015
Sales (millions) $ 1,130 $ 1112 $ 2179 $ 2,159
Sales change analysis:
Organic local currency 2.7% 3.4% 2.7% 2.8%
Translation (1.0 (5.9 (1.8) (5.5
Total sales change 1.7% (2.5% 0.9% (2.7%
Operating income (millions) $ 281 % 259 % 519 $ 499
Percent change 8.8% 7.4% 4.0% 6.3%
Percent of sales 24.9% 23.3% 23.8% 23.1%
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The Consumer segment serves markets that inclugrioeer retail, office retail, office business tsimess, home
improvement, drug and pharmacy retail, and othakets. Products in this segment include office $pppoducts,
stationery products, construction and home impragrproducts (do-it-yourself), home care produststective
material products, certain consumer retail perseatdty products, and consumer health care praducts

Second Quarter 2016 results:

Consumer sales totaled $1.1 billion, up 1.7 pergebkS. dollars. Organic local-currency sales éased 2.7 percent,
and foreign currency translation reduced sales.@yércent.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
» Sales growth was led by construction and home ingr@nt, in addition to consumer health care.
» On a geographic basis, sales increased 6 percéstarPacific, 3 percent in the United States, wiatein
Latin America/Canada, and declined 2 percent in BME

Operating income:

»  Operating income was $281 million, up 8.8 perceminfthe same period last year.

e Operating income margins were 24.9 percent, up 288 percent in the same period last year, bémgfitom
the combination of higher selling prices and lovax material costs. In addition, organic sales ghow
prioritization of investments, and productivity @ffs contributed to strong operating income margin
performance.

First Six Months 2016 results:

Consumer sales totaled $2.2 billion, up 0.9 pergebkS. dollars. Organic local-currency sales éased 2.7 percent,
and foreign currency translation reduced sales.8yércent.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
e Sales growth was led by construction and home ingr@nt, in addition to consumer health care.
e On a geographic basis, sales increased 6 percéstarPacific, and 3 percent in the United Statese flat in
Latin America/Canada, and declined 3 percent in BME

Operating income:
»  Operating income was $519 million, up 4.0 perceminfthe same period last year.
e Operating income margins were 23.8 percent, up 8r percent in the same period last year, bémgfitom
the combination of higher selling prices and lovax material costs.

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND LIQUIDITY

3M continues its transition to a better-optimizeghital structure and is adding leverage at a medspaice. The strength
and stability of 3M’s business model and strong frash flow capability, together with proven cdpitarkets access,
enable the Company to implement this strategy.dting in 3M’s businesses to drive organic growtmans the first
priority for capital deployment, including reseaianid development, capital expenditures, and comalization
capability. Investment in organic growth will bepplemented by complementary acquisitions. 3M wWilbacontinue to
return cash to shareholders through dividends hacksepurchases. Sources for cash availabilittydrnited States,
such as ongoing cash flow from operations and adoesapital markets, have historically been sigfitto fund
dividend payments to shareholders and share regsshas well as funding U.S. acquisitions andr atbms as
needed. For those international earnings considerbd reinvested indefinitely, the Company cuidsehas no plans or
intentions to repatriate these funds for U.S. ojama. However, if these international funds aredesl for operations in
the U.S., 3M would be required to accrue and p&. thxes to repatriate them. See Note 8 in 3M’'s&iReport on
Form 8-K dated May 17, 2016, for further information earnings considered to be reinvested indefjnit
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3M'’s primary short-term liquidity needs are meftthgh cash on hand and U.S. commercial paper isssaBM
believes it will have continuous access to the centcial paper market. 3M’s commercial paper progpammits the
Company to have a maximum of $3 billion outstandiidy a maximum maturity of 397 days from datessfuance.
Effective July 15, 2016, this program was increaseal maximum of $5 billion outstanding.

Total debt:

The strength of 3M’s capital structure and sigifitongoing cash flows provide 3M proven accessapital markets.
Additionally, the Company’s maturity profile is g@gered to help ensure refinancing needs in anyngrear are
reasonable in proportion to the total portfolio. 8wWtrently has an AA- credit rating with a stablgélook from
Standard & Poor’s and has an Al credit rating wittable outlook from Moody'’s Investors Service.

The Company has a “well-known seasoned issuer” (WKIgIf registration statement, effective May 2614, which
registers an indeterminate amount of debt and ygetiturities for future sales. In May 2016, in ogction with the
WKSI shelf, 3M entered into an amended and restdistdbution agreement relating to the future &ste and sale
(from time to time) of the Company’s medium-terntesprogram (Series F), up to the aggregate pahaimount of
$18 billion, which was an increase from the presiaggregate principal amount up to $9 billion & game Series.

The Company’s total debt was $952 million highedwate 30, 2016 when compared to December 31, 2Gitbthe
increase primarily due to May 2016 debt issuaniceslay 2016, 3M issued 500 million Euro aggregaiegpal
amount of 5.75-year fixed rate medium-term notess [éebruary 2022 with a coupon rate of 0.375% aridnsillion
Euro aggregate principal amount of 15-year fixedd rmaedium-term notes due 2031 with a coupon rafle5f%. Both
of these issuances were under the medium-term potgsam (Series F). As of June 30, 2016, the twtaunt of debt
issued as part of the medium-term notes programesE), inclusive of debt issued in 2011, 2012,£2®015 and the
2016 debt referenced above, is approximately $#li8rb(utilizing the foreign exchange rates applite at the time of
issuance for the Euro denominated debt).

In March 2016, 3M amended and restated its exi$hg5 billion five-year revolving credit facilityxpiring in August
2019 to a $3.75 billion five-year revolving creféitility expiring in March 2021. This credit agreent includes a
provision under which 3M may request an increasgpab $1.25 billion (at lenders’ discretion), lging the total
facility up to $5.0 billion. This revolving crediacility is undrawn at June 30, 2016. Under the7$aillion credit
agreement, the Company is required to maintaiBBE DA to Interest Ratio as of the end of eachdlguarter at not
less than 3.0 to 1. This is calculated (as defingde agreement) as the ratio of consolidated EBAT DA for the four
consecutive quarters then ended to total intesgmrese on all funded debt for the same perioduAe B0, 2016, this
ratio was approximately 51 to 1. Debt covenantsalarestrict the payment of dividends. Apart frdra tommitted
facilities, $291 million in stand-alone lettersavédit and $22 million in bank guarantees were &soed and
outstanding at June 30, 2016. These lines of cagdititilized in connection with normal businessvies.

Cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities:

At June 30, 2016, 3M had $1.9 billion of cash, caghivalents and marketable securities, of whigir@xmately $1.7
billion was held by the Company’s foreign subsigiarand approximately $160 million was held by theted States.
These balances are invested in bank instrumentstaed high-quality fixed income securities. Spiesifconcerning
marketable securities investments are providedate N. At December 31, 2015, cash, cash equivaterttsnarketable
securities held by the Company’s foreign subsidaménd by the United States totaled approximately Billion and
$200 million, respectively.

Net Debt (non-GAAP measure):
Net debt is not defined under U.S. GAAP and maybgotomputed the same as similarly titled measused by other

companies. The Company defines net debt as tdvallelss the total of cash, cash equivalents aneicuand long-term
marketable securities. 3M believes net debt is ingéul to investors as 3M considers net debt amddmponents to be
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an important indicator of liquidity and a guidingeasure of capital structure strategy. The followtadge provides net
debt as of June 30, 2016, and December 31, 2015.

June 30, December 31,
(Millions) 2016 2015
Total Debt $ 11,749 $ 10,797
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and marketabletgscu 1,879 1,925
Net Debt (non-GAAP measure) $ 9,870 $ 8,872

In the first six months of 2016, net debt increalsg&1.0 billion to a net debt balance of $9.9idl| driven by the May
2016 debt issuances.

Balance Sheet:

3M’s strong balance sheet and liquidity provide @@mpany with significant flexibility to take adviage of future
investment opportunities. The Company will continoiénvest in its operations to drive both orgagriowth and
acquisition opportunities.

Various assets and liabilities, including cash ginort-term debt, can fluctuate significantly froramth to month
depending on short-term liquidity needs. Workingita (defined as current assets minus currentliliss) totaled
$4.182 billion at June 30, 2016, compared with 68.Billion at December 31, 2015, an increase o#i$3illion.
Current asset balance changes increased workiriigiday $450 million, driven by higher accountsea@ble balances,
which are discussed further below. Current liapitialance changes decreased working capital by 8l6n, driven
by higher short-term debt balances.

The Company uses working capital measures thae @agphasis and focus on certain working capitatas$hese
measures are not defined under U.S. generally ssd@gcounting principles and may not be computedsame as
similarly titted measures used by other compariiéese measures include accounts receivable tuefiag¢d as
quarterly net sales multiplied by 4 divided by emaccounts receivable — net) and inventory tudefirfed as quarterly
manufacturing cost multiplied by 4 divided by erglinventory). For inventory turns calculation pusps,
manufacturing cost is defined as cost of salesftegght and engineering costs. Freight and engingeost totaled
$159 million for both the second quarter of 2016 &urth quarter of 2015, and totaled $165 millfonthe second
quarter of 2015.

Accounts receivable increased $513 million, or agpnately 12%, compared with December 31, 201%igiser June
2016 sales compared to December 2015 sales caetlibmthis increase. Accounts receivable incre&8&dmillion
compared to the same quarter last year. Accouotsvable turns were 6.57 at June 30, 2016, comparéd3 at
December 31, 2015 and 6.72 at June 30, 2015. loniestincreased $95 million, or approximately 3e@gent,
compared with December 31, 2015, and decreasedr$i2il8zh when compared to June 30, 2015. Inventarps were
4.03 at June 30, 2016, down from 4.13 at Decembg?@L5, but an improvement from 3.84 at June 8052

Cash Flows:

Cash flows from operating, investing and financingjvities are provided in the tables that folldadividual amounts
in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows exdiedeffects of acquisitions, divestitures and exgfe rate impacts
on cash and cash equivalents, which are presestseparate line items within the statement of iasvs. Thus, the
amounts presented in the following operating, itimgsand financing activities tables reflect chamgebalances from
period to period adjusted for these effects.

As discussed in Note 1, 3M adopted ASU No. 201@fdsctive January 1, 2016, on a prospective basis.new
guidance impacts classifications within the statetnoé cash flows by no longer requiring inclusidreacess tax
benefits as both a hypothetical cash outflow witash flows from operating activities and hypottedtcash inflow
within cash flows from financing activities. Insteaxcess tax benefits would be classified in dpegactivities in the
same manner as other cash flows related to incarest
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Six months ended

June 30,

(Millions) 2016 2015
Net income including noncontrolling inter $ 2571 $ 2,504
Depreciation and amortization 722 683
Company pension contributions (95) (183
Company postretirement contributions (2) (2)
Company pension expense 94 213
Company postretirement expense 24 70
Stock-based compensation expense 193 187
Income taxes (deferred and accrued income taxes) (236 (126)
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation — (129
Accounts receivable (419 (446)
Inventories (42) (269
Accounts payable (57) (34)
Other — net (208 (50

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 2545 $ 2,418

Cash flows from operating activities can fluctusitgnificantly from period to period, as pensiondimg decisions, tax
timing differences and other items can significaittipact cash flows.

In the first six months of 2016, cash flows prodd®y operating activities increased $127 milliompared to the same
period last year, with this increase primarily do& year-on-year improvement in inventories armbants receivable,
plus lower cash taxes. The combination of accorgusivable, inventories and accounts payable isecaorking
capital by $518 million in the first six months 216, compared to working capital increases of $v#ion in the first
six months of 2015. Additional discussion on wotkaapital changes is provided earlier in the “FmahCondition and
Liquidity” section. Information concerning pensiand postretirement contributions and expense igiged in Note 9,
with additional discussion in the preceding Perfance by Business Segment section. Other-net ipréeeding table
reflects a reduction in cash flows from operating\aties, partially due to a $40 million divestitugain in 2016
(discussed in Note 2), as cash divestiture actigipyresented as proceeds from sale of businest@n imvesting
activities, not operating activities.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Six months ended

June 30,

(Millions) 2016 2015
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (PP&E) $ (637, $ (661
Proceeds from sale of PP&E and other assets 18 14
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired 4) (153
Purchases and proceeds from maturities and sataudfetable

securities and investments, net (61) 928
Proceeds from sale of businesses 56 19
Other investing activities (2) 19
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activ $ (630 $ 166

Capital spending was $637 million in the first sionths of 2016, compared to $661 million in thstfsix months of
2015. The Company expects 2016 capital spendibg @pproximately $1.3 billion to $1.5 billion.
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Investments in property, plant and equipment engldeith across many diverse markets, helping tat ipesluct
demand and increasing manufacturing efficiency.iBésts in renewal and maintenance programs, wiectain to

cost reduction, cycle time, maintaining and rengwdarrent capacity, pollution reduction, and compdie. Costs related
to maintenance, ordinary repairs, and certain dteers are expensed. 3M also invests in new groapacity, both
through expansion of current facilities and by dinig new facilities. 3M also invests in corporabdratory facilities
and information technology (IT).

Refer to Note 2 for information on acquisitions alidestitures. The Company is actively consideadditional
acquisitions, investments and strategic allianard,from time to time may also divest certain beisses. Proceeds
from sale of businesses in the first six month2Qi6 related to the divestiture of the assetseptiessurized
polyurethane foam adhesives business (formerly knasvPolyfoam) business within the Industrial besinsegment
and the completion of the divestiture of the Lilgrhusiness within the Safety and Graphics busiaegment.

Purchases of marketable securities and investragigtproceeds from maturities and sale of marketsddarities and
investments are primarily attributable to assetkbdcsecurities, certificates of deposit/time deggosiommercial paper,
and other securities, which are classified as allgtfor-sale. Net proceeds from maturities and eamarketable
securities in the first six months of 2015 weredusehelp fund the August 2015 acquisitions of i@dsafety and
Membrana. Refer to Note 7 for more details abouts3diversified marketable securities portfolio. Bheses of
investments include additional survivor benefiturance, plus cost method and equity investments.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

Six months ended

June 30,

(Millions) 2016 2015
Change in short-term debt — net $ (337, $ (39
Repayment of debt (maturities greater than 90 days) — (20)
Proceeds from debt (maturities greater than 90)days 1,112 1,925
Total cash change in debt $ 775 $ 1,876
Purchases of treasury stock (2,055 (2,581
Proceeds from issuances of treasury stock pursoatbck option and benefit

plans 612 450
Dividends paid to stockholders (1,344 (1,298
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation — 129
Other — net (16) (50
Net cash used in financing activit $ (2,028 $ (1,474)

Total debt at June 30, 2016 was $11.7 billion,ropf$10.8 billion at year-end 2015, with the inae@rimarily due to
May 2016 debt issuances (approximately $1.1 billibissue date exchange rates). This increase avaally offset by
the net impact of repayments and borrowings bymatigonal subsidiaries, which is reflected in “Cbarin short-term
debt—net” in the preceding table. Total debt wap&ent of total capital (total capital is defiresddebt plus equity)
at June 30, 2016, compared to 48 percent of tafztal at year-end 2015.

Proceeds from debt for the six-months ended Jun2Q@(B, primarily related to the May 2016 issuaotB00 million
Euros aggregate principal amount of 5.75-year foedd medium-term notes due February 2022, andrslion Euros
aggregate principal amount of 15-year fixed ratelim®-term notes due 2031 (refer to Note 8 for nuetail).

Proceeds from debt for the six-months ended Jun2QIb, primarily related to the May 2015 issuaofc850 million
Euros aggregate principal amount of five-year fluatate medium-term notes due 2020, 600 millionoSwaggregate
principal amount of eight-year fixed rate mediumsienotes due 2023, and 500 million Euros aggregateipal
amount of fifteen-year fixed rate medium-term natae 2030, which in the aggregate totaled appraely&1.9 billion
at issue date exchange rates.
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Repurchases of common stock are made to suppo@iathmany’s stock-based employee compensation plach$or
other corporate purposes. In February 2016, 3Mar8of Directors authorized the repurchase of upl billion of
3M'’s outstanding common stock, with no pre-estdigiisend date. In the first six months of 2016,Gbenpany
purchased $2.055 billion of its own stock, compare#i2.581 billion in the first six months of 20THe Company
expects full-year 2016 gross share repurchasedevith the range of $4 billion to $6 billion. Foore information, refer
to the table titled “Issuer Purchases of Equityusiéies” in Part Il, Item 2. The Company does ntiize derivative
instruments linked to the Company’s stock.

Cash dividends paid to shareholders totaled $1b8Hdn in the first six months of 2016, compared®1.298 billion in
the first six months of 2015. 3M has paid dividerdsh year since 1916. In February 2016, 3M’s Boafdirectors
declared a first quarter 2016 dividend of $1.11gb&re, an increase of 8 percent. This is equivédesin annual
dividend of $4.44 per share and marked the 58tkemitive year of dividend increases for 3M. In N2&16, 3M’s
Board of Directors declared a second quarter 20iélehd of $1.11 per share.

Other cash flows from financing activities may i various other items, such as distributions teates of
noncontrolling interests, changes in cash overdr@tinces, and principal payments for capital kease

Free Cash Flow (non-GAAP measure):

Free cash flow and free cash flow conversion atelafined under U.S. generally accepted accoumtimgiples
(GAAP). Therefore, they should not be considerediastitute for income or cash flow data prepareacitordance with
U.S. GAAP and may not be comparable to similatlgdi measures used by other companies. The Congedimes free
cash flow as net cash provided by operating ams/iess purchases of property, plant and equipritesttould not be
inferred that the entire free cash flow amountgilable for discretionary expenditures. The Conypdefines free cash
flow conversion as free cash flow divided by netoime attributable to 3M. The Company believes &a&sh flow and
free cash flow conversion are meaningful to invessts they function as useful measures of perfocmand the
Company uses these measures as an indication strémgth of the company and its ability to gereecatsh. The first
quarter of each year is typically 3M’s seasonal fomfree cash flow and free cash flow conversiBelow find a recap
of operating, investing and financing cash flonangl with free cash flow details for the six monémeled June 30, 2016
and 2015.

Six months ended

June 30,
(Millions) 2016 2015
Major GAAP Cash Flow Categories
Net cash provided by operating activi $ 2545 $ 2,418
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activ (630 166
Net cash used in financiractivities (2,028 (1,474
Free Cash Flow (non-GAAP measure)
Net cash provided by operating activi $ 2545 $ 2,418
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (PP&E) (637 (661)
Free cash flow $ 1,908 $ 1,757
Net income attributable to 3 $ 2566 $ 2,499
Free cash flow conversion 74% 70%
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CAUTIONARY NOTE CONCERNING FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, including “Maeaent’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Cbadiand
Results of Operations” in Part I, Item 2, contdmsvard-looking statements within the meaning & Brivate
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. The Companay also make forward-looking statements in iotBports
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiomaterials delivered to shareholders and in prelesses. In
addition, the Company’s representatives may franetio time make oral forward-looking statements.

Forward-looking statements relate to future evantstypically address the Company’s expected futustness and
financial performance. Words such as “plan,” “exgeaim,” “believe,” “project,” “target,” “anticipate,” “intend,”
“estimate,” “will,” “should,” “could,” “forecast” ad other words and terms of similar meaning, tylprddentify such
forward-looking statements. In particular, thesgude, among others, statements relating to:

« the Company’s strategy for growth, future reveneeasnings, cash flow, uses of cash and other messdir
financial performance, and market position,

* worldwide economic, political, and capital marketéditions, such as interest rates, foreign cugrexchange
rates, financial conditions of our suppliers andtoemers, and natural and other disasters or cliof@age
affecting the operations of the Company or its ieppand customers,

* new business opportunities, product developmeiot fatture performance or results of current or apited
products,

» the scope, nature or impact of acquisitions, fiatalliances and divestitures,

« the outcome of contingencies, such as legal andatgy proceedings,

» future levels of indebtedness, common stock re@ges and capital spending,

« future availability of and access to credit markets

* pension and postretirement obligation assumptiodsfature contributions,

e assetimpairments,

» tax liabilities,

» information technology security, and

» the effects of changes in tax, environmental aheérofws and regulations in the United States dhero
countries in which we operate.

The Company assumes no obligation to update oseeuiy forward-looking statements.

Forward-looking statements are based on certaimgssons and expectations of future events andigr¢imat are
subject to risks and uncertainties. Actual futwsults and trends may differ materially from histak results or those
reflected in any such forward-looking statemenfsetteling on a variety of factors. Important inforioatas to these
factors can be found in this document, includingpag others, “Management’s Discussion and Analy&isnancial
Condition and Results of Operations” under the hreggdof “Overview,” “Financial Condition and Liquity” and
annually in “Critical Accounting Estimates.” Disaisn of these factors is incorporated by referdrma Part II, Item
1A, “Risk Factors,” of this document, and shouldcbasidered an integral part of Part I, ltem 2, Hdgement's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &ebkults of Operations.” For additional informatmmcerning
factors that may cause actual results to vary ni@diiefrom those stated in the forward-looking staents, see our
reports on Form 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K filed with tHEGfrom time to time.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Alput Market Risk.

In the context of Item 3, 3M is exposed to marksit due to the risk of loss arising from adversanges in foreign
currency exchange rates, interest rates and contyrqarites. Changes in those factors could impaztGbmpany’s
results of operations and financial condition. &aliscussion of sensitivity analysis related tséhiypes of market
risks, refer to Part Il, Iltem 7A, Quantitative aQdalitative Disclosures About Market Risk, in 3MCsirrent Report on
Form 8-K dated May 17, 2016 (which updated 3M’s2@&hnual Report on Form 10-K). There have been atenal
changes in information that would have been pravidehe context of Iltem 3 from the end of the pding year until
June 30, 2016. However, the Company does provittamanagement discussion in various places irQheterly
Report on Form 10-Q, primarily in the Derivativeste
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Item 4. Controls and Procedures.

a. The Company carried out an evaluation, undestipervision and with the participation of its mg@aent, including
the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial 0k, of the effectiveness of the design and opmradf the
Company’s “disclosure controls and procedures’d@med in the Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(e)) asefand of the
period covered by this report. Based upon thatuatin, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Fio@h Officer
concluded that the Company’s disclosure controts@ncedures are effective.

b. There was no change in the Company’s internatrabover financial reporting that occurred durihg Company’s
most recently completed fiscal quarter that hasnsdty affected, or is reasonably likely to maddisi affect, the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting

The Company is implementing an enterprise resoplar@ning (“ERP”) system on a worldwide basis, whielkexpected
to improve the efficiency of certain financial aredated transaction processes. The gradual impletien is expected
to occur in phases over the next several yearsifiplementation of a worldwide ERP system will likaffect the
processes that constitute our internal control éwmancial reporting and will require testing fdfestiveness.

The Company completed implementation with respeeléments of certain processes/sub-processeamnitedi
subsidiaries/locations and will continue to rolt e ERP system over the next several years. Asamy new
information technology application we implementsthpplication, along with the internal controlsofinancial
reporting included in this process, was appropgatensidered within the testing for effectivenesth respect to the
implementation in these instances. We concludegagsof its evaluation described in the above graghs, that the
implementation of the ERP system in these circunt&ts has not materially affected our internal adrdver financial
reporting.
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3M COMPANY
FORM 10-Q
For the Quarterly Period Ended June 30, 2016
PART Il. Other Information

Iltem 1. Legal Proceedings.

Discussion of legal matters is incorporated byrexiee from Part |, Item 1, Note 12, “Commitmentd &ontingencies
of this document, and should be considered anralk@grt of Part Il, ltem 1, “Legal Proceedings.”

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

Provided below is a cautionary discussion of whatbelieve to be the most important risk factordiapple to the
Company. Discussion of these factors is incorpdrhtereference into and considered an integralgfdpart I, ltem 2,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahditions and Results of Operations.”

* Results are impacted by the effects of, and cearmg, worldwide economic, political, and capitednkets conditions.
The Company operates in more than 70 countrieslarides approximately 60 percent of its revenuesifoutside the
United States. The Company’s business is subjegibtmal competition and geopolitical risks and rbayadversely
affected by factors in the United States and othentries that are beyond its control, such asei@eonomic growth,
disruptions in financial markets, economic downsuimthe form of either contained or widespreassmnary
conditions, inflation, elevated unemployment leyslaggish or uneven recovery, government defegiuction and
other austerity measures in specific countrieggions, or in the various industries in which tr@r@any operates;
social, political or labor conditions in specifiountries or regions; natural and other disastedimate change
affecting the operations of the Company or its@ongrs and suppliers; or adverse changes in th&abiiy and cost of
capital, interest rates, tax rates, tax laws, eharge control, ability to expatriate earnings atiar regulations in the
jurisdictions in which the Company operates.

* Change in the Company’s credit ratings could mase cost of fundinghe Company’s credit ratings are important to
3M’s cost of capital. The major rating agenciestirely evaluate the Company’s credit profile andigis debt ratings to
3M. This evaluation is based on a number of factetsch include financial strength, business andricial risk, as

well as transparency with rating agencies and timaes of financial reporting. 3M currently has af-Aredit rating

with a stable outlook from Standard & Poor’s and ha Al credit rating with a stable outlook fromddig’s Investors
Service. In March 2016, Moody’s downgraded 3M’'sngfrom Aa3 to Al, revised 3M’s outlook from nelyatto
stable, and affirmed the Company’s short-term gatihP-1. This ratings action followed 3M’s annoanent of its new
five-year plan for the period 2016 through 202@virich the Company communicated its intent to furtherease
financial leverage. The Company’s credit ratingeehserved to lower 3M’s borrowing costs and faaftaccess to a
variety of lenders. The Company’s ongoing trangitio a better-optimized capital structure, finanegith additional
low-cost debt, could impact 3M’s credit rating hetfuture. Failure to maintain strong investmeiaidgrratings would
adversely affect the Company'’s cost of funding emald adversely affect liquidity and access to @dpharkets.

* The Company’s results are affected by competitaaditions and customer preferencBemand for the Company’s
products, which impacts revenue and profit margsaffected by (i) the development and timingted introduction of
competitive products; (ii) the Company’s resporssddwnward pricing to stay competitive; (iii) chasgn customer
order patterns, such as changes in the levelsvehtory maintained by customers and the timingust@mer purchases
which may be affected by announced price changesges in the Company’s incentive programs, octistomer’s
ability to achieve incentive goals; and (iv) chamgecustomers’ preferences for our products, ulicly the success of
products offered by our competitors, and changesigsiomer designs for their products that can affecdemand for
some of the Company’s products.

* Foreign currency exchange rates and fluctuationthose rates may affect the Company’s abilityetmize projected

growth rates in its sales and earnin@gecause the Company’s financial statements arendieated in U.S. dollars and
approximately 60 percent of the Company’s reveranesierived from outside the United States, the f@oy's results
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of operations and its ability to realize projectgdwth rates in sales and earnings could be adyaffected if the U.S.
dollar strengthens significantly against foreigmrencies.

* The Company’s growth objectives are largely defmari on the timing and market acceptance of its prauct
offerings, including its ability to continually rew its pipeline of new products and to bring thpseducts to market.
This ability may be adversely affected by difficedt or delays in product development, such asneility to identify
viable new products, obtain adequate intellectuaperty protection, or gain market acceptance of ppducts. There
are no guarantees that new products will proveetodmmercially successful.

* The Company’s future results are subject to fliations in the costs and availability of purchasednponents,
compounds, raw materials and energy, includingaail natural gas and their derivatives, due to shgets, increased
demand, supply interruptions, currency exchangesrigatural disasters and other factofsie Company depends on
various components, compounds, raw materials, aadhg (including oil and natural gas and their d&tives) supplied
by others for the manufacturing of its productss possible that any of its supplier relationshipsld be interrupted
due to natural and other disasters and other evemi® terminated in the future. Any sustainedriniption in the
Company’s receipt of adequate supplies could hawaterial adverse effect on the Company. In additichile the
Company has a process to minimize volatility in poment and material pricing, no assurance canuanghat the
Company will be able to successfully manage piieetdiations or that future price fluctuations ooghges will not
have a material adverse effect on the Company.

* Acquisitions, strategic alliances, divestituresd other unusual events resulting from portfolian@gement actions
and other evolving business strategies, and passitanizational restructuring could affect futuesults.The
Company monitors its business portfolio and orgatinal structure and has made and may continueate@
acquisitions, strategic alliances, divestitures elmahges to its organizational structure. With eespo acquisitions,
future results will be affected by the Company’dighto integrate acquired businesses quickly abthin the
anticipated synergies.

* The Company’s future results may be affecteddf@ompany generates fewer productivity improvesnain
estimatedThe Company utilizes various tools, such as Laarsma, and engages in ongoing global business
transformation. Business transformation is defiae@¢hanges in processes and internal/externateateiivery across
3M to move to more efficient business models tormep operational efficiency and productivity, whilbowing 3M to
serve customers with greater speed and efficiefiuig. is enabled by the ongoing multi-year phasegulémentation of
an enterprise resource planning (ERP) system oorlwide basis. There can be no assurance thaf tie projected
productivity improvements will be realized.

* The Company employs information technology systensupport its business, including ongoing phased
implementation of an ERP system as part of busitnessformation on a worldwide basis over the resiteral years.
Security breaches and other disruptions to the Gaomgjs information technology infrastructure coufddrfere with the
Company'’s operations, compromise information bellogdo the Company and its customers, supplierd,employees,
exposing the Company to liability which could adedy impact the Company’s business and reputaliothe ordinary
course of business, the Company relies on infoonagchnology networks and systems, some of whiehrenaged by
third parties, to process, transmit and store maat information, and to manage or support a ¥aeé business
processes and activities. Additionally, the Compemliects and stores certain data, including pedpri business
information, and may have access to confidentigessonal information in certain of our businegbes is subject to
privacy and security laws, regulations and custeimg@osed controls. Despite our cybersecurity mess(including
employee and third-party training, monitoring ofwerks and systems, and maintenance of backup rartelgive
systems) which are continuously reviewed and upggtathe Company’s information technology netwonkd a
infrastructure may still be vulnerable to damagdsruptions or shutdowns due to attack by hackets@aches,
employee error or malfeasance, power outages, dempiuuses, telecommunication or utility failureystems failures,
service providers including cloud services, natdissters or other catastrophic events. It isiplesr such
vulnerabilities to remain undetected for an extehgeriod, up to and including several years. Whitehave
experienced, and expect to continue to experighesg types of threats to the Company’s informatahnology
networks and infrastructure, none of them to datelad a material impact to the Company. Therebmagther
challenges and risks as the Company upgrades andistlizes its ERP system on a worldwide basis.ugh events
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could result in legal claims or proceedings, ligpibr penalties under privacy laws, disruptiorojmerations, and
damage to the Company’s reputation, which coulceesbly affect the Company’s business. AlthoughGbepany
maintains insurance coverage for various cyber#gaisks, there can be no guarantee that all amskssses incurred
will be fully insured.

* The Company'’s defined benefit pension and pastraent plans are subject to financial market rigtkat could
adversely impact our result§he performance of financial markets and discoatgs impact the Company’s funding
obligations under its defined benefit plans. Sigaifit changes in market interest rates, decrendée ifair value of plan
assets and investment losses on plan assets, landntdegislative or regulatory changes relatmgefined benefit plan
funding may increase the Company’s funding oblmaiand adversely impact its results of operatambscash flows.

* The Company’s future results may be affectedanus legal and regulatory proceedings and legainpliance risks,
including those involving product liability, antitst, intellectual property, environmental, the Ur8reign Corrupt
Practices Act and other anti-bribery, anti-corrugi, or other mattersThe outcome of these legal proceedings may
differ from the Company’s expectations becausetiteomes of litigation, including regulatory masieare often
difficult to reliably predict. Various factors oedelopments can lead the Company to change cwestintates of
liabilities and related insurance receivables wizgglicable, or make such estimates for mattengquely not
susceptible of reasonable estimates, such as ificagi judicial ruling or judgment, a significaséttlement, significant
regulatory developments or changes in applicable Aafuture adverse ruling, settlement or unfavéeatevelopment
could result in future charges that could have ter@ adverse effect on the Company’s resultspefrations or cash
flows in any particular period. For a more detaitiistussion of the legal proceedings involving@mmpany and the
associated accounting estimates, see the discusdidote 12 “Commitments and Contingencies” wittlie Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Item 2. Unreqistered Sales of Equity Securities andse of Proceeds.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Repurchases of 3M common stock are made to sugfpp@ompany’s stock-based employee compensatios plad
for other corporate purposes. In February 2014,s3B8ard of Directors authorized the repurchasgpabub12 billion
of 3M’s outstanding common stock, with no pre-ekstled end date. In February 2016, 3M's Board aEBtors
replaced the Company’s February 2014 repurchasgamowith a new program. This new program authsrihe
repurchase of up to $10 billion of 3M’s outstandamnmon stock, with no pre-established end date.

Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities (registered pursuant to
Section 12 of the Exchange Act)

Maximum
Approximate
Dollar Value of
Total Number of  Shares that May
Shares Purchased Yet Be Purchased
Total Number of  Average Price as Part of Publicly  under the Plans

Shares Purchased  Paid per Announced Plans  or Programs

Period (1) Share or Programs (2) (Millions)
January 1-31, 2016 4,867,20¢ $ 141.70 4,867,01¢ $ 77
February 1-29, 2016 1,593,234  153.47 1,590,500 $ 9,756
March 1-31, 2016 1,094,08c $ 162.58 1,091,29: $ 9,578
Total January 1-March 31, 2016 7,554,526 147.21 7,548,812 $ 9,578
April 1-30, 2016 1,543,07¢ $ 167.78 1,538,00: $ 9,320
May 1-31, 2016 1,695,626 167.90 1,695,200 $ 9,036
June 1-30, 2016 1,712,49C $ 169.72 1,712,49C $ 8,745
Total April 1-June 30, 2016 4,951,18% 168.49 4,945,693 $ 8,745
Total January 1-June 30, 2016 12,505,71¢ $ 155.63 12,494,50t $ 8,745

(1) The total number of shares purchased includeshéjes purchased under the Board’s authorizatiessithed
above, and (ii) shares purchased in connectiontétexercise of stock options.

(2) The total number of shares purchased as part dichuannounced plans or programs includes shaneshased
under the Board’s authorizations described above.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities— No matters require disclosure.

Item 4. Mine Safety DisclosuresPursuant to Section 1503 of the Dodd-Frank Wa#&tReform and Consumer
Protection Act (the “Act”), the Company is requireddisclose, in connection with the mines it opesainformation
concerning mine safety violations or other regulatoatters in its periodic reports filed with thEG. The information
concerning mine safety violations or other regulatoatters required by Section 1503(a) of the Adhtluded in
Exhibit 95 to this quarterly report.

Item 5. Other Information. — No matters require disclosure.

Item 6. Exhibits.

Exhibits. These exhibits are either incorporateddigrence into this report or filed herewith wikfis report.
Exhibit numbers 10.1 through 10.34 are managenenitacts or compensatory plans or arrangements.
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Index to Exhibits:

(3) Articles of Incorporation and bylaws

(3.1) Certificate of incorporation, as amendedfadlay 11, 2007, is incorporated by reference fiaum
Form 8-K dated May 14, 2007.

(3.2) Amended and Restated Bylaws, as adoptefidsvember 10, 2015, are incorporated by referdrama
our Form 8-K dated November 10, 2015.

(4) Instruments defining the rights of securitydes, including indentures:

(4.1) Indenture, dated as of November 17, 200@yden 3M and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust
Company, N.A., as successor trustee, with respeditits senior debt securities, is incorporated by
reference from our Form 8-K dated December 7, 2000.

(4.2)  First Supplemental Indenture, dated as lyf2®, 2011, to Indenture dated as of November2000,
between 3M and The Bank of New York Mellon Trusin@any, N.A., as successor trustee, with respect
to 3M’s senior debt securities, is incorporateddfgrence from our Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 2011.

(10) Material contracts and management compenspl#ons and arrangements:

(10.1) 3M Company 2016 Long-Term Incentive Plaimg®rporated by reference from our ForrK 8ated May
12, 2016.

(10.2) Form of Stock Option Award Agreement un8er Company 2016 Long-Term Incentive Plan is
incorporated by reference from our Form 8-K dateayM?2, 2016

(10.3) Form of Stock Appreciation Right Award Agneent under 3M Company 2016 Long-Term Incentive
Plan is incorporated by reference from our Form 8ated May 12, 2016.

(10.4) Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreernender 3M Company 2016 Long-Term Incentive Pfan i
incorporated by reference from our Form 8-K dateayM 2, 2016.

(10.5) Form of Performance Share Award Agreemadeu3M Company 2016 Long-Term Incentive Plan is
incorporated by reference from our Form 8-K dateayM 2, 2016.

(10.6) 3M 2008 Long-Term Incentive Plan (includemgendments through February 218pis incorporated b
reference from our Form 10-K for the year endeddbdwer 31, 2015.

(10.7) Form of Agreement for Stock Option Grawt&kecutive Officers under 3M 2008 Long-Term Inoent
Plan is incorporated by reference from our Form 8ated May 13, 2008.

(10.8) Form of Stock Option Agreement for optigmanted to Executive Officers under the 3M 2008d-on
Term Incentive Plan, commencing February 9, 204 thdorporated by reference from our FormKLér
the year ended December 31, 2009.

(10.9) Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreementriestricted stock units granted to Executive Oficender
the 3M Long-Term Incentive Plan, effective Februgy®010, is incorporated by reference from our
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009.

(10.10) Form of 3M 2010 Performance Share Awamkuthe 3M 2008 Long-Term Incentive Plan is
incorporated by reference from our Form 8-K datemrdit 4, 2010.

(10.11) Form of Stock Option Agreement for U.S.doyees under 3M 2008 Long-Term Incentive Plan is
incorporated by reference from our Form 10-K fa ylear ended December 31, 2008.

(10.12) Form of Restricted Stock Unit AgreememtJoS. Employees under 3M 2008 Long-Term Incenian
is incorporated by reference from our Form 10-Ktfer year ended December 31, 2008.

(10.13) 3M 2005 Management Stock Ownership Prodiachuding amendments through February 2, 2016) is
incorporated by reference from our Form 10-K far ytlear ended December 31, 2015.

(10.14) Form of award agreement for non-qualiftatk options granted under the 2005 ManagemekSto
Ownership Program, is incorporated by referencenfooir Form 8-K dated May 16, 2005.

(10.15) 3M VIP Excess Plan is incorporated bynafee from our Form 8-K dated November 14, 2008.

(10.16) Amendment of 3M VIP Excess Plan is incoaped by reference from our Form 8-K dated Novenaider
20009.

(10.17) 3M VIP (Voluntary Investment Plan) Plusrisorporated by reference from Registration Statem
No. 333-73192 on Form S-8, filed on November 13, 2001.

(10.18) Amendment of 3M VIP Plus is incorporatgd-&ference from our Form 8-K dated November 1980
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(10.19) 3M Deferred Compensation Plan, as ametidedgh February 2008, is incorporated by referdram
our Form 8-K dated February 14, 2008.

(10.20) Amendment of 3M Deferred Compensation Bancorporated by reference from our Form 8-Kedat
Novembe 14, 2008.

(10.21) 3M Deferred Compensation Excess Plancisrporated by reference from our Form 10-K foryhkar
ended December 31, 2009.

(10.22) 3M Performance Awards Deferred Compensaian is incorporated by reference from our FofaK1
for the year ended December 31, 2009.

(10.23) 3M Executive Annual Incentive Plan is irporated by reference from our Form 8-K dated Méy 1
2007.

(10.24) Description of changes to 3M Compensadgtam for Non-Employee Directors is incorporated by
reference from our Form 8-K dated August 8, 2005.

(10.25) 3M Compensation Plan for Non-Employee &ies, as amended, through November 8, 2004, is
incorporated by reference from our Form 10-K far ytlear ended December 31, 2004.

(10.26) Amendment of 3M Compensation Plan for Nwnployee Directors is incorporated by referencenfro
our Form 8-K dated November 14, 2008.

(10.27) Amendment of 3M Compensation Plan for Nanployee Directors as of August 12, 2013, is
incorporated by reference from our Form 10-Q fer dnarter ended September 30, 2013.

(10.28) 3M Executive Life Insurance Plan, as ameeinds incorporated by reference from our Form lidkihe
year ended Decemt 31, 2003.

(10.29) Summary of Personal Financial PlanningiSes for 3M Executives is incorporated by refeeefrom
our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003.

(10.30) 3M policy on reimbursement of incentive/pants is incorporated by reference from our FobakKIfor
the year ended December 31, 2006.

(10.31) Amended and Restated 3M Nonqualified R@nBian | is incorporated by reference from oumir8rK
dated December 23, 2008.

(10.32) Amended and Restated 3M Nonqualified RenBian Il is incorporated by reference from ourmr&-K
dated December 23, 2008.

(10.33) 3M Nongualified Pension Plan Il is incorpted by reference from our Form 8-K dated Novanilde
2008.

(10.34) Policy on Reimbursement of Incentive Congagion (effective May 11, 2010) is incorporated by
reference from our Form 10-Q dated August 4, 2010.

(10.35) Amended and restated five-year creditegent as of March 9, 2016, is incorporated by esfee from
our Form 8-K dated March 11, 2016.

(10.36) Registration Rights Agreement as of Augyg009, between 3M Company and State Street Badk

Trust Company as Independent Fiduciary of the 3\plegee Retirement Income Plan, is incorporated

by reference from our Form 8-K dated August 5, 2009
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Filed herewith, in addition to items, if any, sdexlly identified above:

(12)
(15)

(31.1)
(31.2)
(32.1)
(32.2)

(95)
(101)

Calculation of ratio of earnings to fixed ofes.

A letter from the Company’s independent reggisd public accounting firm regarding unauditei@iim
consolidated financial statements.

Certification of the Chief Executive Offigqgursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-OxleyofA2002,

18 U.S.C. Section 1350.

Certification of the Chief Financial Officpursuant to Section 302 of the Sarba®esey Act of 2002, 1
U.S.C. Section 1350.

Certification of the Chief Executive Offiggursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-OxleyofA2002,

18 U.S.C. Section 1350.

Certification of the Chief Financial Officpursuant to Section 906 of the Sarba@etey Act of 2002, 1
U.S.C. Section 1350.

Mine Safety Disclosures.

The following financial information from 3&@ompany’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for thequkr
ended June 30, 2016, filed with the SEC on Augug026, formatted in Extensible Business Reporting
Language (XBRL): (i) the Consolidated Statemerihobme for the three-month and six-month periods
ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, (ii) the Consolidatattment of Comprehensive Income for the three-
month and six-month periods ended June 30, 20128 (iii) the Consolidated Balance Sheet at June
30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, (iv) the Consditi&tatement of Cash Flows for the three-month and
six-month periods ended June 30, 2016 and 20150\ardbtes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caussddiport to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduatp authorized.

3M COMPANY
(Registrant)

Date: August 2, 2016

By /s/ Nicholas C. Gangestad
Nicholas C. Gangestad,

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Mr. Gangestad is the Principal Financial Officaddas
been duly authorized to sign on behalf of the Reayis.)
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EXHIBIT 12

3M COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CALCULATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

EARNINGS
Income before income taxes

Add:
Interest expense (including amortizatior
capitalized interest)

Portion of rent under operating leases
representative of the interest componer

Less:
Equity in undistributed income of 20-50'
owned companies

TOTAL EARNINGS AVAILABLE FOR
FIXED CHARGES

FIXED CHARGES

Interest on debt (including capitalized
interest)

Portion of rent under operating leases
representative of the interest componer

TOTAL FIXED CHARGES

RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED
CHARGES

(Millions)
Six months
ended
June 30, Year Year Year Year Year
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
$ 3,581 $ 6,823 $ 7,026 $ 6,562 $ 6,351 $6,031
96 171 164 166 191 206
49 101 104 103 92 85
4 5 (1) (1) 3 4
$ 3,722 $ 7,090 $ 7,295 $ 6,832 $ 6,631 $6,318
90 162 159 166 194 206
49 101 104 103 92 85
$ 139 $ 263 $ 263 $ 269 $ 286 $ 291
26.8 27.0 27.7 25.4 23.2 21.7
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EXHIBIT 15
August 2, 2016

Securities and Exchange Commission
100 F Street, N.E.
Washington, DC 20549

Commissioners:

We are aware that our report dated August 2, 2@16uo review of interim financial information of 3@ompany and
its subsidiaries for the three and six month pevieided June 30, 2016 and 2015 and included i@dhgany’s
quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter endiene 30, 2016 is incorporated by reference iRdégistration
Statements on Form S-8 (Registration Nos. 333-3088%-30691, 333-44760, 333-73192, 333-101727,138882,
333-128251, 333-130150, 333-151039, 333-156626,156627, 333-166908, 333-174562, 333-181269, 33218,
and 333-211431) and Form S-3 (Registration Nos-138803, 33-48089, 333-42660, and 333-109211) dabeaist 2,
2016.

Very truly yours,
/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota
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EXHIBIT 31.1

SARBANES-OXLEY SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION

I, Inge G. Thulin, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 16§@M Company;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not comajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgdtéde a
material fact necessary to make the statements,rimalight of the circumstances under which sucteshents
were made, not misleading with respect to the pecmvered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly
present in all material respects the financial ool results of operations and cash flows of Registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The Registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disate
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangdrAitts 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cootrer
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actddul 3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrant hade:

(@)

(b)

()

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresgused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensutertbgerial information relating to the Registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is madevim to us by others within those entities, paraciyl
during the period in which this report is beinggaeed;

Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finahcia
reporting to be designed under our supervisiopybwide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the prepacet of financial statements for external purposes i
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptes;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’'sldssire controls and procedures and presentedsin th
report our conclusions about the effectivenessi®efdisclosure controls and procedures, as of te en
of the period covered by this report based on swetuation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the Regissanternal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the Registrant’s most recent fiscarter (the Registrant’s fourth fiscal quartethia
case of an annual report) that has materially tfte@r is reasonably likely to materially affettte
Registrant’s internal control over financial refogt and

5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and | kadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluationterhal
control over financial reporting, to the Registtamtuditors and the audit committee of the Regmtsaboard
of directors (or persons performing the equivafanttions):

(@)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contratiov
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyatdversely affect the Registrant’s ability to regord
process, summarize and report financial informatéor

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvearmagement or other employees who have a

significant role in the Registrant’s internal catover financial reporting.

/sl Inge G. Thulin

Inge G. Thulin
Chief Executive Officer

August 2, 2016
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EXHIBIT 31.2

SARBANES-OXLEY SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION

I, Nicholas C. Gangestad, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 16§@M Company;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not comajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgdtéde a
material fact necessary to make the statements,rimalight of the circumstances under which sucteshents
were made, not misleading with respect to the pecmvered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly
present in all material respects the financial ool results of operations and cash flows of Registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The Registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disate
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangdrAitts 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cootrer
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actddul 3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrant hade:

(@)

(b)

()

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresgused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensutertbgerial information relating to the Registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is madevim to us by others within those entities, paraciyl
during the period in which this report is beinggaeed;

Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finahcia
reporting to be designed under our supervisiopybwide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the prepacet of financial statements for external purposes i
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptes;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’'sldssire controls and procedures and presentedsin th
report our conclusions about the effectivenessi®efdisclosure controls and procedures, as of te en
of the period covered by this report based on swetuation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the Regissanternal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the Registrant’s most recent fiscarter (the Registrant’s fourth fiscal quartethia
case of an annual report) that has materially tffte@r is reasonably likely to materially affettte
Registrant’s internal control over financial refogt and

5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and | kadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluationterhal
control over financial reporting, to the Registtamtuditors and the audit committee of the Regmtseboard
of directors (or persons performing the equivafanttions):

(@)

(b)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contratiov
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyatdversely affect the Registrant’s ability to regord
process, summarize and report financial informatéor

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a
significant role in the Registrant’s internal catover financial reporting.

/sl Nicholas C. Gangestad

Nicholas C. Gangest
Chief Financial Officer

August 2, 2016
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EXHIBIT 32.1
SARBANES-OXLEY SECTION 906 CERTIFICATION
In connection with the Quarterly Report of 3M Compdthe “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period eshdene 30,
2016 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cmsion on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, IngeT@ulin, Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuamil8 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuadédtion 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my knogted

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefiction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh
1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly gets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand
results of operations of the Company.

/sl Inge G. Thulin

Inge G. Thulin
Chief Executive Officer

August 2, 2016
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EXHIBIT 32.2

SARBANES-OXLEY SECTION 906 CERTIFICATION

In connection with the Quarterly Report of 3M Compdthe “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period eshdene 30,
2016 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cission on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, NidoC. Gangestad,
Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify,rpuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted puotrsoiection 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my kizulge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefiction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh
1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly prets, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand
results of operations of the Company.

/sl Nicholas C. Gangestad

Nicholas C. Gangest
Chief Financial Officer

August 2, 2016
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EXHIBIT 95

MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

For the second quarter of 2016, the Company ha®tioeving mine safety information to report in acdance with Section 1503(a) of the Act, in conioectith the
Pittsboro, North Carolina mine, the Little Rockk&nsas mine, the Corona, California mine, and tlas&lu, Wisconsin mine (including Greystone Plant):

Received
Received Notice of
Total Dollar Value Notice of Potentieto Aggregate
Mine or Operating Section of MSHA TotaNumber Pattern of Have Pattern Legal Actions Aggregate  Legal Actions
Name/MSHA Section 104 Section 104(d) Section eclion Assessments of Mining Violations Undere8tion Pending as of Legal Actions  Resolved
Identification S&S Citations 104(b) Citations and  110(b)(2) 107(a) Proposed Related Under Sectio 104(e) Last Day of Initiated During During Period
Number #) Orders (#) Orders (#)  Violations (#) Orders (#) ($) Fatalities (#) 104(e) (yes/no) (yes/no) Period (#) Period (#) #)
3M Pittsboro ID: 3102153 — — = = — % — — No No —
3M Little Rock ID: 0300426 — — — — — % 2,996 — No No —
3M Corona Plant ID: 0400191 — — — — — 3 — — No No —
Greystone Plant ID: 4700119 2 — — — — 3 786 — No No —
Wausau Plant ID: 4702918 2 — — — — 3 1,667 — No No —
Total 4 — — — — 3 5,449 — — — —
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